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IMPACT OF CRIME ON THE ELDERLY 

TUESDAY, JUNE 28, 1983 

U,S. SENATE, 
SUBCOMMITTEE ON AGING, 

COMMITTEE ON LABOR AND HUMAN RESOURCES, 
Washington, D. C. 

The subcommittee met, pursuant  to notice, in room SD-430, 
Dirksen Senate Office Building, commencing at  10:06 a.m., Senator  
Charles E. Grassley (chairman of the subcommittee) presiding. 

Present: Senators Grassley and Hawkins.  

OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR GRASSLEY 

Senator GRASSLEY. I will call the meeting and this hearing of the  
Subcommittee on Aging to order. I have a short  s ta tement  before 
we call the witnesses. I want  to thank  everybody for participating. 

As we all know, crime can strike anyone but  most frequently it 
affects the poor, the young, the ve ry  old, and residents of the inner 
cit ies--precisely those persons who are least able to protect them- 
selves. We are ever mindful of the  serious toll that  crime is exact- 
ing in our communities and we cannot turn  away from that  prob- 
lem. 

The idea tha t  a society should aid those who are victimized by 
crime is not new. Dated 2038 B.C., the Babylonian Code of Hammu-  
rabi, provided that  when a person was robbed or murdered, he or 
she or the heirs, were entitled to compensation for their  losses. But  
today's system has lost touch with this commonsense notion 
through its legalistic insistence on separat ing civil and criminal 
remedies. We punish cr iminals - -somet imes--but  we leave the 
victim to his own devices in seeking tort  compensation. 

We squire a suspect through the process: Provide a free lawyer, 
food and housing, physical and psychiatric t reatment ,  job training, 
support  for the family, counsel on appeal. But  the victim often gets 
no he lp- -and even worse, is victimized again by an insensitive judi- 
cial system which demands his or her  full-time participation for 
the minor comfort of a conviction. 

On April 15, 1982, President  Reagan assembled a task force to 
find out why our system treats victims so dismally. The ffmal 
report  of the  President 's  Task Force on Victims of Crime was re- 
leased last December. By combining discussions with law-abiding 
citizens whose lives have been shat tered by lawlessness, the task 
force has produced an Outstanding resource on this subject. 

The report outlines an agenda for governmental and organiza- 
tional action to alleviate the suffering of those afflicted by crime. 
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For  example,  the  report i l lustrates the physical consequences 
unique to older victims. One elderly victim testified and I quote: 

I am a senior citizen but I never considered myself  old. I was active. I was inde- 
pendent .  Now I live in a nursing home and sit in a wheelchair. The day I was 
mugged was the day I began to die. 

I f  the  victim is lucky, the  perpet ra tor  of the crime may receive a 
sentence.  But  a s  this example aptly illustrates, the  victim may be 
sentenced to a lifelong ordeal of pain. 

Gradua l ly  our perception of the criminal justice system has been 
changing. In the  last  Congress, for example, we finally recognized 
tha t  all too often the victim of a serious crime is forced to suffer 
physical,  psychological, or irmancial hardship, first as a result  of 
the  criminal  act  and then as a result  of contact  with a criminal jus- 
tice sys tem tha t  calls it a day after  the  case is dismissed or the 
cr iminal  is pu t  away. 

The Vict im and Witness Protection Act of 1982 provides a ray of 
opt imism in the  Federal  criminal system. Resti tution is required 
for the  first  time. There may  be revocation of bail in certain cir- 
c u m s t a n c e s - a n o t h e r  first. Victim impact  s ta tements  are required. 
This means  tha t  prior  to sentencing the judge will know the finan- 
cial, medical, social, and psychological effects of the victim prior to 
sentencing. While these steps are  marked  improvements,  it goes 
wi thout  saying tha t  we have much yet  to accomplish. 

Today's  hear ing will hopefully build on the outstanding founda- 
tion laid by the  President 's  task  force, assessing where we are in 
te rms  of victim assistance and in which directions 'we should advis- 
edly move. We have an outstanding a r ray  of witnesses and I look 
forward to hear ing from them. 

We will proceed according to the order printed, with the excep- 
tion of Senator  Heinz, who right now [and I just  came from that  
meet ing  because I am also a member  of the Select Committee on 
Aging] is holding a hearing on the efficacy of drugs and the over- 
use of drugs by senior citizens. He will l ikely have to come in late 
to test i fy before my  subcommittee, and I told him that  we  would 
in te r rup t  whoever  was testifying so tha t  he would not be away 
from his own committee for too long of a period of time. 

With  tha t  in mind, I will skip Senator  Heinz momentar i ly  and go 
to J a y  Stephens,  who is originally from my State of Iowa and came 
to Washington to take  his present  position. Lois Haight  Herr ington 
will tes t i fy as well. I am acquainted with Mr. Stephens because his 
fa ther  was in the State legislature when I was in the State legisla- 
tu re  and had an opportunity to know the family for a long time. 
J a y  Stephens  is Deputy Associate At torney General  of the  U.S. De- 
pa r tmen t  of  Just ice,  a native of my own State, as I said. Following 
his ass ignment  as Assistant Special Prosecutor  in the Watergate 
invest igat ion and 5 years prosecuting cases as assistant U.S. attor- 
ney  for the  District  of Columbia, he has been responsible for a wide 
range of criminal  policy issues in the Just ice Department.  

Lois Haight  Herr ington comes to us after  chairing the Presi- 
dent 's  Task Force on Victims of Crime and I want  to congratulate 
her  for her  impor tant  contribution to this effort and of course 
t h a n k  both of you for participating. 

So would you both come forward at this time, please. 
We will now receive a s ta tement  from Senator  Heinz. 
[The prepared s ta tement  of Senator  Heinz follows:] 
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~ TATEMENT BY SENATOR JOHN HEINZ 
EFORE THE SENATE SUB-COMMITTEE'ON AGING 

C4~IME AND THE ELDERLY 
JUNE 28, 1983 

MR. CHAIRMAN, [ AM PLEASED TO APPEAR BEFORE YOU TODAY TO 
~ " . 
ESTIFY ON BEHALF OF MY LEGISLATION AND ON BEHALF OF CRIME 
r 
~ICTIMS ACROSS • THE NATION. I IT IS ALWAYS A PLEASURE FOR ME TO BE 

+ 

iiN THE DISTINGUISHED COMPANY OF LOIS HERRINGTON, WHO WAS CHAIRMAN 

F THE PRESIDENT'S TASK FORCE ON VICTIMS OF CRIME, AND TO APPEAR 

~ITH THE NATIONAL ORGANIZATION OF VICTIMS ASSISTANCE, WHICH HAS ' 

WORKED SO EFFECTIVELY IN THE PROMOTION OF VICTIMS RIGHTS. 

li AS CHAIRMAN OF THE SENATE SPEC~IAL COMMITTEE ON AGING, I HAVE 

iONG BEEN.iAWARE THAT THE FEAR OF CRIME AND THE IMPACT OF AN 

~SSAULT H~VE AN ESPECIALLY!TRAUMATIC. "IMPACT. .UPON OLDER AMERICANS- 

~HAT iS NOT SO'WIDELY RECOGNIZED IS THE NEGATIVE IMPACT OF A 

,VICTIM'S EXPERIENCE AFTER A CRIME HAS OCCURED. 

THE PRESIDENTIS TASK FORCE ON VICTIMS OF CRIME, IN ITS REPORT 

~O THE CONGRESS EARLIER THIS YEARs CONCLUDED THAT THE TREATMENT 

i 
OF VICTIMS BY OUR CRIMINAL JUSTICE SYSTEM HAS BEEN CARELESS AND 
I 

SHAMEFUL." IN MANY CASES, ITHE CRIMINAL HAS RECEIVED MORE 

FONSIDERATION' AND FAIRER ~REATMENT THAN THE INNOCENT INDIVIDUAL 
I " f ' " I 

~HE HAS VICTIMIZED- IN THE WORDS OF THE TASK FORCE, "INNOCENT 

i VICT.IMS OF CRIME HAVE BEEN OVERLOOKED, THEIR PLEAS FOR JUSTICE 

I HAVE GONE UNHEEDED, AND THEIR WOUNDS - -  PERSONAL, EMOTIONAL, AND 

FINANCIAL - -  HAVE GONE UNATTENDED-" LAST YEAR, SENATORLAXALT 

I ND I HOPED TO BALANCE THIS INJUSTICE WHEN WE INTRODUCED THE 
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VICTIM AND WITNESS PROTECTION ACT OF 1982. THAT BILL WAS SIGNED 

INTO PUBLIC LAW BY THE PRESIDENT LAST OCTOBER. IT IS THE FIRST 

MAJOR FEDERAL LEGISLATION WHICH RECOGNIZES THE RIGHTS.AND NEEDS 

OF VICTIMS. THE SWIFT PASSAGE OF THIS LEGISLATION HAS GIVEN HOPE 

TO VICTIMs ACROSS THE COUNTRY. MANY VICTIMS ADVOCACY GROUPS ARE 

NOW WORKING FOR PASSAGE OF PARALLEL LEGISLATION AT THE STATE 

LEVEL. 

BUT WE NEED TO DO MORE. THE FINANCIAL IMPACT OF A CRIME CAN 

BE DEVASTATING TO AN OLDER PERSON ON A FIXED INCOME- SOME" SAY 

THAT RESTITUTION SHOULD BE REQUIRED - SIMP[Y MAKE THE CRIMINAL 

PAY FOR THE CONSEQUENCES OF HIS CRIME. BUT SADLY, RELATIVELY FEW 

CRIMINALS ARE CAUGHT AND CONVICTED, AND FEWER STILL CAN BE MADE 

TO PAY RESTITUTION. To ADDRESS THIS PROBLEM, 36 STATES PLUS THE 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA HAVE ESTABLISHED VICTIMS COMPENSATION 

PROGRAMS. UNFORTUNATELY, VIRTUALLY OF THESE STATE CRIME VICTIMS 

COMPENSATION PROGRAMS ARE EXPERIENCING FINANCIAL DIFFICULTIES. 

MANY STATES ARE BEING FORCED TO LIMIT THE AMOUNT OF THEIR 

COMPENSATION AWARDS. OTHERS DO NOT ADVISE VICTIMS OF tHEIR 

EXISTENCE FOR FEAR OF DEPLETING AVAILABLE RESOURCES OR OVERTAXING 

. NUMERICALLY INADEQUATE STAFF. IN ADDITION, BECAUSE OF THE 

FUNDING PROBLEMS IN MANY STATES, VICTIMS MAY HAVE TO WAIT MONTHS 

BEFORE THE COMPENSATION CLAIM CAN BE PROCESSED. 

MR. ~HAIRMAN, EARLY THIS YEAR I ,  WITH YOUR CO-SPONSORSHIP 

INTRODUCED S-  704 - T H E  CRIME VICTIM ASSISTANCEAcT OF 1983 - 



WHICH WOULD ESTABLISH A FEDERAL CRIME VICTIMS ASSISTANCE FUND TO 

HELP STATES COMPENSATEVICTIMS OF CRIME- IT WOULD PROVIDE 

TECHNICAL SUPPORT FOR THOSE REMAINING STATES WHICH DECIDE TO 

ESTABLISH VICTIMS COMPENSATION PROGRAMS. IN ADDITION, THE 

LEGISLATION WOULD PROVIDE MUCH-NEEDED FINANCIAL SUPPORT FOR STATE 

AND FEDERAL VICTIM'S AND WITNESS ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS. THIS 

SUPPORT IS ESSENTIAL IF WE ARE TO FULLY IMPLEMENT THE PROVISONS 

OF THE VICTI'M AND WITNESS PROTECTION ACT PASSED LAST YEAR- 

REVENUE FOR THESE PURPOSES WILL BE GENERATED FROM SOURCES 

RELATED TO THE COMMISSION OF THE CRIME - SUCH AS INCREASED FINES, 

CRIMINAL FORFEITURES, IMPROVED COLLECTION PROCEDURES, AND A 

SPECIFIC ONE-TIME COMPENSATION FEE TO BE LEVIED AT THE TIME OF 

SENTENCING ON ALL FEDERAL CRIMES. IT WILL NOT REQUIRE A SINGLE 

PENNY OF NEW REVENUE FROM THE TAXPAYER. 

MOST ELDERLY PEOPLE CAN NOT ABSORB THE FINANCIAL IMPACT OF A 

CRIME. THEY RARELY INVEST IN INSURANCE WHICH IS OFTEN A FALL- 

BACK FOR YOUNGER, WORKING INDIVIDUALS. THUS, THEY ARE INNOCENTLY 

VICTIMIZED, AND THAN'LEFT TO PAY FOR MEDICAL EXPENSES, THERAPY, 

OR POSSIBLY FUNERAL EXPENSES ON THEIR OWN. COMPENSATION 

PROGRAMS VARY FROM STATE-TO-STATE, BUT MOST. COMPENSATE FOR 

MEDICAL, COUNSELING, AND THERAPY EXPENSES ASSOCIATED WITH THE 

CRIME. MOST OF THESE PROGRAMS ALSO REIMBURSE FOR LOSTWAGES, 

LOSS OF SUPPORT TO DEPENDENTS AND FUNERAL EXPENSES. I BELIEVE 

THAT IT IS TIME FOR THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT TO ENSURE THE 

AVAILABILITY OF ADEQUATE FUNDS TO SUPPORT THESE PROGRAMS SO THAT 

FINANCIAL REIMBURSEMENT TO INNOCENT VICTIMS CAN BE MADE. 

WITHOUT THE COOPERATION OF VICTIMSj THE CRIMINAL JUSTICE 

SYSTEM WOULD COLLAPSE. LAST YEAR WE BEGAN TO RECOGNIZE THEIR .... 

NEEDS- I BELIEVE THIS YEAR IT IS TIME WE COMPLETE OUR . . . . . .  ~ . . . .  

RESPONSIBILITY BY ENACTING COMPREHENSIVE VICTIMS COMPENSATION- 

LEGI'SLATION- THANK YOU- 



Senator  GRASSLE~. Jay, I am going to ask you to go first, please. 
Then I will also want  to hear  from you, Mrs. Herrington, before we 
ask questions, but  I do have some questions for both of you. So go 
ahead,  Jay.  

STATEMENT OF JAY STEPHENS, DEPUTY ASSOCIATE ATTORNEY 
GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, ACCOMPANIED BY LOIS 
HAIGHT HERRINGTON, ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Mr. STEPHENS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  It is indeed a pleasure 
to be here  today to discuss with you the Department  of Justice's 
implementa t ion  of the  Victim Witness Protection Act of 1982 tha t  
was passed by the Congress in this past session and signed by the 
Pres ident  in October. 

As the cha i rman  so aptly noted, this legislation is a milestone in 
the  cont inuing effort to insure tha t  victims and witnesses of crimi- 
nal  offenses are given the level of a t tent ion and consideration 
which they  deserve. For too long our legal system has ignored the 
devas ta t ing  psychological, emotional, physical, and financial 
impact  which crime can have upon a victim and it has focused in- 
s tead all its a t ten t ion  upon insuring tha t  every concern of the ac- 
cused is accommodated. 

Similarly,  witnesses to offenses too often have been treated with 
disregard and indifference, even though they frequently make 
grea t  personal sacrifices to do an impor tant  civic duty. 

The impact  of crime is especially t raumat ic  with respect to our 
elderly citizens. I know tha t  is of par t icular  concern to the chair- 
m a n  of this subcommittee. I would like to take a moment  to focus 
on some of those special concerns of the elderly. Although the 
ac tual  incidence of crime may be less with respect to our elderly 
citizens, the overall impact which crime has on this group is trau- 
matic. The sense of vulnerabili ty among many  of our elderly exac- 
erbates the i r  fear of crime which in tu rn  results in a significant 
a l te ra t ion  of their  life style. When a purse is snatched or a home 
burglarized, the  elderly person frequently experiences great fear 
even though no violence may have resulted. Indeed, the pervasive 
fear  of crime suffered by the elderly has been identified in one na- 
t ionwide survey to be a more serious personal problem than  poor 
heal th ,  loneliness, lack of financial resources and other such prob- 
lems f requent ly  associated with the aging process. 

This fear of crime of the elderly is an indirect form of victimiza- 
t ion since it can lead to serious restriction on the elderly's daily ac- 
tivities and can significantly impoverish their  lifestyle. 

Fur thermore ,  the  elderly are more susceptible to crime tha t  in- 
volves economic loss, and economic loss may be particularly dis- 
turb ing to the person who is on a fLxed income as many of our el- 
derly people are. The inescapable conclusion of victimization stud- 
ies is t ha t  indeed the t rauma and economic impact of crime weigh 
much  more heavily upon our elderly citizens. 

The Victim and Witness Protection Act passed by Congress last 
session is, of course, designed to benefit all of our citizens who may 
suffer the  t ragedy of being a crime victim or who step forward to 
do the i r  civic du ty  when they are a witness to a criminal offense. 



The act contains a number  of provisions, each of which is de- 
signed to provide a part icular type of assistance to victims and wit- 
nesses. 

I would like this morning to address the most significant aspects 
of that  legislation and to advise the subcommittee of the  s tatus  of 
the implementat ion of that  act by the Depar tment  of Justice. 

In particular,  I would like first to discuss our effort to implement  
those provisions of the act which deal with the victim impact state- 
ment, the obstruction of justice statute,  and resti tution provisions, 
and then to review the status of the guideline mandated by section 
6 of the Witness Victim Protection Act. 

As the chairman pointed out in his opening statement,  one of the 
most significant aspects of the new Victim and Witness Protection 
Act is section 3 which requires the inclusion of a victim impact 
s ta tement  as par t  of the presentence report  rifled pursuant  to rule 
32(c)(2) of the Federal  Rules of Criminal Procedure. 

Prior to the enactment  of this act, the general practice of the 
probation officer and the courts was to rely on a presentence inves- 
tigation that  generally focused upon the defendant 's  family, social, 
economic, and criminal background. While most presentence re- 
ports included a small section on the official version of the  offense, 
they did not specifically address the questions of the physical, the 
economic, the psychological t r auma  suffered by the victim or the 
victims of the offense. Consequently, a sentencing court, particular- 
ly in a case that  was disposed of by a plea where the victim did not  
have an opportunity to come before the court, did not always have 
a complete picture or an accurate  picture of the impact which the 
offense had upon the victim. 

Now, the Victim and Witness Protection Act requires tha t  pre- 
sentence investigations include an appropriate  section describing 
the impact of that  offense upon the victim. The act mandates  tha t  
this be provided as par t  of the presentence report  of rule 32(c)(2); 
consequently, the pr imary burden of this falls upon the probation 
office, since they are the office that  prepares this report  and since, 
as the legislation points out, the Congress wanted a neutral  par ty  
to present this evidence to the court. 

Nonetheless, the prosecutor has an important  obligation, we be- 
lieve, to assist the probation office in obtaining a complete and ac- 
curate information picture regarding the impact of the crime on 
the victim, since frequently the prosecutor or the investigator han- 
dling the case may have more ready access to this evidence at  an 
early stage of the investigation. Moreover, .we believe the prosecu- 
tor has a responsibility to advise the victim about  communicat ing 
with the probation office, in order to insure that  the probation offÉ- 
cer talks with the victim and obtains the necessary information to 
complete the victim impact statement.  

And, in the last analysis, where courts permit,  the prosecutor 
should be a vigorous advocate for the victim at the time of sentenc- 
ing to insure that  the court is fully cognizant of the  extent  of the 
injuries suffered by the victim. We have preliminari ly advised our 
prosecutors of their  obligations with respect to the victim impact  
s ta tements  and I fully expect the formal guidelines which will be 
issued by the Depar tment  of Justice shortly will address tha t  issue 
and underscore the investigative agents'  and prosecutors'  responsi- 



bil i ty of assisting the  probation office in bringing this very impor- 
t an t  information to the at tent ion of the sentencing judge. 

With  respect  to section 4 of the  new act which involves obstruc- 
tion of just ice and witness tamper ing provisions, we have made a 
comprehensive  analysis of these new statutes  and the important  
changes which are  entailed in this legislation. We have communi- 
cated to the  U.S. at torneys as well as to our at torneys in the De- 
p a r t m e n t  of Jus t ice  the important  changes in the obstruction of 
jus t ice  laws and have provided them with detailed guidance on the 
applicat ion of these  provisions. 

The Depar tment ,  of course, views these changes in the obstruc- 
tion s ta tu tes  as significant improvements  for the protection of wit- 
nesses who may  be threatened or intimidated, and we have encour- 
aged our  prosecutors to utilize these new provisions vigorously to 
prosecute  any individual who interferes with or intimidates wit- 
nesses to criminal  offenses. 

There  are  a number  of significant changes in the law which I 
would like to point  out very briefly. Section 4 provides for a civil 
injunct ive remedy to restrain harassment  of witnesses and, as the 
cha i rman  pointed out, section 8 of the act includes a provision that  
makes  nonviolation of the intimidation and harassment  s tatutes a 
condition of any  release on bail. 

Equal ly  important ,  punishment  for violation of the new obstruc- 
tion s ta tu tes  now extends to 10 years  imprisonment  and a fine of 
up to $250,000. And, more importantly,  the new provisions now 
cover the  int imidation of a witness even though a formal case has 
not  yet  been filed. The Criminal Division of the Depar tment  of Jus- 
tice has main ta ined  ongoing supervision of these statutes to pro- 
vide the  necessary advice to our prosecutors and to resolve issues 
which may  arise in the application of these new statutes. We 
expect  these s ta tu tes  to be  an impor tant  tool in providing witnesses 
the  kind of securi ty  from intimidation that  they deserve. 

Section 7 of the  new act requires tha t  the  Attorney General 
repor t  to Congress within a year  of enactment  of the ac t  regarding 
necessary  le-'g~lation---to insure that  a Federal  felon derives no 
profit  from his crimes until any victim of his offenses receives res- 
t i tut ion.  

I would advise the  subcommittee that  the Depar tment  current ly 
has  this issue under  consideration and will report  to the Congress 
its recommendat ions  on this mat te r  in the  next  few months. 

The Depar tmen t  currently is f'malizing detailed instructions to 
all our  criminal  p ros~u to r s  regarding the important  restitution 
provisions of the  act, Very significantly, section 5 of the act re- 
quires, as the  chairman pointed out, tha t  a sentencing court  specifi- 
cally consider the  issue of rest i tut ion and to state on the record 
any  reasons for failing to impose restitution. 

In addition, the  court is authorized under  this new legislation to 
impose a sentence of both rest i tut ion and incarceration, a change 
from the  previous law. And it also provides for a civil judgment  en- 
forcement  mechanism for victims awarded restitution. 

The issue of resti tution for criminal offenses raises a number  of 
difficult  legal and administrative issues which we have been at- 
t empt ing  to resolve. As I noted previously, we are finalizing a set of 
instruct ions to our prosecutors, and we anticipate tha t  within the 



next 30 to 60 days we will have detailed instructions to them to 
assist them in dealing with some of the very difficult questions. 

The rest i tut ion issue has raised concerns among participants in 
the criminal justice system regarding the process by which restitu- 
tion is imposed and the procedures which must  be followed. Many 
of these issues surfaced in a nationwide teleconference that  we had 
this spring tha t  involve members  of the bench, probation officers, 
defense counsel, and Federal  prosecutors. 

Also within the prosecutors'  offices concerns have been raised re- 
garding the resolution of certain resti tution issues; for example, in 
Federal prosecutions we may have prosecutions of major securities 
fraud schemes, where there  are many victims, and may end up 
with a disposition involving a limited number  of those indicted 
counts. Consequently, there  may be some victims' counts tha t  
either were not charged or were dismissed as par t  of a plea disposi- 
tion; thus, these victims may not obtain restitution. 

In addition, we need to be vigilant regarding the procedures em- 
ployed in imposing resti tution so as to avoid unduly encumbering 
the sentencing process. As I have noted previously, however, we have 
encouraged our prosecutors, consistent with their  overall prosecuto- 
rial obligations, to press for resti tution in all appropriate  cases and 
to assist the  probation office in developing documentat ion and evi- 
dence of injury suffered by a victim. 

Resti tution through the criminal process at  best may provide 
only a partial  solution, however, to compensating victims of crime. 
In many cases there  are victims of crimes for which no one is ap- 
prehended or convicted, and consequently, resti tution in those cir- 
cumstances is, of course, totally unavailable. 

In other circumstances where the perpet ra tor  is convicted, he 
may be unable to pay. In many cases a convicted defendant  may be 
incarcerated for a substantial  number  of years and the payment  to 
a victim may be delayed for many years. In still other  circum- 
stances as I noted above, a victim may be one of several victims of 
a complex scheme in which a defendant l~,as engaged, but  may  not 
receive resti tution because of a part icular  disposition in tha t  case. 
The limitations on the effectiveness of resti tution through the 
criminal process suggest tha t  additional thought  should be given to 
other types of victim compensation programs. I know that  this has 
been of part icular  concern to the chairman of the  subcommittee 
who previously introduced S. 704, a bill to provide Federal  finan- 
cial assistance to qualifying State victim compensation funds and 
victim and witness assistance programs. 

Similarly, as the subcommittee will hear  shortly, the President 's  
Task Force on Victims of Crime addressed this problem and made 
a number  of recommendations regarding victim compensation pro- 
grams and the critical role they can play in making victims whole 
again. 

The Depar tment  of Just ice current ly is doing an in-depth s tudy 
of all of the  task force proposals, including the proposal for a 
victim compensation program, to determine what  legislative pro- 
posals, if any, meri t  support. 

Finally, I would like to take a few moments  to discuss with you 
the status of the victim and witness guidelines which are mandated  
by section 6 of the act. These guidelines entail  a significant admin- 
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istrative directive to Department of Justice components to insure 
the delivery of victim services and assistance contemplated by the 
act. Section 6 of the act directs the Attorney General to issue 
within 270 days of enactment guidelines for the fair t reatment of 
victims and witnesses in the Federal criminal justice system. I can 
report to the subcommittee that since the enactment of this act, 
hundreds of hours have been devoted to drafting, reviewing, and 
perfecting guidelines covering Federal prosecutors and investiga- 
tors within the Department of Justice, and that these draft guide- 
lines are now undergoing final review prior to issuance by the At- 
torney General in early July. I would like to emphasize that my 
comments regarding these guidelines today of necessity reflect only 
the general outlines, since they are still in draft form; my com- 
ments reflect the general outlines which I anticipate they will take, 
although even these outlines are still subject to modification. 

Senator GRASSLEY. Would you be able to summarize the last four 
pages? I should have probably suggested to all the witnesses the ne- 
cessity of summarizing because we will have the entire text of 
everybody's statement put in the record, if that is your desire. I re- 
quest you to summarize so that  we can stay within 10 minutes, per 
witness. 

Mr. STEPHENS. The guidelines will address the components of the 
Department of Justice and provide them with guidance on provid- 
ing information on services that are available to victims and wit- 
nesses. It will direct them in certain circumstances to advise vic- 
tims and witnesses regarding various stages of the criminal justice 
process affecting their  case. It will require that  they consult with 
the victim during various important stages in the process, such as 
disposition and release on bond. And it will involve some training 
for components of the Department of Justice to insure that they 
are aware of the obligation which this act imposes upon them. 

We anticipate that  it will take some time to develop the neces- 
sary community resources, to develop the operational structure and 
the mechanisms for the delivery of the services, bui we are commit- 
ted to these guidelines and to delivery of these services to victims. 

In summary, I would like to emphasize that the Department has 
pursued aggressively the implementation of the new legislation and 
is committed to continuing its effort in an efficient and expeditious 
manner.  While the act imposes significant new obligations and re- 
sponsibilities upon the Department, we believe that fulfillment of 
these obligations will result not only in substantial benefits to vic- 
tims of crime, but ultimately will redound to the benefit of the 
entire criminal justice system. 

That completes my statement, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate the 
opportunity to appear before the subcommittee today. 

If you have any questions I would be happy to answer them. 
[The prepared statement of Mr. Stephens follows:] 
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lit. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee: 

It is a" pleasure to be here today to discuss with you the 

Department of Justice's implementation of the Victim and Witness 

Protection Act of 1982 which was: passed by the Congress last 

session and signed by the President in October. This legislation 

is a ntilestone in the continuing effort to ensure that rictus 

and witnesses of criminal offenses are glven the level of 

attention and consideration they deserve. For too long our legal 

system has ignored the devastating flnanclal, emotional, and 

physical impact which a criminal offense can have upon the 

victim, and has focused all its attention ~nstead upon ensuring 

that every concern of the accused is accommodated. Similarly, 

witnesses to offenses too often have been treated with 

indifference and disregard, even though they frequently make 

genulne personal sacrifices to do an important civic duty. 

The impact of crime is especially traumatic with respect to 

elderly crime victims who I know are of particular concern to 

this Subcommittee. I would like to take a moment to focus on 

those special concerns of the elderly. A!though the actual 

incidence of crime may be less with respect to our senior 

citizens, the overall impact of'crime on this group is dramatic. 

The sense of vulnerability among many elderly people magnifies 



13 

their fear of crime which in turn results in a significant " 

alteration of their lifestyle. When a purse is snatched or a 

home burglarized, the elderly person frequently experiences great 

fear even though no physical injury resuits. Indeed, the 

pervasive fear of crime suffered by the elderly has been 

identified In one nationwide survey as a more serious personal 

problem than @oor health, lack of financlal resources, 

lonellness, and many other complaints frequently associated with 

advancing age. This fear of crime is an indirect form of 

victimization since it can lead to serious restrictions on the 

. elderly's daily activities and can significantly impoverish their 

lives. Furthermore, the elderly appear to be more suscept!bleto 

crime that is motivated byeconomic gain, and the economic loss 

involved may be particularly disturbing to a person on a fixed 
.! / 
income, as many of our elderly are The inescapable conclusion 

of victimization studies is the realization that the trauma and 

economic impact of crime weigh more heavily upon the elderly. 

The" Victim and Witness Protection Act is, of course, 

designed to benefit all our citizens ~ho may suffer the tragedy 

of being a crime victim or who step forward to do their civic 

duty when they are a witness to a crimin~l offense. The Act 

contains a number of provisions each of which is designed to 

provide a particular type of assistance to victims and witnesses. 

I would like tO address the most significant aspects of this 

legislation, and to advise the Subcommittee of the status of our 

implementation of this Act. In Particular, I would like first to 

24-906 0 - 84 - 2 
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~discuss Our efforts to implement those provisions of the Act 

iwhlch relate to victim impact statements, obstruction of justice 

offenses, and restitution, and then to review the status of the 

guidelines mandated by Sectlon 6 of the Act. • 

One of the most significant aspects of the new Victim and 

Witness Protectlon Act is Section 3 which requires the inclusion 

of a victlm'impact statement as part of a presentence report i' 

ilifiled pursuant to Rule 32(c)(2) of the Federal Rules of Criminal 

'Procedure. Prior tO the enactment of this Act, the general 

practice of probation officers and the courts was to rely upon a 

presentence investigation which focused substantially upon the 

i convicted defendant and his or her particular family, social, 

:economic, and criminal background. While most presentence 

~reports included a brief official version of the offense, they 

~idid not specifically address the physical, economic, and 

psychological trauma suffered by the victim or victims-of the 

ioffense. Consequently, a sentencing court, particularly in a 

case where the court was not exposed to the victim •because t~e 

case was resolved by plea disposition instead of a trial, did not 

always have a 'complete or accurate picture of the impact of the 

offense upon the victim. 

; ! 

The Victim and witness Protection Act requires that" 

effective March I, 1983, presentence investigations include an 

appropriate section describing the impact of the offense upon the 

Victim. Since the Act mandates that this information be filed 
/ 
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with the court pursuant to Federal Criminal Rule 32(~) (2) as.part 

of the presentence report, the primary obligation to ensure that 

the information on victim impact is brought before the court 

rests with the probation office. Nonetheless, the prosecutor has 

an important obligation to assist the probation office in 

obtaining complete and accurate information regarding the imPact 

of the crime on the victim since frequently the Prosecutor or 

investigator may have more ready access to this evidence at an 

early stage of the investigation. Moreover, the prosecutor has a 

responsibility to advise the victim about comunicating with the 

probation office. And, in the last analysis, where courts 

permit, the prosecutor should be a vigorous advocate for the 

victim at the time of sentencing to ensure the court is fully 

cognizant of the~xtent of injury suffered by the victim. We 

have preliminarily advised our prosecutors of their obligations 

• with respect to victim impact statements, and I fully expect that 

the formal guidelines which will be issued by the Department 

shortly will address this issue and underscore the investigative 

agent's and prosecutor' ~ responsibility of assisting the 

probation office in bringing this very important information to 

the attention of the sentencing Judge. 

with respect to Section 4 of the Act which involves 

obstruction of justice and witness tampering provisions, we have 

made a comprehensive analysis of these new statutes and the 

important changes entailed in this legislation. ~We have 

conununicated to the United States Attorneys in the field as well 
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as to Department of Justice attorneys the important changesIn 

the obstruction of justice laws and have provided them wlth 

detailed guidance on the application of these provisions. The 

Department, of course, views the changes in the obstruction 

statutes as slgn!ficant improvements for the protection of 

witnesses who may be threatened or'intimldated, and we have 

encouraged our prosecutors to utilize the new provlsions 

vigorously to prosecute any individuals who interfere with or 

intimidate witnesses to criminal offenses. 

/ 

Significantly, Section 4 of'the Act provides for a civil 

i~Junctlv e remedy to restrain harassment of witnesses, and 

Section 8 of the Act makes non-violation of these intimidation 

and harassment statutes a condition of any release on bail. 

Equally important~ punishment for Violation of the new 

obstruction statutes now extends to ten years imprisonment and a 

$250,000 fine, and'the new provisions cover the intimidation of a 

witness even though a case has "not yet been formally filed. The 

Criminal Division of the Department has maintained ongoing 

supervision of these statutes to provide necessary advice to 

prosecutors and to resolve issues which may arise in the 

application of these new statutes. We expect these statutes to 

be animportant tool in providing witnesses the kind of security 

from intimidation that they deserve. 

Section 7 of the new Act requires that the Attorney General 

report.to Congress within a year of enactment of the Act 
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regarding necessary ~egislation. tO ensure that a federal felon 

derives no profit from his crimesuntil any victim of his 

offenses receives restitution. The Department currently has this 

issue under consideration, andwill report to the Congress its . 

recommendations on this matter in.the next few months. 

~The Department currently is finalizing detailed instructions 

to all our criminal prosecutors regarding the important 

restitution provisions of the new Act. Significantly, Section 5 

of the Act requires a sentencing court specifically to consider 

the issue of restitution, and tostate on the record any reasons 

for failing to impose restitution. In addition, the Act give s 

the court authority to impose a sentence of both restitution and 

incarceration, and it provides for a civil judgment enforcement 

mechanism for victims awarded restitution. The issue of 

restitution for criminal offenses raises a number of difficult 

legal and administrative issues which we have been attempting to 

resolve.' As noted, we are finalizing a set of instructions to 

our prosecutors, and anticipate that within the next 30 to 60 

days, we will have detailed instructions to them to assist them 

in dealing with some of these very difficult questions. 

The restitution issue has raised concerns among participants 

in the criminal justice system regarding the process by which 

restitution is imposed and the procedures which must be followed. 

Many of these issues surfaced in a nationwide teleconference 

hookup this Spring which involved members of the bench, probation 
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officers ~ defense counsel, and federal prosecutors. Within• 
. . . .  

prosecutors offices, concerns have been raised regarding the 

resolution of certain restStution Issuesl for example, where 

there'are multiple victims in a major securities fraud scheme, 

and where there may be a plea disposition Involvlng a limlted 

number of indicted counts, victims of counts that are not charged 

or which are dismissed as part of the disposition may not receive 

restitution. In addition, we need to be vigilant regarding the 

procedures employed in imposing restitution so as to avoi~unduly 

encumbering the sentencing process. As I noted previously, 

however, we have encouraged our prosecutors consistent with their 

overall prosecutorial responsibilities to press for restitution 

in all appropriate cases, and to assist the probation office in 

developing documentation and evidence of injuries suffered by a 

victim. 

Restitution through the criminal process atbest may provide 

only a partial solution to compensating victims of crime." I~-- 

many oases there are victims of crimes for which no one is 

apprehended or convicted, and consequently, restitution from the 

defendant is totally unavailable. In other circumstances where 

• the perpetrator is convicted, he may be unable to pay. In many 

cases a convicted defendant may be incarcerated for asubstantial 

period oftime, andany payment to a victim may be delayed for 

many years. In still other circumstances as noted above a victim 

may be one of several victims of a complex scheme in which a 

defendant has engaged, but may not receive restitution'because of 
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a disposition which involves a limited number of counts. The 

limitations on the effectiveness of restitution throughthe 

criminal process sugge~t that addltional thought should be given 

to other types of victim compensation programs. I know that this 

issue hasbeen of particular concern to the Chairman of this 

Subcommittee who previously introduced S. 704, a bill to provide 

federal financial assistance to qualifying state victim 

compensation funds and victim and witness assistance programs. 

Similarly, the President's Task Force on Victims of Crime 

addressed this problem, and made a number of recommendations 

regarding victim compensation programs and the critical role they 

can play in making victims whole again. The Department of 

Justice currently is doing an indepth study of all of the Task 

Force proposals, including the proposal for a federal victim 

compensation program, to determine what legislative proposals, if 

any, merit support. 

Finally, I would llke to discuss with you the status of the 

victim and witness guidelines which are mandated by Section 6 of 

the Act. These guidellnes entail a significant administrative 

directive to Department of Justice components to ensure the 

delivery of victim services and assistance Contemplated by the 

Act. Section 6 of the Act directs the Attorney General to issue 

within 270 days of enactment guidelines for the fair treatment of 

victims and witnesses in the federal criminal justice system. I 

can report to the Subcommittee that since the enactment of this 

Act, hundreds of hours have been devoted to drafting, reviewing, 
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and perfecting guidelines coveringfederai prosecutors and 

investigators within the Department, and that these draft 

guidelines are now undergoing final review prior to issuance by 

the Attorney General i n early July. I emphasize that the 

proposed guldelines are still under final review, and that, 

therefore, my comments regarding them of necessity reflect only 

the general outlines which I anticipate they will take, and that 

even these outlines are still subject to modification. 

The guidelines which the Department expects to issue shortly 

wil~ apply to all those components of the Department of Justice 

which are engaged in thedetection, investigatio n, and 

prosecution of crimes; responsibility for the delivery of 

services or the provision of consultation and information will be 

assigned based upon the stage of development of a particular 

investigation. In general, the guidelines will incorporate both 

the victim assistance Concepts set out in Section 6 of the Act 

an d a number of recommendations of the President's Task Force on 

Victims of Crime regarding the fair treatment of victims and 

witnesses. In particular, I expectthe guidelines will require 

that crime victims and witnesses be provided with information 

about various services, including the availability of emergency 

medical and social services, compensation for which the victim 

may be entitled, and the avail~ility of various counseling and 

treatment facilities. Inaddition, I anticipate the guidelines 

will require the responsible Department component to keep a 

victim or witness fully advised of the various stages of the 
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criminal justice process involving his case~ victims and 

witnesses of serious crimes will be advised of steps that can be 

taken to protect them from intimidation, of the arrest of the 

accused, of court scheduling ~hanges, of the release of the 

accused from custody, of an acceptance of a disposition in the 

case, Of the victim's role in preparation of the victim impact 

statement, and of sentencing procedures, among other~. 

Furthermore, I anticipate that the guidelines will direct 

responsible components, whether they be investigators or 

prosecutors, to consult with victims of serious crimes regarding 

significant stages of their criminal case. In particular, I 

expect Department personnel will be instructed to consult with a 

victimabout, among other things, release of an accused pending 

further judicial proceedings, decisions regarding dismissal of 

charges, plea negotiations, sentencing recommendations, and 

restitution which may be available. 

With respect to the victim impact statement which I 

discussed previously, I anticipate that the guidelines will 

direct Department personnel to cooperate fully with the 

appropriate probation officer by providing all relevant 

information in the possession of the prosecutor to assist in the 

preparation of an accurate and comprehensive victim impact 

statement. Also, the victim will be advised regarding how to 

connnunicate directly with the probation officer in order to 

assist in the preparation of a victim impact statement. With 
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respect to restitution, as I discussed earlier, the guidelines 

will direct federal prosecutors to'advocate fully the rights of 

victims on the issue of restitution unless such advocacy would 

unduly prolong or complicate the sentencing proceeding or unless 

such advocacy would be inconsistent with their other 

responsibilities as prosecutors. 

Finally, I anticlpatethat the guidelines will provide for 

training of personnel concernlngtheir new responsibilities under 

the ~Idelines and the Victim and Witness Protection Act. The 

task of ensuring that all Department personnel who are involved 

in the investigative and prosecutorial aspects of the federal 

criminal system are fully apprised of their additional 

responsibilities under this Act and that they understand how to 

deal with those new obligations is, of course, not an easy task. 

I expect that-followlng the issuance of the guidelines by the 

Attorney General in early July, the various field components, 

including United States Attorneys and the investigative agencies~ 

will need a period of time in which to develop compliance 

procedures and mechanisms. During the next few months, 

responsible component~ of the Department will resolve operational 

problems, gather additlonal data regarding available community 

resources, receive appropriate training, and design forms and 

pamphlets to assist in the effort of providing victims and 

witnesses with necessary information. Consistent with available 

resources, I anticipate we will encourage the development of a 

victim/witness coordinator in the larger United States Attorneys 
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Offices to assist in the implementation of the guidelines and 

provide oversight on the treatment of victims and witnesses. In 

smaller offices, we expect it may be more appropriate to ~ 

designate existing personnel who can be trained appropriately to 

deliver the victim/witness services contemplated by the Act and 

the guidelines. 

In sum, the Department" has pursued aggressively the 

implementation of ~his new legislation and is co~nitted to 

continuing its efforts in an effective and expeditious manner. 

We believe that this Act is an important first step on the path 

to fair treatment of victims and wltnesses who have for too long 

been neglected by our criminal justice system. While the Act 

imposes significant'additional'obligations and responsibilities 

upon Department personnel, we believe that the fulfillment of 

those obligations will result not only in substantial benefits to 

victims and witnesses of crime, but ultimately will redound to 

the benefit of the entire criminal justice system. 

That completes my statement, Mr. Chairman. If there are any 

questions, I will be happy to answer them. 
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Senator GRASSLEY. Please stay for questions. 
Mrs. Herr ington,  first of all I would like to congratulate you on 

your  new position as Assistant Attorney General. Has there been 
any  date set for your  swearing in? 

Mrs. HERRINGTON. July 13 at 11 o'clock in the great  hall. And 
you are cer ta inly invited. 

Senator  GRASSLEY. Congratulations. 
Mrs. HERRINGTON. Thank you very much. 
Senator GRASSLEY. Would you proceed. 
Mrs. HERRINGTON. Thank you. 
Mr. Chairman, I sincerely appreciate your invitation to appear 

before the subcommittee to discuss the issues of interest to you 
from the perspective of my previous role as chairman of the Presi- 
dent's Task Force on Victims of Crime. At the outset, I want to 
commend you and the subcommittee for the level of personal inter- 
est you have demonstrated in the problems of the elderly as vic- 
tims of crime. I have been extremely gratified by the level of con- 
cern expressed over the past several weeks by committees and indi- 
vidual Members of the Senate and House and the commitment to 
address the complex issues associated with criminal victimization. 

I would also just like to take a moment to acknowledge and 
thank Senator Heinz, who I know who will be speaking after me, 
or perhaps in the middle, for his deep personal commitment and 
sincere interest in these victims and also to compliment you on the 
witnesses that I see outside, Mr. McGillis, Susan Hillenbrand, Mr. 
Sunderland. You have chosen some very outstanding and knowl- 
edgeable people to testify before your subcommittee. 

Senator GRASSLEY. Thank you. 
Mrs. HERRINGTON. I know that many of the members of the sub- 

committee are familiar with the report of the President's Task 
Force on Victims of Crime, but I have brought with me several ad- 
ditional copies for your use. 

The task force was established by Presidential Executive order in 
April of last year. For the next several months, we interviewed pro- 
fessionals, both in and out of the criminal justice systems, who are 
responsible for serving victims. We reviewed the available litera- 
ture and research on the subject of criminal victimization. And, 
most important ly ,  we spoke with citizens from around the country 
whose lives have been altered by crime. 

What  we found was deeply disturbing. What  we found, essential- 
ly, is tha t  crime has made victims of us all. It affects the way we 
think,  where we live, where we go, what  we buy, how we raise our 
children, and, of particular interest  to this subcommittee, we found 
t h a t  crime deeply affects the quality of our lives as we age. Every 
citizen of this country  is more impoverished, less safe, because of 
the fear of crime. And, ra ther  than  alter a system tha t  has proved 
itself incapable of dealing with crime, society has altered itself. 

Nowhere is our society's reaction to the fear of crime more ap- 
paren t  than  among the aging. This is true, in part, because the el- 
derly are acutely aware both of their  vulnerabili ty and of the dev- 
as ta t ing  impact  even a so-called minor crime may have on their 
lives. Because of the physical effects of aging, elderly victims are 
more likely to suffer-disabling injuries such as fractured hips or 
broken bones in an incident that,  to a younger victim might pro- 
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duce no serious injury at all. Similarly, a high proportion of the el- 
derly live on very limited or ffLxed incomes that  cover no more than 
their basic necessities. When crime s t r ikes-- the  theft  of a social se- 
curity check or a purse snatching-- these elderly victims are seldom 
able to absorb the economic loss without t remendous hardship. To 
an elderly crime victim, this can mean that  he or she is unable, at  
least temporarily, to buy food or pay the rent. And when you are 
old and alone, where do you turn  for help? All too often, they 
become even more fearful, and isolated, and alone--helpless  to 
undo the damage inflicted by the crime and t raumatized by the 
frightening awareness tha t  it can happen again. 

Essential trips outside the home are reduced--no visits to the  
doctor, fewer trips to the grocery, and the usual short  walks 
through the neighborhood to visit friends for the companionship, so 
deeply t reasured by the elderly, can seem too dangerous and fright- 
ening to contemplate. 

One of the terrible ironies is that  on top of the cruel burden in- 
flicted by the criminal act itself, the elderly victim is often the 
most poorly t reated client of the criminal justice system. 

Time and again, the task force was presented with evidence 
showing that  victims of crime are victimized twice--f i rs t  by the 
criminal, and  then by the criminal justice system. After a crime is 
committed, the  victim may be interviewed, photographed, physical- 
ly examined, the home dusted for fingerprints. Police officers come 
to the victim at work, call at  odd hours to ask that  he a t tend a line 
up; the victim's name and address show up in the newspapers and 
on television. When the case moves to court, the victim may have 
to take t ime off from work or, in the case of the elderly, find af- 
fordable t ransportat ion to the courthouse, only to discover tha t  the  
trial has been rescheduled for the convenience of the judge or one 
of the attorneys. And, of course, this frequently happens more than  
once. The case may  have arisen because someone was robbed, or 
raped, or maimed; but  now the case belongs to lawyers and judges 
while the victim is the forgotten element  in the equation that  is 
expected to equal justice. 

If the victim happens to be an elderly citizen afflicted with any 
of the infirmities typical of the aging process--slow of speech, hard 
of hearing, impaired vis ion-- they are all too commonly t reated 
within the criminal justice system with the same insensitivity tha t  
abounds elsewhere in our society. Police, judges, and lawyers may 
discount them as witnesses; failing to distinguish between mental  
capacity and physical infirmity, and coldly, oblivious to the steps 
that  might be taken to ease the hardship imposed on the elderly 
victim by physical impairment.  

And what  are the results of the system's t rea tment  of the the el- 
derly and other  crime victims? Alienation--to the extent  tha t  more 
than half  of the  crimes are never reported to the police. Frustra-  
t i o n - b e c a u s e  of the insensitive and thoughtless t rea tment  when 
they try to do their  duty as citizens, victims frequently become re- 
luctant and ineffective witnesses thereby, unintentionally,  encour- 
aging plea bargaining by the prosecutor or outright dismissal of the 
c a s e . '  

As a former prosecutor myself, I can assure you, Mr. Chairman, 
that  I have been profoundly affected by my experience with the 
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Pres ident ' s  Task Force on Victims of Crime. It is the sincerest hope 
of my  colleagues on the task force and I tha t  our report  and its rec- 
ommendat ions  will lead to effective action at every level of govern- 
m e n t  and by policymakers in every segment  of society which bears 
on the  t r e a t m e n t  of victims of crime. You may be assured that, in 
m y  new role as Assistant At torney General, and, hopefully, as we 
implement  the  Sta te  and local assistance program proposed by the 
Pres iden t  and current ly  pending in the Senate, I will do everything 
in my  power to represent  the interests  of elderly victims of crime 
and  to encourage the  implementat ion of the kinds of measures  that  
will provide for victims of crime tha t  we seek for all--justice. 

I look forward to working with the subcommittee in the months 
ahead,  and I will be pleased to respond now to any questions you 
m ay  have. 

Senator  GRASSLEY. First of all, let me thank  each of you for your 
outs tanding tes t imony and also your  presentat ion of where  we are 
today,  because it outlines the  environment  from which we must  
move forward to give even fur ther  consideration to the status of 
vict ims of crime. 

My first  question is to you, Mrs. Herrington.  What  is your  opin- 
ion of  provision in the new law concerning victim impact state- 
ments?  Does this need to be s t rengthened any more than what  is 
present ly  in section 3? 

Mrs. HERRI1NGTON. Well, as you may  be aware, Senator  Grassley, 
the  recommendat ions  of our task  force were quite explicit in what  
we felt  in this area. We felt of course it is important  for there  to be 
an impact  s t a t ement  from the victim bu t  if the victim chooses, we 
feel tha t  it is equal ly impor tant  tha t  the  victim have a right to 
speak  at  the  sentencing. This was for several reasons. 

Fi rs t  of all, of course I th ink it is very important  that  when the 
judge is doing justice,  when he is balancing the competing interests 
as judges  do, tha t  he be able to see and evaluate  firsthand exactly 
the  ramificat ions and the actions of the  defendant  and that  before 
he  can pass a sentence he must  know clearly, exactly what  his sen- 
tence is going to include and he must  know the punishment  that  is 
expected by the  actions that  the criminal did. We feel that  this 
most  sincerely can be done most effectively by the victims them- 
selves if they  wish to be present. So many  arguments  against  this 
have  been  tha t  it would be  too t ime consuming. But we had victims 
and witnesses from all over the  country come to us and say you; 
know when  the criminal is apprehended,  and when he is brought  
for sentencing, the  probation officer goes through a probation 
report ,  they  ta lk  to the ministers, they ta lk  to the employers, they 
go through the mili tary history, the psychiatric history, the em- 
p loyment  history, the  education history, they  bring all this up and 
they  wri te  a repor t  and then the judge may also send out for a 
complete  new psychological workup. This takes months, perhaps. 
And wha t  we are  asking for is a very short  period of time that  the 
vict im may  address the court. 

We did find in some instances tha t  when there was simply a 
vict im impact  s ta tement  written, tha t  the judge did not read it. 
Nobody can force any judge to read it and, unfortunately,  I think 
we are  dealing in an e ra - -and  I come from this era--so  I do not 
feel as apologetic, that the victims were not mentioned in law 



27 

school. They were not an issue that  we considered and I th ink it is 
just  as new to many of the judges and if they are going to use the 
discretion tha t  they may use, they may  not read this impact  state- 
ment. Even if they choose to read it, t imes change and conditions 
change and sometimes the impact s ta tement  is wri t ten months  
before the final sentencing actually comes about  because of the  
many continuances that  happen and sometimes conditions of vic- 
tims change and the court  must  be able to be aware of tha t  also. 

We do think it is very important  tha t  the victim have both the  
right to wri te  it and if they choose, the right to speak to it at  the 
sentencing. 

Senator GRASSLEY. I am not a lawyer bu t  the independence of the 
judiciary makes it difficult for us to get fair consideration of the 
victim's economic impact s ta tement  by the judge. Is there  anything 
that  we can do to mandate  tha t  proper consideration? 

Mrs. HERRINGTON. Well, we are going to be addressing the Judi- 
cial College this fall and hopefully this will be an issue that  we will 
raise there  and talk with them about it. 

Senator GRASSLEY. And in similar landmark  pieces of legislation, 
using that  route of dialog with the judiciary, has it been fairly suc- 
cessful in getting consideration of things like this, as an example? 

Mrs. HERRINGTON. Well, I am not sure about that, Senator Grass- 
ley. I do not know. But I do know that as people become aware of 
the problem they do change and we have had more than one judge 
say, "I could weep for what I have done for victims, I did not know. 
I was not aware." 

So we think as it is brought to their attention that perhaps they 
are not getting the full picture they should have at sentencing that 
they will become aware and want to change their behavior. 

Senator GRASSLEY. You gave an example of what you can do to 
get consideration of the judiciary of this weighty evidence. But is 
there anything that we need to do here as Congress beyond the leg- 
islation that was passed? 

Mrs. HERRINGTON. I would like to think about that answer and 
perhaps get together with my colleagues in the Justice Department 
and respond in writing to you, if that would be permissible. 

But we certainly appreciate your interest. 
[The following was received for the record:] 
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U.S. D e p a r t m e n t  o f  Jus t ice  

Office of the Assistant Aaorney General Washington, D.C 20.531 

JAN - 4 1984 

The Honorable Charles E. Grassley 
Chairman 
Subcommittee on Aging 
Senate Committee on Labor 

& Human Resources 
Washington, D.C. 20510 

Dear Mr. Chairman: 

This is in response to your quest ion posed during the hearing 
before the Subcommittee on Aging r e l a t i v e  to the d e s i r a b i l i t y  of 
a l e g i s l a t i v e  proposal to correct  the i n e q u i t i e s  of the 
sen tenc ing  process as they af fec t  vict ims of crime, 

As I had ind ica ted  e a r l i e r  in my testimony, I feel  very s t rongly  
tha t  tile v i c t im  of crime should be allowed to speak and otherwise 
provide information both during the prepara t ion  of the 
presentence  report  and before the judge at the time of 
sen tenc ing .  The A~n in i s t r a t i on  is cu r ren t ly  examining issues 
a t t endan t  to such vic t im p resen ta t ions  and I look forward to 
being able  to share the r e s u l t s  of our study witll you in the near 
fu ture .  

The National  J u d i c i a l  College at  Reno, with funding by the  
Nat ional  I n s t i t u t e  of Ju s t i ce ,  recent ly  held the f i r s t  nat ional  
conference on v ic t ims  for s t a t e  court judges. More than 100 
judges r ep resen t ing  the s t a t e  and municipal judges of every s t a t e  
a t t ended .  The conference focused on the treatment of vict ims by 
the cr iminal  j u s t i c e  system and the ways the courts could be t te r  
respond to the v i c t i m ' s  needs. Several v ic t ims of crime also 
t e s t i f i e d  regarding thei r  personal experiences with the court 
system and how i t  impacted the i r  l i v e s .  

~nong the many i ssues  the judges addressed at t h i s  conference 
were the use of v i c t i m  impact s tatements in court proceedings; 
the v i c t i m ' s  r i gh t  to protec t ion  from in t imida t ion  and harassment 
by the defendants;  and, the v i c t i m ' s  role  with respect to the 
process ing  of the case from the i n i t i a l  v i c t i m i z a t i o n  to 
sen tenc ing .  



29 

I am extremely g r a t i f i e d  by the prel iminary r e s u l t s  of the 
conference. The t r i a l  judges concluded that a number of s teps  
can and should be taken within the j u d i c i a l  system to help 
victims of crime and are reconlnending to t h e i r  col leagues  a 
s e r i e s  of steps toward improved cons idera t ion  and treatment.  
Moreover, many of the judges indicated that they would re turn  to 
the i r  home communities and s e n s i t i z e  other judges and criminal  
j u s t i c e  o f f i c i a l s  to the p l i gh t  of victims of crime. 

I be l ieve  th i s  type of e f fo r t  by and with the j u d i c i a r y  may be 
the most e f f e c t i v e  means of pursuing our goal to put the v ic t im 
in proper perspec t ive  throughout the j u d i c i a l  process. 
Additional federal  l e g i s l a t i o n  would appear to be unnecessary at  
th i s  time. 

? i ~ e l y ,  

AsSistant Attorney General 

Senator G ~ s s ~ Y .  Maybe I gave more weight or maybe I inter- 
preted your point on this being more weighty than  you intended. 

Is it a major problem tha t  judges are not looking at  the victim 
impact s ta tement? 

Mrs. HERRINGTON. Yes, it is a major--well,  it is a major problem 
if the judges are not hearing from the victim one way or another.  

Senator GRASSLEY. I agree with that. 
Now through this legislation where it has to be taken into con- 

sideration, is it a problem? 
Mrs. HERRINGTON. I th ink  it is a problem. 
Senator GRASSLEY. Very well. We must  look into this matter.  
Jay, in your s ta tement  you mention tha t  this law is just  a first 

step on the path to fair t rea tment  of victims. What  I would like to 
have is your  anticipation of what  might be a good second step or 
third step. 

Mr. STEPHENS. I suppose, Senator, tha t  s ta tement  starts from the 
premise tha t  the  passage of a law all too frequently is viewed as an 
instant solution to a problem. It is the implementat ion of the law 
which frequently takes a long period of time, goes over a lot of dif- 
ficult hurdles and runs into all the administrat ive difficulties tha t  
implementat ion of any significant piece of legislation encounters. 

! think in the victim impact s ta tement  area, for example, a lot of 
tha t  burden will fall in two places: one, in the probation office, and 
the committee may wish to exercise oversight of how tha t  is being 
implemented, whether  the probation offices throughout  the country 
are indeed including victim impact statements. 

Some courts, for example, do not permit the prosecutor to speak 
at sentencing. They may very well not permit the victim to speak 
at  sentencing as Mrs. Herrington has pointed out. That  is a prob- 
lem over which you may want  to exercise oversight. 

Similarly, we are encouraging prosecutors and advising them to 
be a convincing advocate for the rights of the victim. I believe we 
can do tha t  and move forward on tha t  because it is a na tura l  role 
for the prosecutor, to express to the court the damage tha t  was 
done in a part icular  case. 

24-906 0 - 84 - 3 
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In the  area  of restitution, there are some genuine difficulties as 
far as util izing the  criminal justice process for restitution, and this 
is an  a rea  on which I th ink the committee may wish to continue to 
focus. 

As I pointed out, there are a number  of shortfalls in using resti- 
tution, not  the  least of which is the process and the procedure. In 
the  teleconferences tha t  we had this spring which included mem- 
bers of the  bench, defense counsel prosecutors, and probation offi- 
cers. There  was an entire range of opinion expressed as to the 
ramificat ions of t h a t  kind of hearing and what  it would mean for 
the sentencing area: Whether  it would mean an entire civil pro- 
ceeding, or whether  it would mean another  ju ry  trial. Some courts 
are looking at  t h a t  as a possibility, which would mean tha t  you 
have to have witnesses, and affidavits, and a broad range of proof 
in order to establish restitution. 

We would prefer t ha t  the sentencing process not become unduly 
complicated--otherwise,  you are imposing an additional burden 
upon the  victim to go through another  whole stage of a complicated 
process. So this is an area tha t  I th ink  would bear continued over- 
sight and review by the subcommittee. 
Senator GRASSLEY. Let us suppose that we have a convicted per- 

petrator who served his time in a Federal work program and he 
fails to make restitution and then consider that ordinarily Federal 
employee wages are not subject to garnishment and except in limit- 
ed circumstances like child support. Will restitution be categorized 
as a limited exception to this overall practice? 

Mr. STZPHENS. Whether restitution receives a priority, that is dif- 
ficult for me to address. I would think that the act does entail a 
civil judgment provision whereby, for example, if a court has im- 
posed restitution of $1,000 on the defendant and he also serves 5 
years in jail, when he comes out, if the victim still has not been 
compensated; a civil action could be filed for that $1,000; the 
normal civil remedies, I believe, would apply, be garnishment, or 
attachment, or something of that nature to enforce the judgment. 

So I believe those remedies would be available to a victim in a 
civil action to enforce the restitution which the court had opposed. 
Senator GRASSLEY. Well probably that is a point that we ought 

to pursue then. 
Mr. STEPHZNS. That is a point which in the implementation of 

the Act raises a number of concerns because the more restitution is 
viewed as part of a civil process, and less as part of the criminal 
process, the stronger the argument is to make the whole restitution 
proceeding another civil lawsuit. 

Senator GRASSLEY. Then we would lose ground. 
Mr. ST~.PSENS. And then we would lose ground. 
Senator GRASSLZY. Yes. 
Mr. STEPHENS. There is a very tenuous balance there. Our view is 

that we want to maintain the basic simplicity of the sentencing 
process and within that structure and perameters to have as much 
restitution as possible. 

Senator GRASSLEY. Mrs. Herrington, going back now to the Presi- 
dent's task force, as you were listening to all the witnesses and all 
the cases, did you hear of any cases where victims were unable to 
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afford the cost of picking up their  property from enforcement offi- 
cials because of the cost of transportation? 

Mrs. HERIUNGTON. Not because of the cost of t ransportat ion but 
we did hear  it because of the cost that,  say their  car has been 
towed or taken away, they could not afford to pay for the storage 
fees. We heard tha t  and they had to wait a long time to get it and 
then, of course, the storage fees went up, so tha t  they could not 
obtain the necessary funds. 

Senator GRASSLEY. Well, I could ask both of you, who pays for 
the cost of transporting the property? 

Mrs. HERRINGTON. The victim. 
Senator GRASSLEY. Would tha t  warran t  legislative change? Is it a 

serious enough problem tha t  we ought to be looking at  it? 
Mrs. HERRINGTON. I th ink it is a problem. I do not know whether  

I would categorize it as a serious problem. I th ink it is a problem 
for some people, very definitely. There are so many real serious 
problems, I hesitate to use the word "serious" in this context. 

Mr. SVEPHENS. Senator, I would add tha t  the hear t  of this prob- 
lem, I believe, is the failure to re turn  property expeditiously. If  
someone is burglarized and they have their  TV, stereo, car, or 
whatever else stolen and it remains in the criminal justice system 
for 2 years pending appeal, after awhile the victim decides, he 
might as well not have gone in the criminal justice system if he 
has to go out and buy a new car, stereo, or a new refrigerator, 
whatever may have been taken from the premises. 

We are trying to encourage prosecutors to re turn tha t  property 
as soon as possible. Perhaps use some alternative method, photo- 
graphs, some other type of identification in the criminal trial proc- 
ess. 

The actual cost of receiving tha t  property or going to pick up 
tha t  property while the victim may bear it, probably is not so sub- 
stantial  as to be one of the premier problems tha t  the committee 
would want  to address. 

Senator GRASSLEY. I have one final question then. Both of you 
may respond, but I will direct it to Mrs. Herrington. 

What  other types of major problems do you foresee tha t  this leg- 
islation, or the law does not address? Any other categories tha t  you 
would want  to mention for us? 

Mrs. HERRINGTON. Well, there are many categories tha t  I hope at  
some time will come to legislation, many. 

Senator GRASSLEY. So you feel tha t  what we have done so far is 
just  really a basic start? 

Mrs. HERRINGTON. I think it is a tremendous start. Jus t  tremen- 
dous. It is a good basic s tar t  and I th ink it will do a great  deal 
having this type of legislation in this area. 

Senator GRASSLEY. I do not want  to abuse the time of other wit- 
nesses so I will thank  you for your excellent presentations. 

And also let me announce, not only for myself but other commit- 
tee members who cannot be here because of these other subcom- 
mittees tha t  are meeting, as well as for succeeding witnesses, tha t  
we probably can anticipate getting questions in writing f rom--  
surely from me but also maybe from other people as well. So we 
would appreciate your responses, and also let me announce tha t  for 
you or for anybody else on the witness list tha t  there will be 15 
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days when  the record is left open for additional test imony or cor- 
rections to be submitted and we will receive wri t ten test imony 
from anybody who would care to give it. 

So t hank  you very  much for your  participation. 
Mr. STEPHENS. Thank you very much, Senator. 
Mrs. HERRINGTON. Thank you again for your interest in this 

area. 
Senator GRASSLEY. Our next group is a panel, and I would invite 

them, Douglas Phillips and Daniel McGillis, to come to the table at 
this time. Douglas Phillips is an attorney with the Washington 
firm of Covington & Burling, and a member of the American Bar 
Association Committee on Victims. He is here to share with us the 
ABA's point of view on victims' compensation. 

Also on the panel is Daniel McGillis, assistant director, Harvard 
Law School, Center for Criminal Justice, who will discuss his work 
on the major study of victim crime, victims' compensation pro- 
grams. 

Gentlemen, I know that you have come away from busy sched- 
ules. We appreciate it and we anticipate your helping us arrive at 
some resolution of the issues that are before us through your testi- 
mony. I would ask you to proceed in the way that I introduced you, 
please. 

STATEMENTS OF DOUGLAS E. PHILLIPS, AMERICAN BAR ASSOCI- 
ATION, COMMITTEE ON VICTIMS SECTION OF CRIMINAL JUS- 
TICE, AND DANIEL McGILLIS, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, CENTER 
FOR CRIMINAL JUSTICE, HARVARD LAW SCHOOL, A PANEL 

Mr. PHILLIPS. My name is Douglas Phillips, Mr. Chairman, and I 
appear before you today on behalf of the American Bar Associ- 
ation's criminal justice section Victims Committee, to express the 
support of the ABA for the principles embodied in S. 704. The title 
of this  hear ing is "Does victim compensation work?" Of course, not 
many  victims of serious crimes are likely to believe that  anything 
will t ru ly  compensate  them, or make them whole, but  the phrase 
"vict im compensation," I think, makes  the point that  assistance to 
vict ims is not  a mat te r  of  grace; it is a ma t te r  of justice. And while 
the  cr iminal  act  cannot be erased, victim assistance can, at least to 
some extent,  vindicate the victim's right to security, redress the 
imbalance  of benefi ts  and burdens, and honor the Government 's  ob- 
ligation to prevent  further victimization. 

By way  of background, I might jus t  men t ion  that  the criminal 
just ice section of the  ABA represents  the fulI range of participants 
in the  cr iminal  justice system, from prosecutors to defense attor- 
neys to judges. And for a number  of years  the ABA, through its 
cr iminal  just ice section, has been on record in support  of the kinds 
of programs addressed by the legislation you are considering. This 
goes back to 1967 and it includes support  both for specialized ef- 
forts in areas  such as rape and family violence, and for a more 
comprehensive  approach. The ABA in part icular testified before 
the  President ' s  Task Force on Victims in 1982 and we are pleased 
tha t  the  final repor t  of the  victims task  force contains recommen- 
dat ions of Federal  aid to compensation and service assistance pro- 
grams. 
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We appear once again today to repeat our firm belief tha t  vic- 
tims whom the criminal justice system has not been able success- 
fully to protect deserve the assistance of the Federal Government  
in dealing with financial and service needs occasioned by the crime 
against them. It has been pointed out more than  once the victims 
of serious crime often report tha t  they are victimized not once but 
several t imes by a single cr ime--f i rs t  by the criminal act and then 
by the medical bills and the t r a u m a  and all the other conse- 
quences. Even after the criminal act occurs, this secondary victim- 
ization can, with considerable effort, to some extent  be prevented 
or reduced. We believe tha t  doing so should be viewed as an essen- 
tial function of the criminal justice system and tha t  the Federal 
Government  should support this function. 

Of course, there has been, during the past decade, considerable 
public interest  in the crime victim, and we have seen a number  of 
States f'mally beginning to express new concern for the rights and 
interests of victims with increased restitution, protection from in- 
t imidation and the use of victim impact statements.  We have also 
seen new laws tha t  require better information from victims on the 
processing of their  cases. 

And, of course, we have seen the adoption of the Victim and Wit- 
ness Assistance Act in 1982 at  the Federal level; we applaud the 
passage of tha t  legislation. The fact tha t  only minimal  costs are 
necessary to implement  that  act does not detract  from its validity 
or potential impact. But we do note that,  while many States have 
been willing if not always able to support victim assistance, the 
Federal Government  does not current ly  provide funds for victim 
compensation. We believe tha t  Federal aid to State and local assist- 
ance programs is only fair. As the President 's  task force on victims 
pointed out in its final report, most of the State compensation pro- 
grams include compensation for Federal crime victims, and local 
service programs assist victims and witnesses of Federal crimes. So 
State and local funds do encourage cooperation in Federal prosecu- 
tion, and as the task force noted, the Federal Government has 
made considerable sums of money available for the education and 
rehabili tation of State prisoners. We agree with the task force tha t  
Federal funds should also assist the innocent taxpayer victimized 
by these prisoners. 

Now, it would be possible to set up separate Federal programs 
for victims of Federal crimes or to limit Federal reimbursement to 
a part  of a State program that  assists a Federal victim, but even if 
the administrat ive problems with such an approach could be over- 
come, we believe tha t  either approach would be confusing to the 
average citizen and certainly to the average victim who would be 
unconcerned with the Federal-State distinction and hard pressed to 
understand why some victims are compensated or assisted by their  
Federal Government  while others are not. 

Finally, the Federal Government, both through Congress and the 
Federal courts, has quite properly recognized and protected the 
rights of those accused and even convicted of crimes. The challenge 
is to match at  the Federal level, as well as the State level, respect 
for the rights of criminal defendants with due regard for the rights 
and interests of victims. We believe S. 704 is an opportunity for 
Congress to meet this challenge. 
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We do have a few specific comments  on part icular  aspects of the 
le.gislation. We believe that  the principle of Federal  assistance to 
crime vict ims is of sufficient import  to war ran t  expenditure of gen- 
eral  revenue  funds. So, while we are delighted that  the authors of 
the  bill have  identified i t  as an al ternat ive source of funding, we 
would have supported use of other  sources of funding as well. At 
the  same time, we do believe that  it is necessary and appropriate 
for the  cour t  to consider the  ability of the defendant  to pay. 

Section 3802 refers  to the distribution of Federal  funds to qualify- 
ing Sta te  crime victims' compensation funds. This is an important  
and central  aspect  of the bill. I t  specifies the requirements  for eligi- 
bil i ty of S ta te  funds. The first is that  the State  fund compensate all 
the  vict ims of crime, and the second is that  it provide psychological 
counseling to any  victim who needs such counseling. 

We believe tha t  the  first of these requirements  is too broad and 
tha t  the  second incorrectly singles out psychological injury for 
manda to ry  coverage, whi le- - taken  a lone-- i t  would leave other  
sorts of in jury or coverage for other  sorts of injury optional. So we 
would suggest  focusing on a range of injurious crimes by, first, re- 
quir ing tha t  eligible State programs compensate all victims or their  
surviving dependents  who have incurred actual expenses directly 
or indirectly re la ted to physical or psychological injury or death 
caused by  the cr ime and, second, limiting Federal re imbursement  
to a port ion of the  compensation paid by the State  to victims or 
their  surviving dependents  for actual  expenses relating directly or 
indirectly to physical  and/or  psychological injuries or death caused 
by the crime. 

The first  suggestion is designed to insure that  the State pro- 
grams re imburse  victims of injurious crimes. It would insure that  
nonres ident  victims or victims of Federal  crimes are covered, but  it 
would not  require  as a condition of eligibility compensation for all 
crimes. 

The second suggestion would limit the Federal  contribution to 
areas  recommended  for coverage under  the Uniform Crime Victims 
Repara t ion  Act, which would be medical care, rehabilitation, reha- 
bil i tat ive occupational  training, funeral  expenses, loss of wages and 
rep lacement  services, and certain other  losses. Reimbursement  
would not  be provided for property loss or pain for suffering, and 
tha t  I th ink  is the  key difference. 

Most  S ta tes - - in  fact, vir tual ly all States now--follow the Uni- 
form Act model and they do not compensate victims for property 
loss or noneconomic pain and suffering. There is no question that  
p roper ty  loss, especially in the case of the elderly, can be devastat- 
ing, bu t  we believe that  first priority should be directed to victims 
who have been psychologically or physically injured. States tha t  
are  willing and able to cover additional expenses would not be pre- 
cluded from doing so. But we do not think that  they should be re- 
quired to do so as a condition of receiving funds. 

Genera l ly  we believe that  Federal  funds should reimburse States'  
compensat ion programs without  a lot of strings at tached and we 
approve leaving to the discretion of the States the minimum and 
m a x i m u m  amoun t  of award, but  we would support  a requirement  
tha t  the  victims repor t  to law enforcement  officials within 72 hours 
of the  crime unless there was good cause for failing to do so. We 
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would also recommend a good samari tan provision to require cover- 
age of those injured trying to prevent  a crime or acting to appre- 
hend a perpetrator.  People in that  position are certainly also vic- 
tims of crime and, like the reporting requirement,  such a provision 
would encourage increased citizen involvement in crime control. 

The maximum State re imbursement  under the proposed legisla- 
tion is 10 percent of a State 's  previous year 's  compensation awards. 
We question whether  a 10 percent maximum re imbursement  is suf- 
ficient. Senator  Heinz pointed out  in introducing the legislation 
that  vir tually all the State victim compensation programs are  expe- 
riencing fmancial  problems. Many are forced to limit the amount  
of their awards; some are afraid to advertise their benefits for fear 
that  people will take advantage of the program and deplete availa- 
ble resources. There are often long waiting periods before compen- 
sation claims are processed. This can severely disadvantage espe- 
cially the most needy victims. 

Senator Heinz has est imated that  this legislation would generate  
a minimum of $45 million and a maximum of $125 million in frees, 
penalties and forfeitures. This would mean tha t  the compensation 
portion would be somewhere between $22.5 and $62.5 million. 
States in 1981 paid a total of $49 million in compensation awards; 
10 percent of that,  of course, would be $4.9 million. This means  
that,  even with some additional costs under the new legislation, the 
amount  collected for compensation purposes would be considerably 
more than 10 percent of tha t  awarded by the States and a fair 
amount  would necessarily under the terms of the act be re turned  
to the U.S. Treasury. 

So we would suggest tha t  the maximum percentage of reimburs- 
able payments  to the States be raised to at  least 25 percent. There 
would still be economic incentives for States to be responsible and 
this higher maximum would not commit the Government  beyond 
funds at  its disposal since 50 percent  of the  amount  collected would 
be an absolute ceiling. 

On section 3802, we would also point out tha t  the language con- 
cerning psychological counseling may be ambiguous. It seems to re- 
quire the State fund is to provide the counseling and, of course, we 
believe that  victims should have the opportunity to choose their  
own counselor. 

Section 3803 provides that  50 percent of the funds collected by 
the crime victims assistance fund are to support  victim and witness 
assistance projects. Ha l f  of this amount  is to be distributed at  the 
discretion of the Attorney General for Federal  activities. The bill 
does not specify how the other half  will be distributed. We presume 
this would be available for State and local programs but  we think 
this point should be clarified. We also strongly recommend that  the 
legislation specifically state tha t  specialized assistance programs, 
like rape crisis centers and domestic violence shelters, as well as 
general witness assistance programs, are eligible for funds under  
this section. 

Section 3804 calls for the re turn  of unexpended funds to the Gen- 
eral Fund of the U.S. Treasury. Although we would like to see the 
maximum percentage eligibility for State participation raised, we 
agree with the provisions of this section. 

Thank you. 
[The prepared s ta tement  of Mr. Phillips and responses to ques- 

tions asked follow:] 
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Mr. ~ulirman and Members of the subcommittee: 

My name is Douglas Phillips. I am an attorney with the Washington law 

fizm of ~ & Burling. As a ~ of the victims C0mmittee of the American 

Bar Assceiat~'s Section of ~ Justice, I a~poar b e f o r e  ~ ,u  ~ to  

express the ABA's support for the principles ~ .in S. 704 -- federal aid 

for direct financial ,cm~ensation to crime victims and support of victim assistance 

trea~msnt programs. 

Of course, few victims of ~ious crim~ are ~ y  to belle%~ that any 

amount of money can truly "(rmpensate" them for the losses the~ 'have suffered. 

~he phrase "victim cu~pmmatlce" reflects the point that assistance ~ victims ~' 

Dot a matter of charity or grace. It is a matter of justice. Recogn/zing that 

the criminal act cannot be erased, victim (and witness) assistance aims as 'far 

as possible to vindicate the vict/m's right to personal security, to redress the 

imbalance of benefits and burdens resulting from crime, and to ho~r the go%~.rn- 

meat's oont/nuing obligation to prevent further victimization. 

As you may knuw, the American Bar Association is a volt~tary organiza- • 

of 300,000 attnrneys from every state in the nat/on. Nearly i0,000 of these 

lawyers also belong to the Association's Criminal Justice Sect/ca. Constituted 

of prosecutors, defense at~mrneys, ju6ges, law professors, g~neral practiti~ers 

and others interested in the criminal law, the Section represents the full range 

of interests and perspecti~s in the criminal justice systa~. 

For a number of years, the A~ has beem 0m rem0rd in support of the 

kinds of progr~ a~dressed by the legislation befoma you. In 1967, the Association 
f 

ac%~pted a C r ~  Justice Section ~ t i m n  appmoving of federal ~m~pensation 

for crime victims. In 1974, it en~yrsed the Unifr~m Crlme Victims Reparation 

Act drafted by the National Cm~ference of Commissioners on Uniform state Laws. (NCCISL). 

To date, ABA policies a~dressing victim and witness service programs 

have related to specialized efforts. A 1975 policy, for example, called for the . " 
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e s t a b l ~ e n t  o f  t r ea tmen t  and s tudy c e n t e r s  ~o a i d  t he  v i c t i m s  o f  r ap e .  In  

1978 t h e  ~ went  on r e c o r d  s ~ / ~ r t i ~  f e d e r a l ,  s t a t e  and ~ ~ t~  con~at 

t/ge incidence, causes and effects of violence in ~he family. ~e specialized 

focus of these policies underl/nes the special treatment needs of certain kinds 

of victim. It is, however, in r~ way msa~t I=o ~cl%~e ~ sort of c~=&-ehensive 

~ z = o a ~  ~o v ~ t _ ~  s e r ~ c e s  a ~ a t e d  i n  s .  7o4.  zn ,'.am:, ~ ~ g~m, era l  

~=oa~h is ~ in t h e ~  "Gu3klims for Fair Trea~nt of Victh~ 

and Witnesses in the crhuLna/Justice system" that ~he criminal Justice secti~ 

will take to the ABA's policymaking Pmuse of Delegates in August. ~he mm~re- 

hensive approach is also manifested in an acti%~ Secticm effort over the past 

sevzral years to involve state and local bar associations in victim and witness 

assistance. 

t/r~s previously--in 1975, 1977 and 1979--representatives of our 

Association have testified at cm~gressiuna/ hearings on federal crime victim 

cumpensation. In 1979 and 1980, we urged ocngressional action ap~mrir~ fe~r~ 

funds for assistance programs wDrking with dumestic violer~e victims. We 

testified before the Attorney Generalts Task Force on Violemt Crime in 1981 and 

before the President's Task Force on Victims in 1982, urging both groups 1 ~  

consider recumnan~ticns of federal aid ~ cum~ensaticn and service assistance 

programs. We are pleased that the°final report of the Victims Task Force ~teins 

recummen~tions in both of these areas. 

T~day we appear orme again to repeat our str~ belief that victims 

w~mn the criminal justice systmn has been unable su~cessfully *x) protect ~eserve 

the assistance of the fec]eral ~.rnm~nt in ~ealing with the financial and service 

needs occasioned by the crin~ against thmu. Victims of serous crime often 

report that they are victimized not once but several times by a single crime-- 

first by the criminal act, t~en by the n~dical bills, ~logical injuries, 
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and other secondary consequencbs of the cr/me. Even after the criminal ~ct 

occurs, this sexmdazy victimization can to ~me extent be preventad or reduced. 

Doing so oust to be viewed as an essential fusctlcm of the criminal justice 

sy~t,m',, which a f t e r  a l l  ex is ts  in  laz'ge part. f o r  the purpo, se of protecting 

Lndi~ against victimization. ~be ~ ~ oust to su~ this 

essentiml function. 

As you know, the past ~ has evidenced ommiderable Poblic ccmcern 

for the crim8 vic t /m.  Originally a grassm~ts effort, stabes ha%~ ~ y  begun 

to express due ~cern for the rights an~ interests of %~ictims. During the 

past several years, increased restitution, protection from intimidaticm and use 

of victim impact stst~nents have been the subject of reoemtly-enact~ statutes. 

N~ laws also require improved notlfica~ and infom~tion to victims regarding 

the pm~essing of "their" eases. 

I~st year the federal ~uerr~ent addressed these ~ issues in the 

Victim and Witness Assistance Act of 1982, signed by President Reagan in October. 

• ~he ABA lobbied hard for that legislatic~ and applauds its passage. ~he fact 

that only minimal ~ts are neoessary to i~plemm~t its various ~Eovisions 

certainly does not detract from its validity or potential impact. We do note, 

however, that unlike the federal 9m~arrmmnt, many of the states have bec~e 

increasingly willing to expend state funds for m~re expensive, cumplementary 

legislaticm. For example, thirty-se~_n 8tares and the District of Columbia 

mm~ have state-~ vict/m ~m~sensatlc~ programs. At least fifteen states 

have institutionalized and provided ~ degree of flmdlng for loca/ victim 

assistance projects. To date, the fecM~al gp%~rrm~nt has provia~a no fun~ for 

=agpeusat/~n. ~e limitsa L~ ~ Assistance Aamazistrati~ fu~s / 

previously awarded to selected victim and witness assistance projects are no 

longer available. 
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Federal aid tm state compensation and local servioe assistance programs 

for victims is necessary, fair and appropriste. ~he final report of the 

President's Task Force on Victims points out that most state compensation programs 

currently include cumpensat/on for federal crime victims and that local service 

programs assist victims and witnesses of federal crim~. • To the extant that 

victims and witnesses who recei%~ assistance are more cooperative with law enforce- 

merit agencies, state and local f%mds encourage cooperation in federal prosecution. 

In addition, the Task Force notes that ~he federal ~Tm~nt has made substantial 

sums of money available for the education and rehabilitaticm of sta~e prisoners 

and sA~3gests that it is only j~t that federal funds also assist the ~ t  

taxpayer victimized by these p~isoners. We agree. 

It would of course be possible to set up separate federal programs for 

• vict/ms of federal crimes, though the a~..ninistrative costs of such an a pproac~h 

would be significant. It would also be possible (if administratively quite 

difficult) ix) limit federal re//nbursemm~t to that portion of the state program" 

compensating or assisting federal victims. Either Of these apprDaches, however, 

would be confusing t~ the av~-age citizen--and certainly ~) the a~_rage victim-- 

who will be unconcerned with ~ federal/state distincticm and hard pressed to 

understand why scme victims are compensated or assisted by their federal ~ t ,  

while others not. 

Same of the basic values of this uom~try comstrain efforts ~D control 

cr/me, and properly so. ~e Founding Fathers, Congress, and the fedexa/ courts 

have recognized and protected individua/ and collective rights that extend to those 

accused and even convicted of crimes. To 4mfend such rights in no way lessens 

our responsibility to alleviate the suffering that crime causes to individual 

members of our society. ~he challenge is to matnh our respect for the rights of 

criminal defendants with due regard for the rights and interests of crime victims. 

%'his bill to assist victims is an opportunity to meet this challenge. 



41 

I would like briefly ~ review the several sec~ of the pm~sed 

legislation. 

Section 3801 establishes the CrLTe Victims Assistance Fund. ~he ABA 

believes that the principle of federal assistance t~ crime victims is of sufficient 

import to warrant expenditure of general revenue ftmds. Of course, the fact 

that the authors of this bill hav~ identified an alternative source of funding 

is certa/nly applauded. We agree ~hat whenewr poss ib le  offenders should be 

held responsible for funding progrm~ to ameliorate the effects of victimization. 

At the same time, we are pleased that the legislation requires the court to consider 

the ability of the defendant to pay. ~ is in acoordance with ABA S~t~ncing 

Alternatives and ~ Standard 18-2.7(c) (i) and is a practical necessity. 

Section 2802 refers to distribution of federal funds to qualifying state 

crime victims' ompensation funds. T~o reguirem~ts are specified: (I) that 

the state fund ca~pensate al__ll victims of crime and (2) that it ~ psychological 

counselling to any crime victim who needs such counselling. 

We believe that the first of these requimmrents is t~o broad and that 

the second singles out one type of injury (psychological) for mandatory coverage 

while leaving another (physical) optional. In lieu of these, we respectfully 

suggest that the legislation: 

(i) require that eligible state programs ~pensate all victims or 

t h e i r  surviving dependante who have incurred ~ expenses 

directly or indirectly related to physical and/or psy~logihal 

injuries or death caused by the crime, and 

(2) limit federal reimbursement to a portion of the compensation 

paid by the state to victims or their surviving dependen~ for 

actual expenses relating ~tly or ~ y  to physical and/ 

or psychological injuries or death caused by the crime. 
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The first Suggestion would er~ure that the eligible state prograns 

reimburse victims of all types of injurious crimes. It would also ensure that 

non-resident victims or victims of federal crimes in a given state are covered 

by the state progzm~. 

~%e seoond suggestion wpuld limit ~le ~ c~mtribution ~%) areas 

~ e d  for coverage under the NCCUS~ Uniform Act--medical caz~, rehabilitation, 

rehabilitatiw occupatiohal training, funeral expenses, loss of wages and z~pla6e- 

ment services. If the injury c~uses death, ~he NCCt~L Act would compensate for 

dependents' economic loss and dependents' r~llaosment losses. Reasonable attorneys 

fees are also ~ be ~ t e d .  However, reimbursement is not provided for 

property loss or for pain and suffering. 

At present, ~ost states follow the ~ model and ~ r~t ocr~;~r~ate 

victims for property loss or n o ~ c  pain and suffering. ~he implicit 

requirement of S. 704 that they do so ~o patti, cipa~e in the federal program is, 

we feel, an unwarranted burden. Additional costs associated with this requinment 

w~uld likely more than offset any financial benefits of the ~Dposed legislat/on. 

While prpperty loss and certain other non-eoDnomic losses can certainly be 

deCastating, first priority nmst be directed ~o "making whole" those victims who 

have been physically and psychologically injured. States willing, and able to 

cover additional expenses and non-economic costs of crime would in no way be 

precluded fran doing so by excluding re/z~urse~ent for such purposes from this 

legislation. They would continue tD qualify on an equal basis with the other 

states for rein~u~sement of injury-rela~ed expenses. 

Ganerally, we believe that fec]eral funds should z~/Iabt~se state ommpensa- 

t-ion programs without a lot of strings attached. ~us we note ~th approval 

that the proposed legislation--as the NCL~/SL Uniform Act--leaves to the discretion 

of the individum/ states the mininu~ and maximum a~ount of their awards. 
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An except/on to our ",o strings" policy om~erns an A K ~ - ~  

recommendation that ~ qualify for compensation victims ~st report t~ 

i~ enforomnent officials within 72 hours after the ccmluiss~ of the crime 

unless emxewas good cause for failing ~ ~ so. ~ m i ~ e ~ t y  there ~ v e  been 

v a l i d  az~m~nt~ on both sides o f  th is  issue. ~ l ~ t a n ~ ,  however, we fee l  t ha t  

requiring oooperation with ~he criminal justice sys~n as a price of ~m~x~satlc~ 

is reasonable and financially responsible. 

A second string which we would rec~mm~ ~ be a "Good Samaritan" 

;~is~n, ~ covera~ of ~ who are /injured tryi.g to i~mt a crime 

or apprehend a perpetrator. Such, individuals are certa/nly victims of cclme. 

Moreover, as the reporting requinmEnt men 't/greed above, su~ a provision would 

encourage increased citizen involvem~t in the sta~e's overall crime prevention 

stra~y. 

~he maximum state reimbursement under the proposed legislation is 10% 

of a state's previous year's cm3pensatica awards. If, as we have suggested, 

federal re/mbursement is limited to a portion of ac~al costs assoc/a~ed with 

physical or psychological injuri.es,, the legislatitm should specify whether or not 

s%ate c~ensation program payments for other purposes are incl-a~a or excl .u~ed 

fr~n calculation of the state's share for any gig, m% year. 

A more fundarental consideratic~, however, is whet~er a 19% maximum reimbursement 

is sufficient to provide ~ assistance ~D state crime victim cumpensatlcn 

programs. ~ we are summ~at disappointed that the legislation 4bes not 

provide "seed" moneys for ~w ~nms, min~ini~ a~ e~.ding existing ones 

virtlmllly all of the state victim (xm~pensa~ program~ are exp~rie~K~ng finar~ial 

problems. Many are being forced ~ limit the ~DUnt of their m~zds. Others 

are afraid to ad~-rt/se their benefits for fear that resulting claims will 
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deplete, available resources. Tnere are often long waiting ~ before compensa- 

tion claims are processed or sufficient revanues generated to pay them. Lack 

of funds also discourages programs frcm raising or eliminating the maximm 

allowable award. ~ can severely d/sadvantage those most needy victims. 

Sen. Heinz has estimated that the ~ sot~=es ~ s d  by this legislatic~-- 

fines, penalties and forfeitures--will generate a ~ of $45 millimn and a 

maxin~m of $125 million. ~us the oo~se~Ssation portiere would be mmmmahere 

between $22.5 and $75 million. Eh~n conservative estimates based on these 

figures would accommodate a greater than 10% re/mbusaTent to the states which 

in 1981 paid out a total of $49 million in ccr~ensatic~ awards. ~he base for 

reimburseable compensation under the proposed legislation would of course be 

higher than this figure. In the past several years, several ne~ p~9-ams have been 

established. Some programs have expanded their coverage or ~ e d  the ~ammt of 

of their payments. In addition, n~ payments for federal victims cot currently c~vered 

and the a-~ninistrative costs associated with processing their, claims would a_r~ly 

under the legislation. Nonetheless, it appears that the ammunt collected is 

likely to be considerably n~re than 10% of that awarded by the states. Rather 

th~n return all of this "excess" over to the U.S. Treasury, w~ would suggest 

that the maximum percentage of reimburseable payments tD the states be" 

to at least 25%. Considerable ec~ncm~c incenti%~s would r~m~ain for the states 

to be responsible. MDrec~--r, this higher ~ would not commit the go%~_nlment 

heyor~ funds at its disposal sinoe fifty percent of the amount collected for 

victim assistance purposes would be an absolute ceiling on the ~unt distributed 

"to the states for victim compensation reimburse~emt purposes. 

One final comment on 83802 of ~he legislation as it is currently drafted-- 

the wording of the r e ~ t  regarding psychological counselling [CD) (i) (B)] 

is confusing. It would appear to require that the state fund itself is to Drovide 
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counselling--or at least arrange for such comlselling--rather than merely ~D 

om~ensats victims who receive counselling frum ommsellore of their own d%oice. 

Section 3803 provides that 50% of the funds collected by the Crime Victims 

Assistance Fund are to support victim and witness assistance projects. Half 

of this a~munt is tm be distributed at the dlsczetic~ of the Attorney General 

for federal activities. It would appear that at least psrt of the other half 

would be available for sts~e and local progzm~; however, as this is not specified 

in the bill, we s=ggest this point be clarified. We also stxz~gly zeccm~m~ 

that the legislation specifically state that specialized assistance programs-- 

such as rape crisis centers and domestic violence shelters--as well as prosecutor, 

court, police and other general victim and witness assistance program--are 

eligible for funds under ~ section. 

Section 3804 calls for the return of unexpe.nded funds t~ the general 

fund of the U.S. Treasury. with the exoepticn noted above--na~ely, that we 

would like to see the ~ percentage eligibility for state participatien 

in the victim compensation portion of this legislation ra/sed--we agree with 

the provisions of this sect/on. 

T~%nk you for your time .and attention. I will be glad t~ answer any 

questions you may have. 

24-906 0 - 84 - 4 
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An rican Bar Association 
July 8, 1983 

Dear Mr. Chairman: 

I very ~ apprecisbed having ~he opFortsnity to 
appear before your St~ttee on Agir~ last week ~0 present 
the American Bar Association's views on S.704, which would 
establish a crime victim assistance fund. 

At the hearing, you asked me ~3 send you in writing 
addi ~t~. comments on the ABA position with respect to ~a~ 
speclfic issues, namely, the so-called "means" test and mlnimun 
loss requirements for victim cc=¢ensation programs. 

In accordance with the Nat/or=t1 Conference of 
Ccamissioners on t~/fozm State Laws' Unifon~ Crime Viot_Lms' 
Reparations Act on which it is .based, ABA policy would leave 
the inclusion or deletion of such provisions ve~ to the dis:ret/c~ 
of the inddvidual states. If, for either financial or ~ilo- 
sophlcal reasons, states wish to include these requirements, 
the Uniform Act provides appropriate language (see Section 5(g] 
and 5(h) of the en~]esed Act). If not, as indicated by the 
extra set of parentheses, the sections are opt/or~l and r~ybe 
deleted. 

We would suggest that a federal compensation statute 
also recognize legitimate state diff~ in these areas and 
base the amount of its reimbursement to each state on that 
state's nayments to vict.~/,s, without regard ~ provisions re~.lir- 
ing a means test or ~ loss. 

Please let us know if ~ might be of further 
assistance. 

S ~ y ,  

Douglas E. Phillips 
Member, Victims Ccrx~ttee 

Honorable Charles E, Grassley 
Chairman, Subcommittee o n  A g L - ~  
Committee on Labor and Human ~sources 
U.S. Senate 
Washington, D.C. 20515 

S E C T I O N  OF CRIMINAL  JUST ICE  

1800 M STREET, N,W. 2ND FLOOR. WASHING'~N, DC 2003~5888 . TELEPHONE'(202) 331-~O 

~- Y~ ~ i=.7 

~ c A m  
=z,n~w 

~ - .  

w. 
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NATIONAL CON~FERENCE OF COmmISSIONERS OF UNIFORM STATE LAWS 

L~IFORM CRIME VICTIMS REPARATIONS ACT 

SECTION i~ (Definitions.) 
(a) As used in this Act, the words and phrases in this Section have the 

meanings indicated. 
(b) "Board" means the Crime Victims Reparations Board created under Sec- 

tion 3. 
(c) "Claimant" means any of the following claiming reparations under this 

Act: a victim, a dependent of a deceased victim, a third person other ~han a 
collateral source, or an authorized person acting on behalf of any of them. 

(d) "Collateral source" means a source of benefits or advantages foreco- 
nomic loss otherwise reparable under this Act which the victim or claimant has 
received, or which is readily available to him, from: 

(I) the offender; 
(2) the government of the United States or any agency thereof, a 

state or any of its political subdivisions, or an instrumentality of two or 
more states, unless the law providing for the benefits or advantages makes them 

excess or secondary to benefits under this Act; 
(3) Social Security, Medicare, and Medicaid; 
(4) state required temporary non-occupational disability insurance: 
(5) workmen's compensation; 
(6) wage continuation programs of any employer; 
(7) proceeds of a contract of insurance payable to the victim for 

loss which he sustained because of the criminally injurious conduct; or 
(8) a contract providing prepaid hospital and other health care ser- 

vices, or benefits for disability. 
(e) "Criminally injurious conduct" means conduct that (1) occurs or is 

attempted in this State, (27 poses a substantial threat of personal injury or 
death, and (3) is punishable by fine, imp$isonment, or death, or would be so 
punishable but for the fact that the person engaging in the conduct lacked 

, capacity to commit the crime under the laws of this State. Criminally injuri- 
ous conduct does not include conduct arising out of the ownership, maintenance, 
or use of a motor vehicle except when intended to cause personal injury or 

death. 
(f) "Dependent" means a natural person wholly or partially dependent upon 

the victim for care or support and includes a child of the victim born after 

his death. 
(g) "Economic loss" means economic detriment consisting only of allowable 

expense, work loss, replacement services loss, and, if injury causes death, 
dependent's economic loss and dependent's replacement services loss. Noneco- 
nomic detriment is not loss. However, economic detriment is loss although 
caused by pain and suffering or physical impairment. 

(I) "Allowable expense" means reasonable charges incurred for rea- 
sonably needed products, services, and accommodations, including those for med- 
ical care, rehabilitation, rehabilitative occupational training, and other 
remedial treatment and care. The term includes a total charge~not in excess 
of $500 for expenses in any way related to funeral, cremation, and burial. It 
does not include that portion of a charge for a room in a hospital, clinic. 
convalescent or nursing home, or any other institution engaged in providinR 
nursing care and related services, in excess of a reasonable and customary 
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charge for semi-private accommodations, unless other accommodations are med- 
ically required. 

(2) "Work loss" means loss of income from work the injured person 
would have performed if he had not been injured, and expenses reasonably incur- 
red him in obtaining services in lieu of those he would have performed for 
income, reduced by any income from substitute work actually performed by him 
or by income he would have earned in available appropriate substitute work he 
was capable of performing but unreasonably failed to undertake. 

(3) "Replacement services loss" means expenses reasonably incurred 
in obtaining ordinary and necessary services in lieu of those the injured per- 
son would have performed, not for income but for the benefit of himself or his 
family, if he had not been injured. 

(4) "Dependent's economic loss" means loss after decedent's death 
of contributions of things of economic value to his dependents, not including 
services they would have received from the decedent if he had not suffered the 
fatal injury, less expenses of the dependents avoided by reason of decedent's 
death. 

(5) "Dependents's replacement services loss" means loss reasonably 
incurred by dependents after decedent's death in obtaining ordinary and neces- 
sary services in lieu of those the decedent would have performed for their ben- 
efit if he had not suffered the fatal injury, less expenses of the dependents 
avoided by reason of decedent's death and not subtracted in calculating depen- 
den~s economic loss. 

(h) "Non-economic detriment" means pain, suffering, inconvenience, physi- 
cal impairment, and other non-pecuniary damage. 

(i) "Victim" means a person who suffers personal injury or death as 
result of (I) criminally injurious conduct, (2) the good faith effort of any 
person to prevent criminally injurious conduct, or (3) the good faith effort 
of any person to apprehend a person suspected of engaging in criminally injuri- 
ous conduct. 

SECTION 2. (Award of Reparations.~ The Board shall award reparations for eco- 
nomic loss arising from criminally injurious conduct if satisfied by a prepon- 
derance of the evidence that the requirements for reparations have been met. 

SECTION 3. (Crime Victims Reparations Board.) 
(a) A Crime Victims Reparations Board is crested (in the executive 

branch), consisting of three members appointed by the Governor (with the advice 
and consent of the Senate). At least one member shall he a person admitted to 
the bar of this State. 

(b) The term of office of each member shall be (6) years and until his 
successor ~s appointed and qualified, except that of the members first 
appointed one each shall he appointed to serve for terms of (2), (4), and (6) 
years. A person appointed to fill a vacancy shall be appointed for the 
remainder of the unexpired term. 

(c) The Governor shall designate a member who is admitted to the bar of 
this State to serve as chairman at the pleasure of the Governor. 

(d) Members shall (serve full time, receive an annual salary prescribed 
by the governor within the available appropriation not exceeding ( ) 
dollars,) (serve part time, and receive ( ) dollars per diem,) and be 
reimbursed for actual expenditures incurred in performance of their duties in 
the same manner as State officials generally. 



49 

SECTION 4. (Powers and Duties of the Board.) 
(a) In addition to the powers and duties specified elsewhere in this Act, 

the Board has the powers and duties specified in this section• 
(b) The duty to establish and maintain a principal office and other nec- 

essary offices within this state, appoint employees and agents as necessary, 
and prescribe their duties and compensation. 

(c) The duty to adopt by rule a description of the organization of the 
board stating the general method and course of operation of the Board. 

(d) The duty to adopt rules to implement this Act, including rules for 
the allowance of atZorney's fees for representation of claimants; and to adopt 
rules providing for discovery proceedings, including medical examination con- 
sistent ~ith Section 9 and 10. Rules shall be statements of general applica- 
bility which implement, interpret, or prescribe policy, or describe the pro- 

cedure or practice requirements of the Board. 
(e) The duty to prescribe forms for applications for reparations. 

• (f) The duty to hear and determine all matters relating to claims for 
reparations, and the power to reinvestigate or reopen claims without regard to 
statutes of limitations or periods of prescription. 

(g) The power to request from prosecuting attorneys and law enforcement 
officers investigations and data to enable the Board to determine whether, and 
the extent to which, a claimant qualifies for reparations. A statute providing 
confidentiality for a claimant's or victim's juvenile court records does not 

apply to proceedings under this Act. 
(h) The duty, if it would contribute to the function of the Board, to 

subpoena witnesses and other prospective evidence, administer oaths or affirma- 
tions, conduct hearings, and receive relevant, nonprivileged evidence. 

(i) The power to take notice of judicially cognizable facts and general, 
technical, and scientific facts within their specialized knowledge. 

(j) The duty to make available for public inspection all Bpa!d decisions 
and opinions, rules, written statements of policy, and interpretations formu- 
lated, adopted, or used by the Board in discharging its functions. 

(k~ The duty to publicize widely the availability of reparations and 
information regarding the filing of claims therefor• 

SECTION 5. "(Application for Reparations; Awards; Limitations on Awards.) 
(a) An applicant for an award of reparations shhll apply in writing in a 

f~rm that conforms substantially to that prescribed by the Board. 
(b) Reparations may not be awarded unless the claim is filed with the 

Board within one year after the injury or death upon which the claim is based. 
(c) Reparations may not be awarded to s claimant who is the offender or 

an accomplice of the offender, nor to any claimant if the award would unjustly 
benefit the offender or accomplice. (Unless the Board determines that the 
interests of justice otherwise require in a particular case, reparations may 
not be a~arded to the spouse of, or a person living in the same household with, 
the offender or his accomplice or to the parent, child, brother, or sister o f  
the offender or his accomplice.) 

(d) Reparations may not be awarded unless the criminally injurious con- 
duct resulting in injury or death was reported to a law enforcement officer 
~ith~n 72 hours after its occurrence or the Board finds there was good cause 
for the failure to report within that time. 

(e) The Board, upon finding that the claimant or victim has not fully 
cooperated with appropriate law enforcement agencies, may deny, reconsider, or 

reduce an award of reparations. 
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(f) Reparations otherwise payable to a claimant shall be reduced or 
denied 

(I) to the extent the economic loss upon which the claim is based 
is recouped from other persons, including collateral sources, and 

(2) to the extent the Board deems reasonable because of the contri- 
butory misconduct of the claimant or of a victim through whom he claims. 

((g) (1) Reparations may be awarded only if the Board finds that unless 
the claimant is awarded reparations he will suffer financial stress as the 
result of economic loss otherwise reparable. A claimant suffers financial 
stress only if he cannot maintain his customary level of health, safety, and 
education for himself and his dependents without undue financial hardship. In 
making its finding the Board shall consider all relevant factors, including: 

(i) the number of claimant's dependents; 
(ii) the usual living expenses of the claimant and his family; 
(iii) the special needs of the claimant and his dependents; 
(iv) the claimant's income and potential earning capacity; and 
(v) the claimant's resources. 

(2) Reparations may not be awarded if the claimant's economic loss 
does not exceed ten per cent of his net financial resources. A claimant's net 
financial resources do not include the present value of future earnings and 
shall be determined by the Board by deducting from his total financial 
resources; 

(i) one year's earnings; 
(if) the claimant's equity, up to $30,000, in his home; 
(iii) one motor vehicle; and 

(iv) any other property exempt from execution under (the gen- 
eral personal property exemptions statute of this State). 

(3) Notwithstanding paragraph (2): 

(i) the board may award reparations to a claimant who 
possesses net financial resources in excess of those allowable under paragraph 
(2) if, considering the claimant's age, life expectancy, physical or mental 
condition, and expectancy of income including future earning power, it finds 
that the claimant's financial resources will become exhausted during his life- 
time; or 

(ii) the Board may (A) reject the claim finally, or (B) reject 
the claim and reserve to the claimant the right to reopen his claim, if it 
appears that the exhaustion of claimant's financial resources is probable, in 
which event the Board may reopen pursuant to an application to reopen if it 
finds that the resources available to the claimant from the time of denial of 
an award were prudently expended for personal or family needs.) 

((h) Reparations may not be awarded if the economic loss is less than • 
($I00).) ALTERNATIVE A 

((i) Reparations for work loss, replacement services loss, dependent's 
economic loss, and dependent's replacement services loss may not exceed $200 
per week.) ALTERNATIVE B 

((i) Reparations for work loss, replacement services loss, dependent's 
economic loss, and dependent's replacement services loss may not exceed the 
amount by which the victim's income is reduced below $200 per week.) 

((j)Reparatio[,s payable to a victim and to all other claimants sustaining 
economic loss because of injury to or death of that victim may sot exceed 
($50,000) in the aggregate.) 
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SECTION 6. (Notice to Attorney General; Function of Attorney General.) 
Promptly upon receipt of an application for reparations, the board shall 

forward a copy of the application and all supporting papers to the (Attorney 
General), who in appropriate cases may investigate the claim, appear in hear- 
ings on the claim, and present evidence in opposition to or support of an 
award. 

SECTION 7. (Informal Disposition; Contested Case.) 
Unless precluded by law, informal disposition may be made of a claim by 

stipulation, agreed settlement, consent order, or default. A claim not so dis- 
posed of is a contested case. 

SECTION S. (Contested Cases; Notice; Hearing; Records.) 
(a) "In a contested case, all parties shall be afforded an opportunity 

for hearing after reasonable notice. 
(b) The notice of hearing shall include: 

(I) a statement of the time, place, and nature o[ the hearing; 
~2) a statement of the legal authority and jurisdiction under which 

'the hearing is to be held; 
(3) a reference to the particular sections of the statutes and rules 

involved;' and 
(4) a short and plain statement of the matters asserted. To the 

extent that the board is unable to state the matters at the time the notice is 
served, the initial notice may be limited to a statement of the issues 
involved. Thereafter upon application a more definite statement shall be fur- 

nished. " 
(c) Every interested person shall be afforded an opportunity to appear' 

and be heard and to offer evidence and argument on any issue relevant to his 
interest, and examine witnesses and offer evidence in reply to any matter of 
an evidentiary nature in the record relevant to his interest. 

(d) A record of £he proceedings shall be made and shall include: 
(I) the application and supporting documents; 
(2) all pleadings, motions, and intermediate rulings; 
(3) evidence offered, received, or considered; 
(4) a statement of matters officially noticed; 
(5) all staff memoranda or data submitted to the Board in connection 

with its consideration of the case; and 
(6) offers of proof, objections, and rulings. 

(e) Oral proceedings or any part thereof shall be transcribed on request 
of any party, who shall pay transcription costs unless otherwise ordered by 
the Board. 

(f) Determinations of the Board shall be made in writing, supported by 
findings of fact and conclusions of law based exclusively on the record, and 
mailed promptly to all parties. 

SECTION 9. (Evidence of Physical Condition.) 
(a) There is no privilege, except privileges arising from the attorney- 

client relationship, as to communications or records relevant to an issue of 
the physical, mental, or emotional condition of the claimant or victim in a 
proceeding under this Act in which that condition is an element. 

(b) If the mental, physical, or emotional condition of a victim or claim- 
ant is material to a claim, the Board may order the victim or claimant to sub- 
mft to a mental or physical examination by a physician or psychologist, and 
may order an autopsy of a deceased victim. The order may be made for good 
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cause shown upon. notice to the person to be examined and to all persons who 
have appeared. The ordershall specify the time, place, manner, conditions, 
and scope of the examination or autopsy and the person by whom it is to be 
made,  and s h a l l  r e q u i r e  t h e  p e r s o n  t o  f i l e  w i t h  t h e  Board a d e t a i l e d  w r i t t e n  
r e p o r t  o f  t h e  e x a m i n a t i o n  or  a u t o p s y .  The r e p o r t  s h a l l  s e t  ou t  h i s  f i n d i n g s ,  
i n c l u d i n g  r e s u l t s  o f  a l l  t e s t s  made,  d i a g n o s e s ,  p r o g n o s e s ,  and o t h e r  c o n c l u -  
s i o n s  and r e p o r t s  o f  e a r l i e r  e x a m i n a t i o n s  o f  t h e  same c o n d i t i o n s .  

( c )  On r e q u e s t  o f  t h e  p e r s o n  e x a m i n e d ,  t h e  Board s h a l l  f u r n i s h  him a copy 
o f  t h e  r e p o r t .  I f  t h e  v i c t i m  i s  d e c e a s e d ,  t h e  Boa rd ,  on r e q u e s t ,  s h a l l  f u r n i s h  
the claimant a copy of the report. 

(d) The Board may require the claimant to supplement the application with 
any reasonably available medical or psychological reports relating to the 
injury for which reparations are claimed. 

SECTION 10. (Enforcement of Board's Orders.) If a person refuses to comply 
with an order under this Act or asserts a privilege, except privileges arising 
from the attorney-client relationship, to withhold or suppress evidence rele- 
vant to a claim, the Board may make any just order including denial of the 
claim, but may not find the person in contempt. If necessary to carry out any 
of its powers and duties, the Board may petition the ( ) Court for an 
appropriate order, but the Court may not find a person in contempt for refusal 
to submit to a medical or physical examination. 

SECTION II. (Award and Payment of Reparations..) 
(a) An award may he made whether or not any person is prosecuted or con- 

victed. Proof of conviction of a person whose acts give rise to a claim is 
conclusive evidence that the crime was committed, unless an application for 
rehearing, an appeal of the conviction, or certiorari is pending, or a rehear- 
ing or new trial has been ordered. 

(b) The Board may suspend the proceedings pending disposition of a crimi- 
nal prosecution that has been commenced or is imminent, but may make a tenta- 
tive award under-Section 15. 

SECTION 12. (Attorney's Fees.) As part of an order, the Board shall determine 
and award reasonable attorney's fees, commensurate with services rendered, to 
be paid by the State to the attorney representing the claimant. Additional 
attorney's fees may be awarded by a court in the event of review. Attorney's 
fees may'be denied on a finding that the claim or appeal is frivolous. Awards 
of attorney's fees shall be in addition to awards of reparations and may be 
made whether or not reparations are awarded. It is unlawful for an attorney 
t o  c o n t r a c t  f o r  o r  r e c e i v e  any l a r g e r  sum than  t h e  amount a l l o w e d .  

SECTION 13. ( S u b r o g a t i o n ;  A c t i o n s ;  A l l o c a t i o n  o f  E x p e n s e s . )  
( a )  I f  r e p a r a t i o n s  a r e  a w a r d e d ,  t h e  S t a t e  i s  s u b r o g a t e d  t o  a l l  t he  c l a i m -  

ant's rights to receive or recover benefits or advantages, for economic loss 
for which and to the extent only that reparations are awarded, from a source 
which is or, if readily available to the victim or claimant would be, a collat- 
eral source. 

(b) As a prerequisite to bringing an action to recover damages related 
to criminally injurious conduct for which reparations are claimed or awarded, 
the claimant shall give the Board prior written notice of £he proposed action. 
After receiving the notice, the Board shall promptly (]) join.in the action as 
a party plaintiff to recover reparations awarded, (2) require the claimant to 
bring the~action-in his individual name, as a trustee in behalf of the State, 
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the proposed action., lip as requested by the Board, the claimant brings the 
action as trustee and recovers reparations awarded by the Board, he may deduct 
from the reparations recovered in behalf of the State the reasonable expenses, 
including attorney's fees, al:locahle by the court for that recovery. 

(c) If a judgment or verdict indicates separately economic loss and non- 
economic detriment, payments on the judgment shall be allocated between them 
in proportion to the amounts indicated. In an action in a court of this State 
arising out of criminally injurious conduct, the judge, on timely motion, shall 
direct the jury to return a special verdict, indicating separately the awards 
for non-economic detriment, ~ punitive damages, and economic loss. 

SECTION 14. (Manner of Payment; Non-assignability and Exemptions.) 
(a) The Board may provide for the paymen[ of an award in a lump sum or 

in installments. The part of an award equal to the amount of economic loss 
accrued to the date of the award shall be paid in a lump sum. An award for 
allowable expense that would accrue after the award is made may not be paid in 
a lump sum. Except as provided in subsection (b), the part of an award that 
may not be paid in a lump sum shall be paid in installments. 

(h) At the instance of the claimant, the Board may commute future eco- 
nomic loss, other thah.allowable expense, to a lump sum hut only upon s finding 

by the Board that: 
(1) the award in a lump sum will promote the interests of the claim- 

ant; or 
(2) the present value of all future economic loss other than allow- 

able expense, does not exceed ($I,000). 
(c) An awird for future economic loss payable in installments may he made 

only for a period as to which the Board can reasonably determine future eco- 
nomic loss. The Board may reconsider and modify an award for future economic 
loss payable in installments, upon its finding that a material and substantial 

change of circumstances has occurred. 
(d) An award is not subject to execution, attachment, garnishment, or 

other process, except that an award for allowable expense is not exempt from a 
claim of a creditor to the extent that he provided products, services, or 
accommodations the costs of which are included in the award. 

(e) An assignment or agreement to assign a right to reparations for loss 
accruing in the future is unenforceable, except (I) an assignment of a right 
to reparations for work loss to secure payment of alimony, maintenance, or 
child support; or (2) an assignment of a right to reparations for allowable 
expense to the-extent that the benefits are for the cost of products, services, 
or accommodations necessitated by the injury or death on ~hich the claim is 
bssed and are provided or to be provided by the assignee. 

SECTION ]5. (Tentative Awards.) If the Board determines that the claimant 
will suffer financial hardship unless a tentative award is made,'and it appears 
likely that a final award will be made, an amount may be paid to the claimant, 
to be deducted from the final award or repaid by and recoverable from the ' 
claimant to the extent that it exceeds the final award. 

SECTION 16. (Reconsi4eration and Review of Board Decisions.) 
Is) The Board, on its own motion or on request of the claimant, may recon- 

sider a decision making or denying an award or determining its amount. The 
Board shall reconsider at ]east annually every award being paid in installments. 
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An order on reconsideration of an award shall not require refund of amounts 
previously paid unless the award was obtained by fraud. 

(b) The right of reconsideration does not affect the finality of.a Board 
decision for the purpose of judicial review. 

(c) A final decision of the Board is subject to judicial review on appeal 
by the claimant, the (Attorney General), or the offender (in the same manner 
and to the same extent as the decision of a state trial court of general juris- 
diction). 

SECTION 17. (Reports.) The Board shall prepare and transmit (annually) to 
the Governor and the Legislature a report of its activities, including the name 
of the claimant, a brief description of the facts, and the amount of repara- 
tions awarded in each case, and a statistical summary of claims and awards made 
and denied. 

"SECTION 18. (Unifor,~ity of Application and Construction.) This Act shall be 
applied and construed to effectuate its general purpose to make uniform the 
law with respect to the subject of this Act among those states enacting it. 

SECTION 19. (Severability.) If'.any provision of this Act or the application 
thereof to any person is held invalid, the invalidity does not affect other 
provisions or applications of the Act which can be given effect without the 
invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Act 
are severable. 

SECTION 20. (Title.) This Act may be cited as the Uniform Crime Victims 
Reparations Act. 

Senator  GRASSLEY. Thank you. Please proceed Mr. McGillis, 
before I ask questions. 

Mr. M c G I ~ s .  Thank you, Senator. I am very pleased to be here 
to test i fy on the  topic of crime victim compensation; 6 months ago, 
m y  colleague, Patr ic ia  Smith, and I completed work on a national 
s tudy  on this topic. I will be very br ief  in describing some of the 
findings of tha t  work. 

Our  s tudy  was funded by the Nat ional  Inst i tute of Justice, of the 
U.S. Depa r tmen t  of Justice, and it was designed in response to a 
recommenda t ion  of the At torney General 's  task force on Violent 
Crime. The President 's  task  force on Victims of Crime began its 
work  short ly  af ter  we started our s tudy and we sought to respond 
to the  informat ion needs of the  President 's  task  force as well as the 
At to rney  General ' s  task force. I should note tha t  we were very im- 
pressed wi th  the  final repor t  of the President 's  task force, and I 
feel t ha t  its recommendat ions with regard to crime victim compen- 
sat ion are  right on point, and I am also very  delighted with your  
work  and tha t  of Senator  Heinz in proposing Senate bill 704 which 
would, implement  some of the  core recommendation of the task 
force wi th  regard to crime victim compensation. 

In m y  tes t imony I will briefly describe how we conducted the 
study.  I will ta lk  about what  we found regarding the extent  of 
vict im compensat ion program development  around the United 
States,  and I will review some of the major findings and conclu- 
sions of the  s tudy very  briefly. 

With  regard to the  methods used to conduct the study, five basic 
da ta  collection efforts were carried out. First, we conducted a na- 
t ional  te lephone survey of program directors of all of the programs 
a round  the count ry  that  provide crime victim compensation. We 



55 

obtained a great  deal of information and much of that  is presented 
in our final report. 

We also conducted a telephone survey of policymakers in States 
not having these programs to determine relevant  past  initiatives in 
those States and any plans for future actions to develop this type of 
program. We reviewed aVailable studies, as you might imagine, on 
legal, political, and economic issues related to this topic. We re- 
viewed the legislative histories of the Federal bills that  go back to 
1965 and met  with congressional staff  who had worked on those 
bills over a period of time to try to find out what  information they 
had and why these bills had been considered by the Congress re- 
peatedly and yet  no bill has ever passed. 

Finally, we conducted site visits to six States that  were repre- 
sentative of programs on a variety of dimensions. It is important  to 
note that  the  Attorney General 's task force recommended that  a 
relatively inexpensive study be conducted. I should stress tha t  our 
work is primari ly descriptive. We did not collect data  on programs'  
impacts upon victims, for example, doing surveys of how victims 
view these programs. We also did not collect data  on how Just ice  
system agencies view these programs. We instead looked at  the 
programs themselves and their case processing. We also did not col- 
lect the data  on case processing directly from files; the projects pro- 
vided us the data. So those are two caveats on the study. 

With regard to program development in the United States, the 
first U.S. victim compensation program was developed in California 
in 1965, and programs have spread rapidly over the years, as my 
writ ten test imony indicates. I have some charts  in the wri t ten tes- 
t imony tha t  show the rapid sweeping increase of program develop- 
ment. Especially in the late seventies, there  was a great  deal of 
new program development. We now have programs in 36 States 
and the District of Columbia, and there are just  a few regions in 
the Nation that  do not have very much victim compensation pro- 
gram development. Those are primarily nor thern New England, 
the Deep South, and the Mountain States, and if you look at  these 
States and think about them, they do share a number  of character- 
istics in common. Many of them tend to have relatively low popula- 
tions, they tend to have relatively low crime rates, and many of 
them tend to have relatively low State per capita income taxes. 
And I th ink  that  perhaps Federal legislation might encourage the 
development of programs in these States, these regions that  have 
been relatively resistant to program development over time. 

Now, with regard to the findings and conclusions of the study, it 
is very important,  I think, first to note tha t  there  is a lot of dis- 
agreement  in the l i terature about how these programs are doing. 
There are some who say that  they are doing extremely well and 
some that  say they are doing extremely poorly, and that  is simply 
caused by differences in notions regarding what  the appropriate 
goals of these programs are. 

There is one school of thought tha t  says crime victim compensa- 
tion programs should serve all innocent victims of crime, and 
people draw this notion from legislative test imony and floor de- 
bates, and. so forth, where sometimes sweeping goals for these pro- 
grams have been stated during their development. People who 
accept this as a goal feel that  programs are doing badly because 
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there  are  relat ively low levels of public awareness of the programs, 
re lat ively low percentages of eligible victims apply and receive 
awards,  and there  are  a large number  of eligibility restrictions. So 
tha t  group says these programs are failing. 

There is ano ther  group that  says that  the programs can only be 
judged fair ly in light of constraints  placed on them by legislatures 
and executive branch  agencies such as eligibility criteria, funding 
shortages,  and wha t  have you. These people feel tha t  the  programs 
are  doing very well. Because if  you look at almost any of these pro- 
grams, you would see that  they  consistently increase the number  of 
vict ims tha t  they  serve, their  budgets increase even in these fiscal- 
ly restr ict ive times, they have relatively low administrat ive costs, 
and so tha t  picture looks good, if you view it that  way. 

The opponents  will agree that,  yes, all these lines are going up, 
bu t  they  will a rgue  that we are still a t  the bot tom of the graph 
paper  basically and we have a long way to go before we will ever 
adequate ly  meet  the  needs of victims. So it is important  to keep in 
mind tha t  there  is a very fundamenta l  disagreement  about  the pro- 
grams '  success or failure. 

With  regard to the  specific aspects of  programs, my wri t ten testi- 
mony  presents  a whole laundry list of issues tha t  one could consid- 
er, and obviously there  is not t ime in the oral test imony to present 
these. I will j u s t  give you a few brief comments  on them. 

One big bat t leground is the issue of eligibility restrictions. There 
have been a lot of arguments  about  relative and household exclu- 
sions, where  people are excluded from payment  if they are a rela- 
tive of the offender or live in the same household. There are some 
ways  to get  around that problem, and I have talked about  them in 
the  report.  Means  tests have also been argued about  a great  deal. 
The question arises whether  these are welfare programs that  
should only serve the  poor or should they serve the whole popu- 
lace? And min imum loss requirements  have also been debated con- 
siderably, and there  has been quite a bit  of research on that, and 
they  have been opposed generally. Minimum loss requirements  
might  place a special hardship on the elderly because many  are on 
fLxed incomes. Other  issues tha t  have been debated recently in- 
clude the  need for improved emergency award procedures; often- 
t imes the procedures are cumbersome and slow. People are not 
even aware  the  procedures exist at  times. We probably need recip- 
rocal agreements  across States or other  procedures to be sure that  
if  you are  traveling, you are not disenfranchised from victim com- 
pensation.  

We need to improve public awareness  of programs, although ob- 
viously tha t  raises questions about  the need for more money since 
we would get  more  applications. We need to expedite claims proc- 
essing. Delays are considerable in some States, and there is a lot of 
concern about  how to develop a fiscal base that  is sound and that  
works, and a lot of programs are moving to fines and penalties 
funding in order  to do that. Thirty-six percent of the States now 
use only fines and penalties for funding but  there  are substantial  
difficulties in collecting these fines and penalties. 

In Tennessee,  the  State collected only $1,000 during the whole 
first  year  of operat ion of the program, and the legislator who spon- 
sored the  bill had to actually go around threatening court suits to 
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court clerks in order to get them to s tar t  sending the money along. 
The State of New Jersey has a court monitor who goes out to the 
courts and makes sure tha t  people are collecting this money. 

I th ink it is also very important  tha t  we t ry  to improve coordina- 
tion between victim compensation programs and other victim serv- 
ices like victim witness assistance programs. New York State, I be- 
lieve, is helping to lead the Nation in this area. I am delighted tha t  
Mr. Zweibel will be testifying later here because they have a great  
deal to offer in this regard. Our report suggests a number  of ways 
tha t  this coordination could be increased, and I am delighted tha t  
Senate bill 704 funds both types of activities. 

I would just  like to say tha t  we also need to improve knowledge 
in this area very desperately. We really do not know the impacts of 
these programs on victims. I th ink tha t  the many  rejections of 
claims tha t  occur, oftentimes due to technicalities, might  be very 
harmful  to many  people. If you have already been victimized out in 
the streets, to go into a program and to have an official say some- 
how you are not meritorious, you are not worthy, even though you 
were attacked by a criminal, I th ink tha t  has to have a very nega- 
tive impact on a person's psyche. It is bad enough to be victimized 
without being told tha t  you are not w o r t h y  in some way, due to 
something tha t  you might  view as a technicality. 

I th ink it is really something to worry about. We might be hurt-  
ing some people with these programs as well as helping others, and 
I think we just  badly need to study this. It can be costly to victims, 
and it is probably costly to the Government as well. 

In conclusion, victim compensation programs have spread rapidly 
across the Nation and around the world. In the coming years, we 
need to expand the scope of existing programs, we need to insure 
their  fiscal stability and provide expeditious assistance to victims of 
crime. 

One Federal legislator a number  of years ago pointed out tha t  "It 
ill becomes this great  Nation to ignore the innocent victims of 
crime." Concerted efforts across the Nation are helping to dispel 
the legacy of neglect tha t  the legislator was referring to, and I 
th ink if recent history is a reliable indicator, compassionate re- 
sponses to the claims of victims will continue to increase. 

Thank you. 
[The prepared s ta tement  of Mr. McGillis follows:] 
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I. INTRODUCTION 

I am honored to have the opportunity to testify before the Subcommittee 

on Aging of the U.S. Senate Committee on Labor and Human Resources on the topic 

of victim compensation. I am the Assistant Director of Harvard Law SchoolIs Center 

for Crim/nal Justice, and during the past year I completed work on a national study 

of American crime victim compensation programs. The study was coauthored with 

Fatrioia Smith and was sponsored by the National Institute of Justice of the U.S. 

Department of Justice; the study was conducted under a contract to Abt Associates 

• Inc.., Cambridge, Massachusetts. 

: The topic of crime victim Compensation has received considerable national 

attention in recent years, and since 1965 victim compensation pr~rams have been 

developed in thirty-slx states and the District of Columbia. At the federal level,' 

crime victim compensation legislation has been repeatedly proposed and has been the 

subject of extensive Congressional debate and investigation. In light of these devel- 

opments, the Attorney General's Task Force on Violent Crime reco~nded in its Final 

Report in September, 1981, "The Attorney General should order that a relatively inex- 

pensive study be conducted of the various crime victim compensation prograr~s and their 

results." The present study was designed in response to the Task Force mandate and has 

sought to address the following basic issues regarding crime victim compensation 

programs: 

1. the c~rrent extent of program development across the United States, 

including descriptions of program policies and procedures; 

2. the relative advantages and disadvantages of different program ~tructures 

and operating procedures; 

3. the costs of the various state programs and thelr sources of funding; and 

4. factors influencing federal and state legislative efforts to develop vic- ~ 

tim compensation statutes. 

Pro~ect Advisor~ Board 

Five parsons have served on the Advisory Board of the study and.have provided 

the project staff with valuable advice. The Advisory Board members are: Mr.'Robert 

Bucknam, U.S. Department of Justice liaison for the Attorney General's Task Force 

on Violent Crime; Mr. Frank Carrington, a member of the President's Task Force 

on Victims of Crime; Professor Gilbert Gels, a facu/ty member of the University 
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of Cal:Lfoz-~Law XrvAnes Nr. P~Lch~d Gross, tT~z~h Dakota Cz"L:~ V4ctA~* Rej~z~- 

t a s k s  l~OqFz'am DArector  and foz~er  ]President  of  t he  l a t A o n a l  &sBocAatAon of 

CrAms V£ct:Lm CanJ~ensot£on llcardml end Mr. Ronald  ~e:Lbe l ,  Hey York CrLme 

Vlc~Lms Board D£Z~ctor end c~z~ent Premtdent  Of t/~e Natim~al &ssoclatAc~ of  

CrABs V:Lct£: Cca~ensaf . ton l~nardm. 

lqe'c.h~e Used t o  Conduct t h e  b~i=ud~ 

Ra~or da ta  co l lec tAon e f f o r t ,  s u s o c £ a t e d  ~_ th  the  prea.ent  study have 

Ancluded 

( I )  A n a t i o n a l  t e l e p h o n e  s u r v e y  o f  p ro~ec t  d A r e c t o r s  o f  vAcCAm 

compenmatA~ programs t o  gst~e~ Ar~o~matAcm r e g a r d i n g  program c h a ~ a c t e z i s t 4 c s  

S~d operstAng p~oced~ss .  The ~ s u l t S  Of the phone Im.~vey were sum~arAzed 

An a ser£ea Of seven matrAces 4escrAM£ng the po l icAes and px~ed~es of  IPzo- 

grams ac ross  ~.he n a t i o n .  These ma~ice8 we=e :evAeved by program p r o j e c t  

d i r e c t o r s  f o r  excrete or  ms£ss:Lcme and t h e  £nformatAon was upds t ed  £n l i g h t  

o f  t h e  d A r e c t o r s '  comments. These v a l A d e t e d  ~atr:Lces ~ p e s r  An" t h e  s t ~ t y ' s  

fAnal report. 

(2) A ¢elephc~e suxwey of legAslaCAve pol:Lcy~akers An states not cur- 

rently having v£¢tAm ccn~pensatAon p~.ograum to dete~mlns ~hat acteuR~cs (:Lf any) 

the~e had been An the past to develop S¢ogmams and ~ha¢ plans (so any) existed 

£or the developumnt of much prcqrrams An the future. 

(3) & revAew of svaAlable research gCuCLtes on the topic of vicCAm 

con~pensat ion,  A n c l u d i n g  "c.h~se e ~ p l o r l n g  t h e  r e l e v a n t  l e g a l ,  p o l A t l c a l ,  and 

econo~t¢  f a c t o r s  Anvolv~d An t h e  develOl~nent o f  much mechan:Lsms. 

(4) a rev£eW of the legA~latAve hilCorleus of the varAous federal 

b£11s that have bees proposed to support vAcCim compen~atAon programs, stud 

a ravie~ of the legAslaCAve hAstorles of selected scats vlct-tm compensation 

S t a t u t e s  t o  p r o v i d e  ios:Lght~ r a g ~ A n g  t h e  range  of  v iews  h e l d  I regard:Lag 

much proTrams and their roCAonalse. 

• (5) SAte vAmAt~ t o  S:Lx s t a t e  programs t o  obtaAn ~ t a £ 1 e d  I n ,  or=stAsh 

r s g a r d A n g  t h e  "c~ere t iono  o f  s e l e c t e d  p r o ~ a m s  end t o  a t t e s t  t o  ~ t ~ i n e  

t;hoA~ s ~ e n g ~ u  and ve a k~ea re J .  G iven  the rung~ o~ goals Of t h e  s tudy  n o t e d  

ea : l Le= ,  the  J l ~ l s  yo re  se lec ted ~to marl=Aze the c o l l e ~ i o a  o f  r e l evan t  l = -  

£ o z ~ s t i o n  t o  mee~ the varAo~s goa ls ,  a M  to  p rov ide  ds~al~ed ,"rose I tUdy £n- 

f o r ~ a t i o n  t o  8upplemen~ the te lephone r e v A n  o f  program c h a r s c C e r i s t ~ c s .  
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The slx elias (}Jew York, Slew :eraay, Florida, 5%nreleoe, Monterd, 

and C L l l f o z ~ l a )  wore t o e - - e n d e d  t o  t h e  men~ber8 OZ t h e  eL~sdy'm 8dv:Leory 

board  and a p p r o v e d  by them p r i o r  t o  t h e  v i s i t s .  The s i t e  v i s i t s  ware  c~n-  

d~c ted  d u r i n g  A p : l l ,  May, and  ~lune o~ 5982.  Dur ing  t h e  s i t e  v J 4 £ t a  p r o j e c t  

4 1 r o c ~ r s  and t h e i r  s t a f f s  were Ln te~Leved,  ]Fro:)ec% fOr=S and vrLt t~m 

mate::Laim were  c o l l e c t e d ,  end r e l e v a n t  l e g i s l a t o r s  wore l n t e r y l m m d  When 

p o s s i b l e .  

v u  n o t e d  o ~ r l L e r ,  t h e  & t t o r n a y  G e n e r a l ' s  T u k  For  ~ ,  ~ Viola 'ha  

Crime recommended t h e  oonduct  Of • " r e l a t i v e l y  I n e x p e n s i v e  s t u d y "  Of v£c t Im  

c c e ~ e n e a t l o ~  4-sues. Th:r~ s tudy  p r o v i d e s  h i g h l y  d e t a i l e d  desc rLp t . t ve  l n -  

f o r m a t i o n  r e g a r d i n g  e x 4 - t l n g  progren~J,  b u t  r e s o u r c e  end t 4 ~ e  c ~ s t r a l ¢ ~  

p r e c l u d e d  the  pomel/~:LlIty o f  an I n t ens i ve  evalua~I~m of  program I J ~ e C ~ ,  

I n c l u d i n g  an  u s e s a m e n t  of  t h e  p e r c e p t i o n s  o f  programs by v i c t i m s ,  : Ju s t i c e  

sys tem a g e n c i e s  and o ~ h e r a .  F u r t h e r m o r e ,  d a t a  s u r e t i e s  were  deve loped  

from ~nformat£on  p r o v i d e d  by t h e  p r o j e c t 8  and have not  been ~ o l l e c t e d  I n -  

d e p e n d e n t l y  by evaluat~rs. 

Pro~raJ= Devalo~nnent In  l ~ e  U n i t e d  S t a t e s  

Zn t h e  U n i t e d  S t a t e s ,  £ n t e r e s t  Ln v£cl~m ¢o=~pensatlon l e g i s l a t i o n  

~rev r a p i d l y  i n  the  mld-19608. Federal l e g ~ l a t L ( n l  was proposed t~  1964 

by S e n s O r  Ra lph  Yarborough of  T e x u ,  and t o  1965 Callfoz1~£a became the 

first e%ate to develop a v£ctlm ¢ompensatlc~ pro<gram. 

B£nce the develo];~ent Of the CIL l i fo r~ ta  program I n  1965, v~ct-tm ¢az- 

~ e n s a t k c ~  p r o g r a n e  have s p r e a d  r a p i d l y  a c r o s s  the  n a t i o n .  E x h i b i t  1 .1  p r e -  

Sen t s  a g r a p h i c  s u n , s t y  o f  t he  t r e n d  i n  p rogram developnmnt  from 1965 t o  1982.  

The number o f  pro<;remB In  o p e r a t i o n  Lre no ted  on t h e  l e f t  J l d e  of  t h e  g r aph ,  

and t h e  yeLre  t ~ a t  p ro f=a~u  were  I n i t i a t e d  a r e  noted  a l o n g  t h e  b e t t e r  o f  t h e  

g raph .  The g r o ~ h  Lu t h e  n ~ b e r  of  s t a t e s  hav ing  programs has bee~ J ~ p r e s -  

14we, end t h e  l a t e r  19708 were  l ~ a r t l c u l a r l y  a c t i v e  y e a r s  f o r  progTam d e v e l o p -  

ment .  

Ixh~Lblt 1.2 present~ • graphic  s u ~ r y  o f  the u t a n t  o f  c r l = e  v£c-  

elm co=peneat£cm p rog ram develo l~nent  Ln t h e  U n i t e d  S t a t e s .  The d l s g o n a l  

l i n e s  i n d i c a t e  s t a t e s  4-  ~ n l c h  programs a r e  c ~ r e n t l y  In  o p e r a t i o n ,  and 

t h e  dashed l i n e s  i n d i c a t e  s t a t e s  Which e r e  c ~ r r e n t l y  J~nplementlng p ro~ra=~ .  

Rxh lb l t  1.3 p rov ides  • l l e t I n 9  o f  the s ta tes  having opere t lGaa l  proqra~lJ, 

24-906 0 - 84 - 5 



EXHIBIT 1.1 
Trend In Program I)e~lopment 
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CA NY HI MA AK RI I t . "  ~ i M N ' D E ' K Y  IN FL C'P T X z l N V ' C O ° . I A  e ~ -  " "  
MD NJ ~ ~ WA ND OH MI KS NB ~ NM DCOIMO e 
VI PA OR MT OK WVaSC ~ ,  
v Wl VA • T I ~  v , ~ - v 

YEAR OF PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT 
(& JURISDICTIONS ESTABLISHING NEW PROGRAMS) 

.qrlde dale ml~nenta the elfacfl~ data el ihe pmo~am, thmioh In Vlrotnla. .. q:ouf lud~dl¢llc,~ -- Soulh Csmllnl. le,~l. OIMrl¢l el Columbia Ind Colo¢odo 
Commcllcul Texas West Viyolnla'and Soulh Caroline, funds m established --have lusl passed legislation and ere In Iho process el selling up pcogfams. 
some period of lime (6 monlhs Is one year) i~loq Io Ihe actual onsel el claims ~ MlssoQd pcog~rem Is belnQ eslIIMIshed In 3 phases: 
;xocesslng am# award paymenL t !) AsseSeflWnl and colleclloo of criminal pzmallles for Cqlme Vlcflm' 

t~e~nnesBoo o¢lglnaily passed iegle~lli¢~ in Ig78, btd Ihe slatulrJ wme : panselkm Fund, effective S~ptornbor 28, 1981; 
amended In 1977 Is make the sllocllve dale July 1, 1978. 2) Eligibility ol claimants effective July 1,1982; and 

31 Claims processlrig end iward payment effective January !, 1963. 



Exh lb t t  £.2 

P a t t e r n  o f  P r o g r a m  Z m p l e ~ n t a t i o n  i n  t h e  U n i t e d  g t a t e g  

. . . . . . .  p r o g r a m  
a u t h o r i z e d  

~///e~ p r o g r a m  In  
o p e r a t i o n  

¢ ~  
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Bxh:Lb£t 1.3 

V£c1~4- Co=~ensa%ion l~ro~ra~ ~ c a t l o n a  in  the 0 .5 .  

S t a t e s  E a v ~ q  O p e r a t i o n a l  P r o ~ a n s  

( 1 ) ~ a s k a  (17) Nevada 
(2) CaI:L~oz~La" (18) Hew Oe~ey 
(3) Connectlcszt (19) New Nemico 

• (4) D a l a v m  (20) flew York 
(S) F l o ~ d a  (21) t ior th Dakota  
(6) Bawal£ (22) 0h£o 
( 7 ) I l l i n o i s  ( 23 ) Oklahoma 
(8 )  Znd£ana (24) Oregon 
(9) rdmaas (25) Pennsylvania 

(10) F~nt  ucky  (26) Rhode I s l a n d  
(11) Na--~land ( 27 ) Tennessee 
(12) 14AssachuNtt~ (28) Texas 
(13) ICich:Lgan (29) V i r g i n  Is lands 
(14) M£nnesota  (30) .  V£rgln~a 
(15) Koch.aria (31) WuhLngton* 
(16) Nebraska  (32) ' West V i r g i n d a  

(33) Wks¢ona in  

Sta tes In  Which P ro~ r~u  A:e Beinq Znple~anted 

(1) Colorado (4) NLssouz£ 
(2) D k a t 2 i c t  o f  Columbia (5) South Carolina 
(3) Iowa 

States WLth LeglmlatLon Under Considerat /on 

( 1 ) Louis iana 

B t a t e s  That Do Not Rave i ~ o ~ L m s  

(1) Alabama (8) Nay Hanpsh~re 
(2) k T i z ~  (9) 1leith Carol£na 
(3) Arkansas (10) Puerto XLco 
(4) Georg£a ee (11) Bouth Dakota 
(S) Idaho (12) Utah 
(6) NaLne (13) Vensont  
( ? )  Nd-s£mSLppi (14) wyomkng 

eThe gamh4ngton l ~ c ~ r a n  va J  r e f u n d e d  by t h e  s t a t e  l e g i s l a t u r e  on 
3 / 1 8 / 8 2 j  £ t  bad been  t m ~ o r a z £ 1 ¥  c l o s e d  due t o  a r educ t£on  £n i t s  a p F : o p r i a -  
t J ~ n .  

eeGeorg£a  has  8 s t a t u t e  t h a t  p r o v £ d e s  f o r  ceapenaat£an to =Good S ~ -  
tdtn8, • 

H(~qZS 53 ~tt~ifd£Ct£O~dl lUSt :Llrtcltlded 4D thJ l l  q~L~lt: the f ~ l ~  8~a t a l ~  

t h e  DdRt~ICt of Colun~Ls,  t h e  V i r g i n  I s l a n d s  and Pue r to  Xlco.  
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those Implementlng programs, those £n ~hlch legislatlcn As under ~sldera- 

t.lon, and those that do not have programs. The five states that ere listed 

u currently implementing programs passed crime vlc~im compensation leglsla- 

t/ran in 1981 and 1982 and axe accruing funds for program operations and 

developing claims processing Proceauzes. 



ZZ. FXNDZNGS AND COI4C~JSXONS 

VActLm c o m p e n s a t i o n  p r o g r • : s  have  s p r e a d  r a p L d l y  £n r e o e n t  yeaze, 

I n d •  vAde va rLe ty  o f  types o f  p rogram have bee~ deve lo~d  •c ross  the 

n a t i o n .  Jta~or A•suee J~ the  f i e l d  inc lude d i f f e r e n t - •  An program r s U e n -  

aAo8, mean• t o  •scene progT•m achievements, l~og:am 8~:ucturo and o r g • n l -  

satAo~, e l i g i b i l i t y  and coverage poZlcAe•,  procedure• ,  costa and funding 

umchanAeu~, c~ordl~atAnn w i t h  o ther  vLctAn •ervAces, and p o t e n t i a l  4:~act8 

upon v A c t l = s .  Bach IssUe As revLeved b r i e f l y  An t u r n .  

Program Rat iona les  

VActLm c o m p e n s a t A o n  p r o g r a m s  have  been  d e v e l o p e d  f o r  • v a r i e t y  o f  

z ~ a s o n s .  The maJo= r a t i o n a l a s  f o r  p r o g r a m -  £nc lude .  notAone ~ a t  cL tLaens  

h a v e  • r L g h t  t~, be o o m p e n e a t a d  £ f  t h e  s t a t e  f a l l s  t o  p r o t e c t  them ( b a a e d  

upon l e g a l  t o r t  t h e o r y  a n d  c o n t r a c t  t h e a r y  a n a l o g s ) ,  b e l A e f •  t h a t  p r o g r a m s  

a : e  a n  a p p r o p r / e t e  h u m a n i t a r i a n  r e s p o n s e  by g o v e r n : e a t  t~  ~ p e l l A n g  hu=an 

needs (Ancluddng both =Assurance theories" that sugsre~t  a l l  •ggrAeved tArA- 

sen8  s h o u l d  =eceAve  a s s i s t a n c e  a n d  " w e l f a : e  t h e o r i e s "  a imed o n l y  a t  t h e  

p o v e r t y  8 t r A c k • n ) ,  a n d  r e t S e n a l e e  b u e d  upon p o t e n t i a l  b y p r o d u c t s  o f  r A t t A n  

ccapensatAon s u c h  as  Improved  c i t i z e n  o o o p e r e t t e n  w i t h  l • v  e n f o r a e : e n t ,  

g r e a t • :  v i s i b i l i t y  o f  c r a m • ' •  c o a t s  and c o n s e q u e n t  A n c : e a e e d  AnoentAves  f o r  

~rAme p r e v e n t i o n ,  a n d  t h e  l a k e .  ~- 

Very £ev, Af any, o f  the • t a t •  v i c t i m  compeneatlen • ta tu t 'es  r e f l e c t  

• p u r e  m a n i f e s t a t i o n  o f  • s i n g l e ,  h I ~ l y  • r t i c u l a t e d  r e t A c m a l e  f o r  p r o g ~ a :  

d e v e l o l ~ n e n t .  Moot o f  t h e  b a l l •  a r e  p r e n o t e d  w i t h  a p p e a l s  t o  c~mbAnatAons o f  

r e t A o n a l e e ,  a n d  ~ m e t i m e e  v i s u a l l y  e l l  o f  t h e  p o t e n t i a l  r a t i o n a l e s  c a n  be 

f o u n d  woven s o b e r ,  e r e  ~n to  • | A n g l e  l e g i s l a t i v e  d e , a t e .  As • c o n s e q u e n c e ,  

At As t y p i c a l l y  n o t  c l e a r  once • p r o g r a m  h a s  b e e n  e ~ a c t e d  e x a c t l y  how b r o a d  

Ate mandate really Is. Legislative sponsors An s~e ~£sdActlons clearly 

reject, en the mc~d, the Idea that the state has a legal oblAgatAen to 

c©~pensate all victims, and An sc~e debates the Assurance theory As eo~dly 

xw~ected An favor of the velfare nodel. Generally, hoverer, the precise 

gale o f  the programs are left ~e~at vague, ~Ith varying rail•sales co- 

e x i s t i n g  on  t h e  z ~ o o r d  a l l  An s u p p o r t  o f  the same l e g l s l a t A e n ,  even t h o u g h  

re t£ona lee  may be J~heren t ly  lace :parAb le  (e .g .  ~.n~urance t heo r ies  and we l -  

f a r e  thec :Aes)  • 

Such ambigu i t ies  are no~ unoo~:o~ An l e g i s l e t i e n  and • r e ,  i n  p a r t ,  

• ~ a t u r a l  response to  t h e  need t o  f o r m  c o a l i t i o n s  An euppoz~ o f  • b a l l .  
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Fur the rmore ,  I n  t h e  c a s e  of  v£ctJJn cc=~peneat£on l a g l e l a ~ t a n ,  c o n c e r n  ragardAng 

t h e  p o t e n t i a l  g r o v t h  In p rogram c o s t a  t h a t  c o u l d  a r i s e  f rom a c l e a r  and b road  

~ t ~ o n a l e  h a s  1 J ~ e l y  made the a t a t ~  9 o f  guch a r a~a~a le  lese a t t r a c t i v e .  

Cos t  c o n t - 4 n B e n t  p r o c e d u r e s  l ~ c o z p o r a t e d  i n  leg4ela~£On ( e . g .  v a r i o u s  a l £ g l -  

l~Ll£ty r e q u i r e m e n t s  sad  b e n e f i t  z e s t r £ c t £ o a J )  o f t e n  have  an s d  hoc q u a l L t y  t o  

• t h e : .  The z ~ a t r l c t £ a n s  c o u l d  t y p i c a l l y  n o t  he d e r i v e d  from b road  P r i n c i p l e s  

~ u a t l f y £ n g  p r o g r a m  deve lopmen t  b u t  y e t  eza  o f t e n  oaoaseaz7  f o r  p a s s a g e  of  t h e  

l e g 4 - 1 a t l o n .  Whi le  many l e g t J l e t o r 8  s e e  a t t z a c l ~ d  t o  bJ~2e e s s 4 " t l n g  v l c t l n s ,  

t h e y  t e n d  t o  be c a u t t o u a  In  d e s i g n i n g  Programs and ~ no t  v l s h  t o  s i g n  a 

b l a n k  check  f o r  s u c h  a s s i s t a n c e .  

The ambi~t~Las In v i c t l ~  co=pensation l~g ie la t t cm ra t / ona les  has led  

a number o f  observers (e .g .  g o f r A c h t a r ,  1978 and ~ e l i e r ,  1965) t o  note t h a t  

t y p i c a l  p rogram r a t i o n a l e s  c o u l d  s u p p o r t  much b r o a d e r  forms o f  s m e l J t a n c e  

t h a n  a r e  p r e s e n t l y  p rovkded .  P r o f e s s o r  l q u e l l e r  e u g g e a t a  t h a t  t h e  o u t e r  14~4t  

of  such a s s t J t a n c e  c o u l d  i n v o l v e  ~ p e n s a t . i o n  f o r  a l l  l o s s e s  a t t r i b u t a b l e  t o  

• ~ l ~ e ,  ae s J J t~moa  t h a t  ~ou ld  r e q u i r e  a p p r o x J ~ a t e l y  s even  p e r c e n t  o f  t h e  

k=erIcan ~roas na t iona l  product according to  I ~ e l l e r * s  ¢el=ulatJ~nso A more 

t y p i c a l  v l e v  o f ' p r o g r a m  o u t e r  14~4ta ~8 t he  p o s l t l a n  t h a t  a a s l s ~ m c e  s h o u l d  

be a v a i l a b l e  t o  a l l  I n n o c e n t  P e r s o n s  ~ by c r i m e s ,  ~r, Lthout  p o t e n t i a l  

d:LeqL~all~£catlons b a s e d  upon e~ch f a c t o r s  as  l i n ks  t o  t h e  o f f e n d e r ,  f i n a n c i a l  

©ondAtlon, and r e l a t e d  r e e ~ l c t A o n s .  

Aseese£n~ Program kch£evementa  

The l a c k  o f  p r e c i s i o n  I n  t h e  s t a t e d  g o a l s  o f  v £ c t l =  compensa t i on  p r o -  

grams can  make a s s e s s m e n t  of  t~heir ach£evementa  v e r y  d t f f 4 c u l t .  I f  progTam 

a c h i e v e m e n t s  L~e o ~ p a r e d  t o  t h e  p o t e n t i a l  g o a l s  d e r i v i n g  f r o ~  b r o a d  t h e o r e t i -  

c a /  r a t i c m a l e a ,  t h e i r  pe r£oz~ance  i s  no t  e a t t J f a c t o r y .  Programs LWn low i n  

v ~ 4 b £ 1 £ t y  £n mos t  ~uz£ed£c t£ons ,  and a n l y  a I ~ q l l  f r a c t £ o n  o f  el£glJDle v £ c -  

t l n 8  o f  cr~me a r e  ava ra  o f  t he  p rograms  and a p p l y  f o r  a s e 4 s t a n c e .  Sone p e r -  

m who a r e  aware o f  programs choose  not  t o  apsply due t o  t h e  ~ l m c  f i l i n g  

p roceduzee  amd t h e  need I n  game ~ u r l e d £ c t l o n s  t o  l~rov£de d e t a i l e d  acCoUnts 

o f  p e r s o n a l  f i n a n c e s .  F u r t h e m o r a ,  many o f  t / a B e  who & a p p l y  f o r  a s e £ | t a n o a  

L~e =e~ected 4me to  Program r e s t r i c t i o n s .  ~ e  of  these xae~r ic t ione  are 

a e n e i d ,  r ed  a p p r o p r i a t e  by v i r t u a l l y  a l l  o b s e r v e r s  ( e . g .  t h e  r e ~ L r m n e n t  t h a t  

t he  v l c t J ~  be  JJ~nocent amd n o t  t h e  cause  of  t h e  v l c t 4 m 4 z a t l o n )  ~ h l l e  o t h e r s  
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a r e  o f t e n  o p p o s e d  ( e . g .  t h e  r e j e c t i o n  o f  a p p l i c a t i o n s  b e c a u s e  t h e  v i c t i m  I s  

r e l a t e d  t o  t h e  o f f e n d e r  even t h o u g h  t hey  may o t h e z ' ~ s e  be tJ~nocent v £ c t i n s ) .  

Zfw i n s t e a d ,  p r o g r a m  s c h i e v e n e n t m  a r e  compared  t o  t h e  f a r  more modes t  

g o a l s  o f t e n  i n h e r e n t  i n  t h e i r  s t r u c t u r e  and  p o l i c £ e a ,  many l ~ o g r a m s  a p p e a r  

t o  be q u i t e  s u c c e s s f u l .  The co=non r e d u c t l r m s  i n  s c o p e  imposed a t  t h e  o u t s e t  

many p r o g r a m s  i n c l u d e  l £ m i t e d  c a p a c i t i e s  t o  a d v e r t i s e  t h e i r  s e r v i c e s  ( o r  

a c t u a l  p r o h i b i t i o n s  a g a i n s t  a d v e r t i s i n g  I n  some c a s e s ) ,  d e t a i l e d  r e s t r i c t i o n s  

an  v i c t i m  e l i g i b i l i t y  d e p e n d i n g  upon t h e  l ~ t U r e  o f  t h e  c~ime,  t h e  r e l a t i o n -  

s h i p  t o  t h e  o f f e n d e r ,  f i n a n c i a l  means ,  f i l i n g  d e a d l I n e  a d h e r e n o e s  c o l l a t e r a l  

s o u r c e  p a y m e n t s ,  c o n t r i b u t o r y  m i s c o n d u c t ,  a.nd the"  l i k e ,  end  l i m i t a t i o n s  on 

t h e  t y p e s  and  a m o u n t s  o f  benef l taJ p a y a b l e  t o  v i c t i m s .  When ~udged w i t h i n  t h e  

b o u n d s  o f  t h e s e  i n h e r e n t  r e s t r i c t i o n s  many p r o g r a m s  have  p e r f o r m e d  v e r y  w e l l ,  

se rv :Lng i n c r e a s i n g  numb er s  o f  v i c t i m s  o v e r  t i m e ,  I n c r e a s i n g  t h e i r  t o t a l  a w a r d  

p a y m e n t s  even  i n  t i m e s  o f  b u d g e t a r y  c u t b a c k s ,  o p e r a t i n g  w i t h  low a d m i n i s t r a -  

t i v e  oosl=s compared t o  t h e i r  o v e r a l l  b u d g e t  and  y e t  m a i n t a i n i n g  s t r i c t  c o s t  

a c c o ~ t a b : L l t t y ,  a n d  s e e k i n g  t o  s e n s i t i v e l y  r e s p o n d . t o  t h e  needs  o f  vic~:Lms. 

Such a c h i e v e m e n t s  a r e  c h r o n i c l e d  t h r o u g h o u t  t he  r e p o r t  i n  d i s c u s s i o n s  o f  p r o -  

g r a :  o p e r a t i o n s  and  f u n d i n g .  

In  s h o r t t  w h e t h e r  one  views t h e  p r o g r a m s  a s  s u c c e s s e s  o r  f a i l u r e s  

d e p e n d s  m a i n l y  t ~ o n  o n e ' s  v i e w  o f  t h e  l e g i t i m a t e  g o a l s  o f  v i c t i m  c o m p e n s a t i o n  

m e c h a n i s m s ;  P e r s o n s  p r a i s i n g  c u r r e n t  p r o g r a m  o p e r a t i o n s  p o i n t  t o  t h e  t y p i c a l  

a n n u a l  r e p o r t  g r k p h s  d e m o n s t r a t i n g  i n c r e a s e s  i n  p r o g r a m  c a s e l o a d s ,  b u d g e t k ,  

a n d  s t a f f  s i z e .  C r i t i c s  o f  t he  p r o g r a m s  may a g r e e  t h a t  many o f  t h e  g r a p h  

l i n e s  a r e  t r e n d i n g  u p w a r d  b u t  s t r e s s  t h a t  t h e  gap  b e t weon  ~he a c t u a l  l e v e l s  

o f  p e r f o r m a n c e  and  n e e d e d  l e v e l s  o f  p e r f o r m a n c e  a r e  e n o r m o u s .  They e s s e n t i a l -  

l y  use  much l a r g e r  g r a p h  p a p e r  and s u g g e s t  t h a t  t h e  p r o g r a m s  have  b a r e l y  l e f t  

t h e  b o t t o m  o f  t h e  ~ h a r t  i n  t h e / r  a c h i e v e m e n t s  and have  f a r  t o  go b e f o r e  b e i n g  

~udged  a d e q u a t e .  

T h i s  complex d i s a g r e e m e n t  r e g a r d i n g  l e g £ t i m s t e  p r o g r a m  elms makes 

£ t  v e r y  d i f f i c u l t  t o  a n s w e r  t h e  q u e s t i o n ,  "how a r e  t h e  P r o g r a m s  4 o i n g ? "  

If p o L t ¢ y m a k e r a  Stress limited goals o f  programs in L i g h t  o f  legislative 

r e s t r i c t i o n s ,  t hen  a s s e r t i o n s  of  l ucces8  i n  many programs az~ p robab l y  scou r -  

drte. I f  p o l i c y m a k e r s  i n s t e a d  s t a t e  t h e i r  l u p p o r t  f o r  h r u a d  r a t i o n a l e s  f o r  

t h e i r  p r o g r a m s  ( s u c h  a s  h u m a n / t a r t a n  a s s i s t a n c e  t o  a l l  l n ~ u r e d  v i c t i m s )  and  

t h e n  do n o t  p r o v i d e  t h e  means  to a t t a i n  s u c h  g o a l s  b u t  i n  f a c t  h o b b l e  t h e i r  
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a c h i e v e m e n t  t h r o u g h  myr£~5  e l i g i b i l i t y  r e s t r i c t i o n s  a n d  u m d e r f u n d l n g ,  a s s e t -  

tAChS o f  p r o g r a m  s u c c e s s  a r e  l e e s  c r e d i b l e .  C r i t i c s  c h a r g e  t h a t  s u c h  a c t i o n s  

s o g g e s t  a n  i n t e r e s t  b y  8~me i n  d e v e l o p i n g  • p a p e r "  P r o g r a m s  t h a t  P r o v i d e  ~ -  

p o l l i n g  c a m p a i g n  s p e e c h  m a t e r i a l  w l t h o u t  f u l f i l l i n g  t h e  s t a t e d  g o a l s  o f  t h e  

p r o g r a m s .  S u c h  m i s m a t c h e s  b e t w e e n  r h e t o r i c  a n d  P r o g r a m  s t r u c t u r e s  a r e  c o n -  

l i d , r e d  t r i u m p h s  i n  t h e  e l e v a t i o n  o f  form o v e r  subs tance  i n  p o l i t i c a l  8 c t l o n .  

S i n c e  v i c t i m  c ~ n s a t l o n  p r o g r a m s  a r e  u l t i m a t e l y  t h e  p r o d u c t  o f  t h e  

p o l i t i c a l  a r e n a ,  p r o p o n e n t s  o f  b r o o d  r a t i o n a l e s  f o r  p r o g r a m s  n e e d  t o  c o n v i n c e  

l e g i s l a t o r s  o f  t h e  m e r i t s  o f  t h e  r a t i o n a l e s  a n d  n e e d  t o  s t i m u l a t e  a c t i v e  p u b -  

l i c  s u p p o r t  i n  f a v o r  o f  b r o a d e n i n g  v i c t i m  c o • p e n s • r i c e  p r o ~ a m  c o v e r a g e .  A t  

p r e s e n t ,  e x i s t i n g  p r o g r a m s  r e p r e s e n t  c o m p r c ~ / s e s  b e t w e e n  t h e  b r o a d  t h e o r e t -  

I c a l  r a t i o n a l e s  o f f e r e d  f o r  t h e m  b y  s o ~ e  a n d  more  r e s t r i c t e d  v i s i o n s  o f  p r o p e r  

p r o g r a m  • i r e s .  P r o p o n e n t s  o f  b r 0 s d  c o v e r a g e  t y p i c a l l y  f i n d  t h r o u g h  t h e  c o u r s e  

of legislative action that program structures and pollcies evolve in s u b t l e  

a n d  c o m p l e x  w a y s ,  • r id  t h e  f i n a l  p r o g r a m  f e a t u r e s  u l t i m a t e l y  r e f l e c t  W h a t e v e r  

t h e  p o l i t i c a l  m a r k e t  w i l l  b e a r .  I n  many  s t a t e s  p a s s a g e  o f  • v i c t i m  c o m p e n s a -  

t i o n  h i l l  i n  v i r t u a l l y  a n y  f o r m  l s ' a  n o t a b l e  a c h i e v e m e n t  a n d  i s  t h e  r e s u l t  

Of very substantial work by the bill's sponsors and supporters. Persons 

advocating brood program coverage typically feel that the passage of even 

highly limited victim compensation legislation ie worthwhile in •etate. 

Such programs provide • foundation upon which • later, more ~prehensive 

program can be bu/It. 

~ o ~ r a m  S t r u c t u r e  a n d  O r g a n i z a t i o n  

V i c t i m  c o m p e n s a t i o n  p r o g r a m s  c a n  be  d e v e l o p e d  i n  • v a r i e t y  o f  w a y s .  

P r o g r a m  s p o n s o r s h i p  v a r i e s  c o n s i d e r a b l y  a c r o s s  t h e  n a t i o n .  W o r k e r ' s  Compen-  

s a t i o n  d e p a r t m e n t s  a r e  t h e  m i n g l e  m o a t  p r e v a l e n t  p r o g r a m  s p o n s o r s  (8  pro~) 

f o l l o w e d  b y  t h e  oouz"te (7  p r o g r a m - ) ,  a n d  d e p a r t m e n t s  o f  p u b l i c  s a f e t y .  (5 p r o -  

g r a m " ) .  A v a r i e t y  o f  a d d i t i o n a l  a g e n c i e s  s e r v e  a s  s p o n s o r s  ( e . g .  d e p a r t m e n t s  

o f  s o c i a l  s e r v i c e s ,  g o v e r n o r ' s  e ~ e c u t l v e  o f f i c e s ,  e t c . ) .  A t tachment  A s u : -  

r e • r i m e s  p r o g T a m  s p o n s o r s h i p  a n d  a f f i l i a t i o n .  P r o q r a m  s t a f f  i n  some p r o g r a m s  

sure f u l l y  I n t e g r a t e d  I n t o  e x i s t i n g  a g e n c i e s  a n d  I n  o t h e r  c a s e s  8~e q u i t e  i n d e -  

p e n d e n t  f r o m  t h e  a g e n c i e s .  A r e v i e w  o f  t h e  v a r i o u s  m o d e l s  o f  p r o g r a m  s p o n s o r -  

s h i p  a n d  a f f i l i a t i o n  s u g g e s t s  t h a t  no  one  m o d e l  i s  c l e a r l y  more  a d v a n t a g e o u s  
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t h a n  a~y o t h e r ,  a l t / ~ u g h  c e r t a i n  oou r tobaaed  p rog rams ,  and  e s p e c i a l l y  t h o s e  

mdJo~Ltcat lng c l a i m s  In  g e n e r a l  t r i a l  courts, a p p e a r  t o  o o n f r o n t  s p e c i a l  

p r o b l e m s .  

K number of  a s p e c t s  of p rogram B t r u c t u r e s  and o r g a n i z a t i o n  va rTan t  

c l o s e  a t t e n t i o n  £n oomtng y e a r s .  These emerg ing  i s s u e s  i n c l u d e :  

(1)  The  ~ u e s t i o n  o f  D e c e n t r a l i z a t i o n  o f  Program O ~ e r a t l o n .  Colorado 

I s  c u r r e n t l y  I m p l e m e n t i n g  l e g i s l a t i o n  t h a t  w i l l  r e s u l t  i n  t h e  s t a t e  hav ing  

t h e  f i r s t  t o t a l l y  d e c e n t r a l i [ e d  v~ctkm c om pe ns a t i on  p rogram.  Zach ~ u d i c l a l  

d L a t r i c t  w i l l  c o l l e c t  f u n d s  gotr v i c t k m  cempensa t£on and d i s t r i b u t e  t h e :  t o  

a p p r o p r i a t e  v i c t i m s  o f  c r i m e .  S i m i l a r  p r o p o s a l s  have  been made i n  r e c e n t  

y e a r s  In  F l o r i d a  and C a l i f o r n i a .  Na~or a d v a n t a g e s  c i t e d  f o r  d e c e n t r a l i z e d  

p rog ram o p e r a t i o n  I n c l u d e  I n c r e a s e d  f a i r n e s s  w i t h i n  r e g i o n s  o f  the  s t a t e  in  

fund c o l l e c t i o n  and d £ n b ~ r a e c e n t ,  p o t e n t i a l l y  s p e e d i e r  c l a i m s  v e r i f i c a t i o n  

and i n v e s t i g a t i o n ,  and p o t e n t i a l l y  improved  c o o r d i n a t i o n  w i t h  l o c a l  v i c t i m  

w i t n e s s  s e r v i c e s .  P o s s i b l e  d i s a d v a n t a g e s  £nc lude  v a r i a t i o n s  i n  t h e  a v a i l -  

a b i l i t y  o f  funds  f o r  v i c t i m s  payments  a c r o s s  l o c a l i t i e s ,  p r o b a b l e  l n c = ~ s l s -  

f a n c i e s  I n  award d e c £ n i o n s  a c r o s s  ~ r i s d l c t l o n a ,  end t h e  prob lem o f  d u p l i c a t -  

I n g  p rog ram a d m £ n i s t r a t l v e  cosl=s In  t h e  v a z i o u s  s t a t e  ~ r i s d i c t £ o n s .  Zt 4= 

t o o  e a r l y  t o  deternrLne whether  d e c e n t r a l i s e d  v i c t i m  compensa t ion  s e r v i c e s  

can ,  I n  f a c t ,  be e f f e c t i v e ,  and t h e  Co lo rado  exper£ment  b e a r s  c l o s e  w a t c h i n g .  

The l i k e l i h o o d  o f  c o n s i d e r a b l e  d i s p a r i t i e s  a c r o s s  l o c a l i t i e s  i n  c l a l m s  

d e c l s l o n - m a k £ n g  and h i g h  a d m i n i s t r a t i v e  c o s t s  s h o u l d  c e r t a i n l y  make s t a t e s  

v e r y  cautloua abou t  a d o p t i n g  s~ch I mode l ,  and s u c c e s s f u l  o p e r a t i o n  of  such 

a mechan i sm i n  one c r  more s t a t e s  s h o u l d  occu r  p r i o r  t o  any w i d e s p r e a d  r e p l i -  

c a t i o n  of  t h e  a p p r o a c h .  

(2)  Program S t a f f i n g .  I t  i s  d i f f i c u l t  t o  de te rm ine  opl~Jnal program 

s t a f f i n g  a r r a n g e m e n t s  In  t h e  absence  of h i g h l y  d e t a i l e d  r e s e a r c h  on the  e f -  

£ e c ~ i v e n e s e  o f  d i f f e r e n t  aloproachs$. Our s t u d y  s u g g e s t s  t h a t  t h e  development  

of  en autonomous c o r e  program s t a f f  r e s p o n s i b l e  f o r  t h e  t h r e e  majo r  f u n c -  

t i o n s  o f  v i c t k m  coaqpensa t ion  p rograms  ( admln l s ILra t ione  i n v e s t i g a t i o n ,  and 

d e c k s i o n - m a k l n g )  J~ p r e f e r a b l e  t o  t h e  d i s p e r s i o n  of  such f ~ n c t i o n s  a c r o s s  a 

number o f  a g e n c i e s .  The ma~or p rob lems  f a c e d  by c o u r t - b a a e d  programs t h a t  

d:Lmperse t h e s e  functions across t v o  o r  more agenc ies  are" no ted  i n  t h e  r e p o r t .  
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Program E l i g i b i l i t y  and B e n e f i t s  P o l i c i e s  

Common ma jo r  e l i g i b i l i t y  r e s t r i c t i o n s  d e a l  w i t h  r e s i d e n c y  r e q u i r e m e n t s ,  

t h e  ~ l e  of  c o n t r i b u t o r y  m i s c onduc t ,  r e q u i r e m e n t s  r e l a t e d  t o  t h e  r e l a t i o n s h i p  

o f  t he  v i c t i  m and t h e  o f f e n d e r ,  t h e  n a t u r e  of  compensable  c r l ~ e s ,  f i n a n c i a l  

h~rdship requirements, rules r e g a r d i n g  crime reporting and cooperation with 

~w enforcement officials, and filing de•dllnes. 

All victim ccapeneation programs restrict the types of financial losses 

that are ~w~pensable. Typically programs are authowized to reimburse victims 

for medical and/or funeral expenses incurred •s • result of • ~ime, and •leo 

to ~pensate for lost wages or loss of support to the dependents of • deceased 

victim. Almost ell programs l~ovide reimbursements for cou~sellng expenses in- 

curred as t h e  result of a vlctindzatlon incident. In most cases, these are 

p a i d  as an additional medical expense, though in seme cases • special clause 

4- included An the statute. In • fe w states, ouch as in Massachulett~ au~ 

Virginia, counseling costs are only re.retable in eases of sexual assault. 

The size of awards programs are authorized to provide vary considerably, and 

Attachment S presents • mu~ry of maximum award policles. 

Major emerging issues regarding eligibility and beneflte policies 

Include : 

(I) The Appropriateness of Relative and Household Exclusions. A 

policy of excluding compensation for relatives of the offender and persons 

living in the same household as the offender was adopted In the New Zealand 

statute end widely replicated in American programs. Senator Yarhorough (1965) 

quest/oned the appropriateness of such • blanket exclusion It the time pro- 

grams were first being developed in the United States. Since that time many 

obsereers hove noted the problems with such policies. A number of states are 

a l l o w i n g  c o m p e n s a t i o n  t o  such  £ormer ly  e x c l u d e d  c l a s s e s  o f  v i c t i m s  I f  t h e  

award•  do n o t  r e s u l t  An t h e  " u n j u s t  e n r i c h m e n t  m o f  t h e  o f f e n d e r .  Such re fo rms  

can emable p rog rams  t o  • v o i d  t h e  ~ s i d e r a b l e  i n ~ u m t i c e s  t h a t  o f t e n  ~ c ~ r  i n  

t h e  a d m i n i s t r a t i o n  of  b l a n k e t  r e l a t i v e  and h o u s e h o l d  e x c l u s i o n • .  

(2) The P rope r  Role o f  F i n a n c i a l  Means T e s t s .  A veu : i e ty  o f  p o l i c y -  

makers  have  s t r o n g l y  opposed t h e  u s e  of  f i n a n c i a l  means t e s t s  by  v i c t i m  

~ z p e n s a t £ o n  p r o g r a m s .  O n e - t h l x d  o f  t h e  p rograms  c u r r e n t l y  £n o p e r a t i o n  

r e q u / r e  t h a t  v i c t i m s  s u f f e r  s u h s t e n t i a l  f i n a n c i a l  h a r d s h i p  b e f o r e  t h e y  a r e  



?2 

O 1 4 g ~ l •  f o r  s e e p • n e s t / o n .  E f f o r t s  t o  e n f o r c e  t h e s e  p r o v i s i o n s  v a r y  Widely .  

P o L i c y • • k e r n  need  t o  c a r e f u l l y  c o n s i d e r  t h e i r  u n d e r l y i n g  r a t ~ m a l e  f o r  program 

dev•lopuent in implementing such provisions. The use of • means test implies 

•ewelfare" rationale for victim ©c~pensstlc~; the absence of such a require- 

men• ~l£em other ratlonales (e.g., an insurance model, torte and contracts 

m o d e l s ,  o t ¢ . ) .  A number o f  s t a t e •  aze  c o n s i d e r l n g  e l i m i n a t i n g  t h e  means t e s t  

due t o  t h e  h i g h  c o s t a  o f  i n v e s t i g a t i o n s  r e g a r d i n g  f i n a n c i a l  h a r d s h i p ,  t h e  

g r o s s  l ~ e q u l t i e s  t h a t  can  occuz i n  d e n y i n g  b e n e f i t s  t o  v l ~ t l m s -  ( e s p e c i a l l y  t h e  

e l d e r l y  on f i x e d  in •omen)  ~ho have been d / l l g e n t  i n  s a v i n g  money, and t h e  c h i l l -  

ing affect that such means t es ta  can have on all vlctlms, even those experienc- 

ing severe flnanc/al hard•hip, Who might otherwlse apply for coup•nee•los. 

(3) Minimum Loss  P o l i c i e s .  C o n s i d e r a b l e  c o n t r o v e r s y  has  occ~trred I n  

r e c e n t  y e a r s  r e g a r d i n g  t h e  a p p r o p r i a t e n e s s  o f  minimum l o s s  p o l i c i e s .  The 

m a j o r i t y  o f  p rograms  (58q) have s ~ p t e d  such  r e q u i r e m e n t s ,  and  t h e  minimum 

lOSS r e q u i r e d  I s  t ~ , p l c a l l y  $100 or  two c o n t i n u o u s  weeks  o f  l o s t  e a z ~ i n g s .  

Such p o l i c i e s  m a d o p t e d  t o  r educe  a d m i n i s t r a t i v e  o n s t s  and c a s e  b a c k l o g s .  

Opponents o f  such Policies have argued that they dduscrlnlnatle against certaln 

classes of victims (e.g., rape v i c t i m s ,  the elderly and the disabled). Some 

JUtes have begun to exempt 8~ch victims free the minimum loss provlsl~s. 

Other states (•.g., Illinois, KentuCky, Hew York, and Wisconsin) are seeking 

to ell•leaS• the minimum 1o8s requirement altogether. Such alleles•ion may 

have I variety of beneficial effects on programs, including Incrnas~ program 

awareness and supports Ga1~falo and gut•on (1977) have lnvestlgated the costa 

of  e l i • i n • t i n  9 miD/nee• l o s s  r e q u i r e m e n t s  and s u g g e s t  t h a t  p rograms  c o u l d  s e r v e  

many more v i c t i m s  w i t h  o n l y  • 12t i n c r e a s e  i n  progTam comte i f  t h e  x ~ q u i r e -  

msnta ware eliminated. P~ogr&ms should consider elimlnatlng or limltlng mini- 

lOSS p o l i c i e s .  

{4) The A d e q u a ~  of 1 • e r r a n c y  Award PTocedu~es.  Emerglency award 

p r ~ = e d u z e s  e r e  o f t e n  v e r y  i M f f e c t £ v e  i n  A m e r i c a ' s  v i c t i m  compensa t lon  p r o -  

gram~. Programs  s h o u l d  a d v e r t i s e  t h e  a v a i l a b i l i t y  o f  emergency swa rds ,  e x -  

p e d i t e  t h e i r  processing, and £f p o e s d b l e  d e v e l o p  a c a p a b i l i t y  w l t h i n  t h e  

p rog ram t o  d r a f t  c h e c k s  f o r  such  payments  i n  t h o s e  c a s e s  where t h e  c l a i m  ap-  

p e a r s  m e r i t o r i o u s  and a need exJ~Jta f o r  r a p i d  s s e i s t J m m .  Buch r e fo rms  would 

"~t be l i k e l y  t o  be v e r y  c o s t l y ,  and  ~ u s t  U i n  many Cour t  c a s e s  = J u s t i c e  

delayed is ~ustlce denied," payments delayed of•an become viz~ual denials of 
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t h e  b e n e f i t l  o f  v i c t i m  ¢ o ~ p e n s a t i c n .  D u r i n g  e x t e n d e d  d e l a y s  v i c t i m s  a r e  

z t q u / r e d  t o  s u f f e r  p r e s s u r e  f r o m  c r e d i t o r s  w h i l e  t h e y  e z e  8 1 8 o  s u f f e r i n g  

~ o m  t h e i r  v i c t i m i z a t i o n .  & p a y m e n t  one  y e a r  a f t e r  t h e  v i c ~ t ~ t z a t £ o ~  may 

b e  l ~ t t e r  t h a n  n o t h i n g ,  ~ t  o f t e n  n o t  a g r e a t  d e a l  b e t t e z .  I m p r o v e d  e m e r -  

g e n c y  a w a r d  p r o c e d u r e s  s h o u l d  b e e - m e  8 h i g h  p r i o r i t y  o f  v l ~ i m  ¢ c e ~ e n s a t i o n  

p r o g r a m s .  I n  many  U s e s  l e g i s l a t u r e s  h a v e  p r o v i d e d  p r o g r a m s  w i t h  t h e  m e a n s  

t o  c u t  t h e  m d  t a p e  e n t a n g l i n g  e m e r g e n c y  a w a r d  r s q ~ e 8 ~  p r o g r a m s  n e e d  t o  

f u l l y  i m p l e m e n t  t h e s e  e ~ e r g e n c y  s w a r d  m e c h a n i s m s .  & t t a c h m e n t  C s u n r i s e s  

e ~ 4 - t i n g  e m e r g e n c y  a w a r d  p o l i c i e s .  

(5 )  R e c i p r o c a l  C o m p e n s a t i o n  & ~ e e m e n t e  JLmong S t a t e s .  F i f t e e n  s t a t e  

v i c t i m  c o m p e n s a t i o n  p r o g r a m s  h a v e  d e v e l o p e d  r e c i p r o c a l  a g r e - m e n t 8  w i t h  o t h e r  

8 t a r e s ,  a n d  t h e s e  s t a t e s  v i i i  ¢ c n p e n s a t e  t h e  o t h e r s *  r e s i d e n t s  when v i c t i m -  

i s e d  w i t h i n  t h e i r  ~ u r i s d i c t i o n .  S u c h  a g r e e m e n t  s s e ~  v e r y  a p p r o p r i a t e  i n  a 

m o b i l e  s o c i e t y  s u c h  t h e  t h e  U n i t e d  S t a t e s  a n d  e l i m i n a t e  u n f o r t u n a t e  i n s t a n c e s  

i n  w h i c h  v i c t i m s  a r e  i n e l i g i b l e  f o r  ~ p e n s a t i o n  s i m p l y  b e c a u s e  t h e y  a~e  n o t  

v i c t i m i z e d  w i t h i n  t h e i r  home s t e t s .  S u c h  r e c i p r o c a l  a g r e e ~ e n t s  i h o u l d  be  

8 t r a n g l y  c o r m i d e r e d  b y  a l l  v i c t i m  c o m p e n s a t i o n  p r o g r a m s .  

( 6 )  P r o p e r t y  L o s s  P r o v i s i o n s .  One c o n t r o v e r s i a l  t y p e  o f  l o s s  t h a t  

i s  n o t  t y p i c a l l y  c o v e r e d  b y  v i c t i m  c o m p e n s a t i o n  p r o g r a m s  i s  p r o p e r t y  l o s s .  

0 n l y  Kawai l  a n d  C a l £ f o r n / a  c ~ s t d e r  t h i s  a r e c o v e r a b l e  l o s s ,  a n d  t h e n  o n l y  

f o r  s o - c a l l e d  Good S a m a r i t a n s .  5"nere a r e  t w o  m a i n  r e a s o n s  f o r  t h i s  e x c l u -  

s i o n s  1) t h e  b e l i e f  t h a t  l o s s  o f  p r o p e r t y  £8 l e s s  d e v a s t a t i n g  t h a n  p h y s i c a l  

i n ~ u ~ l  a n d  2) t h e  f e a z  t h a t  t h e  o c 8 ~  o f  s u c h  e o m p e n s t e t £ o n  w o u l d  be  a s t r o -  

n o m i c a l ,  d u e  t o  t h e  l a r g e  p r o p o r t i o n  o f  c r i m e  i n  o u r  n a t i o n  t h a t  4 n v o l v e s  

damage  t o  c=  t h e f t  o f  p e r s o n a l . p r o p e r t y .  

Zn many  s t e r e s ,  e v e n  t h e  c o s t s  o f  r e p l a c i n g  e y e g l a s e m J ,  h e a r i n g  a i d s  

a n d  o t h e r  p r o s t h e t i c  d e v i c e s  a r e  n o t  c o v e r e d  u n d e r  t h e  v i c t i m  c o m p e n ~ a t i ~  

s t a t u t e s .  F o r  many  i n d i v i d u a l s ,  e s p e c i a l l y  t h e  e l d e r l y ,  much l osses  a r e  

d e v a s t a t i n g  a n d  o f t e n  l ~ p o j s i b l e  t o  h a n d l e  on s p o v e r t y - l e v e l  cE f i x e d  i n c o m e .  

C l o s e  t o  t w o - t h i r d s  o f  e x i s t i n g  p r o g r a m  s t a t u t e s  i n c l u d e  • p r o v i s i o n  

e l l ~ i n g  r o t • v e r y  o f  m o t h e r  r e z a o n a b l e  e x p e n s e s . "  T h i s  c a t e g o r y  o f  l o s s e s  

i s  s o m e t i m e s  u s e d  t o  a l l o w  f o r  r e l m b u z s e m e n t  o f  t h e  o n 8 ~  o f  r e p l a c i n g  e y e -  

g l a s s e s ,  h e a r i n g  a i d s  a n d  o t h e r  p r o s t h a t l c J .  I n  a d d i t i o n ,  t h i s  p r o v i s i o n  

h e •  b e a n  e / t e d  i n  t h e  p a y m e n t  f o r  t r a n s p o r t a t i o n ,  a m b u l a n c e  s e r v i c e s ,  c h i l d  



74 

c a r e ,  r e l o c a t i c ~  c o s t a  f o r  r a p e  v l c t ~ n  a n d  • v a r i e t y  o f  o t h e r  e x p e n s e s  

i n c u r r e d  a s  t h e  z ~ s u l t  o f  c r i m i n a l l y  i n j u r i o u s  c o n d u c t .  Z n c l u d l n g  s u c h  8 

f l e x i b l e  p r o v i s i o n  i n  t h e  s t a t u t e s  a l l o w s  t h e  p r o g r a m  t o  ~ e r ~ i a e  g r e a t e r  

d i s c r e t i o n  i n  p r o v i d i n g  f o r  t h e  n e e d s  o f  c r i m e  v l c t i m s ,  a n d  much f l e x i b I 1 -  

£ t y  a h o u A d  b e  e m c o u x a g e d .  

P r o g w a m  P r o c e d u r e s  

The  v i c t i m  c o n p e n a a t i a n  a~,'Ldy f i n a l  r e p o r t  p r e s e n t s  s s u = m a r 7  o f  

. .  ~ o r  p r o g r a m  p r o c e d u r e s ,  I n c l u d i n g  t h o s e  d e a l i n g  w i t h  l ~ b l l c  a w a r e n e s s ,  

c l a i m s  a p p l i c a t i o n ,  c l a i m s  v e r £ f l c a t i o n ,  c a s e  p r o c e s s i n g  t i m e ,  a w a r d  p a y -  

m s n t  a n d  a p p e a l s .  A n u m b e r  o f  e m e r g i n g  i s s u e s  r e g a r d i n g  c l a i m s  p r o c e s s i n g  

r e q u i r e  a t t e n t i o n ,  I n c l u d i n g ,  

( 1 )  The  L a c k  o f  P u b l i c  A w a r e n e s s  o f  V i c t i m  C o m p e n s a t i o n .  The v a r -  

i o u s  t e c h n / q u e s  f o r  m a k i n g  ~ l c t i m s  a w a r e  o f  t h e  a v a i l L b l l i t y  o f  v i c t i m  com-  

p e n s a t l c ~  s e r v i c e s  i n c l u d e  g e n e r a l  a d v e r t i s e m e n t s  a n d  n o t i f i c a t i o n  o f  v i c t i m s  

b y  l a w  e n f o r c e m e n t  p e r s o n n e l ,  m e d i c a l  p r o v i d e r s ,  a n d  v i c t i m / w i t n e s s  a s s i s t a n c e  

p r o g r a m s .  Many p r o g r a m s  a r e  n o t  w i d e l y  a d v e r t i s e d  due  t o  8 c o n c e r n  t h a t  s u f -  

f i c i e n t  f u n d s  L r e  n o t  a v a i l a b l e  t o  p a y  a l l  e l i g i b l e  v i c t i m s  i n  t h e  s ~ a t e .  

T h i s  l a c k  o f  p a b l I c  a w a r e n e s s  o f  p r o g r a m s  i n  many  s t a t e s  i s  p e r h a p s  t h e  m o s t  

c r i t i c a l  i s s u e  f o r  v i c t i m  c c = p e n e a t i o n  p r o g r a m s .  

The  h e s i t a n c y  o f  l e g i s l a t o r s  a n d  p r o g r a m  a d ~ / n i s t r a t o r s  t o  e n c o u r a g e  

t h e  f i l i n g  o f  l e g i t i m a t e  c l a i m s  t h a t  may  n o t  b e  p a i d  due  t o  l a c k  o f  f u n d s  i s  

u n d e r s t a n d a b l e . .  B u t  t h i s  h e s i t a n c y  o ~ I k e s  a t  t h e  h e a r t  o f  t h e  v i c t i m  com-  

p e n s a t i o n  e n t e r p r i s e  a n d  r a i s e s  t h e  q u e s t i o n  o f  w h e t h e r  s t a t e s  e r e  w i l l i n g  

t o  b e c k  u p  t h e  h i g h - s o u n d A n q  r a t i o n a l e s  f o r  p r o g r a m s  w i t h  a d e q u a t e  f i n a n c i n g .  

The fail~re to announce the availability of certain other forms of relief 

( e . g . ,  v a c c i n e  d u r i n g  a n  e p i d e m i c )  w o u l d  be  C o n s i d e r e d  a s c a n d a l .  The 

f a i l u r e  t o  make  v i c t i m  c o m p e n s a t i o n  b e o a d l y  a v a i l a b l e  18 a l s o  v i e w e d  a s  a 

s c a n d a l  b y  P r o p o n e n t s  o f  s u c h  p r o g r a m s .  S t a t e s  s h o u l d  r e v i e w  t h e i r  ~ t r r e n t  

p o l i c i e s  a n d  E u n d i n g  m s c h a n i s m s  and  s e e k  t o  c l o s e  t h e  g a p  b e t w e e n  p r o g r a m  

zationales and actual program operations. Innovative funding scurce8 out- 

slde of general revenues may enable states to fulfill t h e  brand goals pre- 

sented in typical victim ccepensatlon legislatieno 

(2) ~dltlng Claims Processing. Victim compensation programs 

o f t e n  e x p e r i e n c e  c o n s i d e r a b l e  d e l a y s  i n  c a s e  p r o c e s s i n g .  A v e r a g e  c l a i m s  
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p r o c e s s i n g  t i m e s  a~e s ~ a r l z e d  £n At tachment  D. Such d e l a y s  i n e v i t a b l y  

l e a d  t o  g L t s s a t i s f a c t l o n  on t h e  P e r t  o f  v i c t i m s  and r educe  t h e  v a l u e  of t h e  

payment t o  v $ c t i m s  s i n c e  t h e y  ~ r e  ~ e q u i r a d  t o  endure  an e x t e n d e d  p e r i o d  o f  

u n ~ r t a i n t y  r e g a r d i n g  payment and,  p e r h a p s ,  S t r o n g  p r e s s u r e  f r  ,'m c r e d i t o r s .  

The final r e p o r t  provides • x~vlev of a~ructurel, poLicy-related and/or proce- 

dural .factors that can  o c n t r l b u t e  t o  delays in ones processing. Suggestions 

are provided to expedite c l a i m s  l~ucesslng, including the use of o~hrevleted 

p r o c e d u r e s  i n  c e r t a i n  t ~ : ~ s  o f  ~ e s  ( e . g . ,  s m a l l  c l a i m s  and f u n e r a l  expense  

r e q u e s t s ) ,  r e v i s e d  c a s e  ' lnvesV. tga t inn  p r o c e d u r e s ,  and more r s p l d  d r a f t i n g  o f  

checks  once  t h e  c l a i m  has been awarded.  Such improvements  may ~ e  h e l p f u l  i n  

r e d u c i n g  t h e  d e l a y s  e x p e r i e n c e d  by many ProgTams. 

Program Cos t s  and l~md~, g 

V i c t i m  compensa t ion  p r ~ r e m s  r e c e i v e  f u n d i n g  from • v a r i e t y  of  s o u r c e s .  

T h i r t y - n i n e  p e r c e n t  of  e x i s t i n g  programs a re  funded  s o l e l y  t h rough  g e n e r a l  

r e v e n u e s ,  B6t a r e  funded s o l e l y  t h rough  f i n e s  and p e n a l t i e s  mechanisms,  end 

24% t h r o u g h  c ~ m b l n a t i ~ s  o f  g e n e r a l  r e v e n u e s  and f i n e s  and p e n a l t i e s .  Program 

c o s t s  f o r  payments  t o  v i c t i m s  and a d m i n i s t r a t i v e  expenses  a re  s u ~ a r l z e d  i n  

Attachment E, and Attachment F presents • sun~azy of average awards given by 

programs. A number of i ssues  regarding funding ~ c h a n l s m s  r e q u / r a  attention, 

including: 

(I) The Propriety of Fines and Penal~les Mechanisms. Sixty percent 

of  c u r r e n t  I r a t e  v i c t i m  ¢oml~ensation prOgTeNS Lre funded  s o l e l y  o r  I n  p a r t  

through revenues frcB fines and Penalties. Major forms of such mechanisms, 

include fixed Penalties, proportlc~al surcharges, and discretionary Penalties. 

A number of  critics have suggested that fines and penalties are an inappropri- 

ate approach for funding victim compensation prc~Tams. These ~ritics feel 

that such mechanisms violate cititens zlghte to equal appllcat$on of the laws 

and require convicted offenders to pay fez programs that they have no greater 

obligation t o  8upport than any other c i t i z e n s .  Such reasoning has l e d  t o  

c o u r t  c h a l l e n g e s  of  such mechanisms i n  F l o r i d a .  The o o ~ t  u p h e l d  the  appro -  

p r i a t e n e s s  o f  such • f u n d i n g  a p p r o a c h .  A d d i t i ~ a l  ~ha l l engms  may be a n t £ c i -  

Pored  a c r o s s  t he  c o u n t r y ,  however ,  and t h e  t e c h n i q u e  of  f i n i n g  t r a f f i c  o f -  

f e n d e r s  t o  pay  f o r  v i c t i m s  of  v i o l e n t  o f f e n s e s  i s  P e r t £ c u l a z l y  c o n t r o v e r s i a l .  

Further court action may clarify the prope~ role of  such mechanisms, and 

programs s h o u l d  be p r e p a r e d  t o  a rgue  i n  f a v o r  of  such f ~ n d i n g  if necessary. 
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(2) TechnAc~ues f o r  C o l l e c t A n ~  FAnea a n d  P e n a l t A e e  ~ e v e n ~ - .  A v a r A -  

a t y  o f  • p p r o a c h e ~  t o  enoou~•ge  t h e  ~ l l o c t 4 ~  n o f  f a n e s  and  P e n a l t A e s  ~evenue 

have  been  d e v e l o p e d .  One ~ t h e  m o a t  promAaAng new • p l ~ u e c h e e  ~ t h e  uee  

o~ • c o u r ~  m o n i t o r  An New Oeroey  t o  8udAt  ~ u r t  ~ o c k e t e  a~d determAne A~ t h e  

~ u r t 8  a r e ,  An ~ a c t ,  l e v y A n g  t h e  a p p r o p r A a t e  ~Anms. Xn ~ew Oer~ey ,  t h e  

a~AnAotrative O~fAce of the Cou~ts anpports the vActA~ ©nmpen~atAo~ program 

and aeeAst~ At An ensurAr~ that courts o~mply wAth the mandated penalty ms- 

sesament-. Othe~ states that face proble=s An oollecting ~l~a and penal- 

tAes may wieh to ooneAder • sAmAlar approach, a strong centralAzed ~udAclal 

• u t h o r A t y ' e  s u p p o r t  may be needed t o  ~ahe  s u c h  • aonAtorAn~ e y s t ~  e ~ f e c t A v e .  

(3) PossAhle Addi tAonal  Fundlncj Gourcea Other Than FAnes and P e n ~ -  

_~tee a n d  G e n e r a l  R e v e n u e s .  A v a r i e t y  o£ a d d i t i o n a l  p o s e ~ l e  fundAng mechan-  

Aams e ~ l m t  o t h e r  t h a n  gAnes and pena l tAem and g e n e r a l  r e v e n u e a .  Ma jo r  e x -  

amp le s  i n c l u d e  r e s t i t u t A a n  p a y l e n t a e  c a v i l  •neAt8 b r o u ~ t  a g a i n s t  t h e  o f £ e n d e r a  

tArA1 s u i t s  b r o u ~ t  a g a A n o t  t h i r d  p a r t i e s ,  l ~ o p e r t y  f o r g e A t u r e  ~ v e n u e s e  and  

6 o n - o £ - ~  p r o v k e A o n o  t o  acquAre  p r o g A t s  ~ o f f e n d e r s '  r c ~ l t A e s  r e e u l t A n g  

~ r ~  c o m m e r c i a l  ~ l l c a t A o n ' o f  ~.he f a c t s  o f  t h e  a r a b .  None o f  t h e s e  m e c h ~ -  

4-ms a p p e a r  t o  be p e r ~ A c u l a r l y  l~rom£elng s o u r o e o  o f  r e v e n u e s  f o r  v ic~An com- 

p e n s a t i o n  p r o g r a m s ,  ~ t  p r o g r a m s  may w i s h  t o  c ~ s A d e r  t h e  deve lo l~aent  o£ s u c h  

mechanAams f o r  o b t a i n A n g  1Amited s u p p l e m e n t a r y  f u n d s  f o r  p r o g r a m  s u p l ~ r t .  
Coordination wA1-h AddltAonal Victim Support ServAces 

Irony options exAst for ooordinat_tng vlctAm compensatAon progra= 

services with those of other vActAm support agencAes such as victim witness 

aseAstance programs, ~io~s NrvAce programs and victim hotl£nes. PossAble 

a p p r o a c h e s  t o  ~ t h e  p r o g r a n w  Anclude  t h e  eha rAng  o f  L n f o r m a t i o n  r e g a r d A n g  

r e f e r r a l s ,  t h e  t r a £ n A n g  o f  p e r s o n n e l  An o t h e r  p r o g r a m s  tD u s A s t  An v i c t i m  

c ~ p e n s e t £ o n  o a s e  s c r e e n i n g ,  t h e  deve lo l~zen t  of  r a t e r • v i d e  c o o r d i n a t i n g  

e g e n c A e ~  end  t h e  l a k e .  

The ~ o r d A n a t A o n  c~ vActim s e r r a t e s  4- l A k e l y  t o  be eaoAer  An t h e o r y  

t h a n  An p r a c t A c e .  As An v i r t u a l l y  e v e r y  ~ervAce a r e a  wAth m u l t A p l e  p r o v A d e r o ,  

vActAm c o m p e n s a t i o n  and  vAc~ln~/wi tneea  a s s i s t a n c e  p r o g r a m s  ~o • o r  a lways  

c o o p e r a t e  and  ~ o ~ e t i m e a  g e e l  An ~ p e t l t A o n .  P e r s o n n e l  a ~ £ £ 1 £ a t e d  w i t h  Moth 

types o£ p r o g r a m s  t e n d  t o  have  somewhat  d i f f e r e n t  p h A l o s o p h i c a l  ~ A e n t a t i o n e  

t o ~ a r ~  v A c t A ~  and t o  be lAeve  • ~ - r o n g l y  t h a t  t h e A r  s e r r a t e  £e o£ p a r t i c u l a r l y  

g r e a t  v a l u e  t o  v i c t A n ~ .  ~ucb c~m~Atmen~ As v • l u e h l e  and  P e r h a p a  n e c e s s a r y  i f  
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p e o p l e  a r e  t o  p e r f o r m  w e l l  a n d  v i g o r o u s l y  p r o v i d e  a ~ r v i c e s .  T h i s  ~ m m i t ~ e n t  

J ~ e v i t a b l y  l eads  to  = t u r f "  Problems i n  an ere o f  s h r i n k i n g  Teaouroes,  however .  

An e ~ f o r t  w i l l  need t o  be made t o  Overcome the s t u r f "  Problems ~ x ~ n t l y  i n  

• x ~ - t e n c a  a n d  t o  p e r s u a d e  p r o g r e n s  t h a t  t h e y  c a n  b e n e f i t  o n e  a n o t h e ~  "and v i c -  

t £ ~  t h r o u g h  I n c r e a s e d  c o o p e r a t £ o n .  I t  iS ~ I t l c e l  t h a t  pro~rau= ea~inist.ra - 

t a r s  a n d  s t a f f  a t t e m p t  t o  l o o k  b e y o n d  t h e  ~ v e l r i e ~  o f  p r o g r a m  t o  w a y s  t o  

b e s t  a t t a i n  t h e i r  co~mcn g o a l  : a i d  t o  c r J ~ e  v i c t i m .  The  d e v e l o p m e n t  o f  

c o l l a b o r a t i v e  enterpr ises ~uch as v i c t i m  b a t i s t e s ,  ~ b l c h  a £ 1 n u l t e ~ e o u s l y  p r o -  

v i d e  r e f e r r a l s  t o  b o t h  t y p e s  o f  pro~'ram~, may h e l p  t o  o ~ e r c o n e  some r e s i s t a n c e  

t o  i n c r e a s e d  c o o r d l r ~ t i o n .  A d e q u a t e  l e v e l s  o f  £ ~ n d l n g  f o r  l x ~ h  v i c t i m  c c ~ p e n -  

c a t i o n  a n d  v £ c t l m / v i t n e s s  n s s i a t a n c e  p r o g r a n s  b y  ~ a t e  l a g l ~ l a t t t r e e  w o u l d  

g r e a t l y  e n h a n c e  p r o g r a m  c o n p e r a t i c n ,  a n d  ~uch  f~and~ng c a n  be  c o u p l e d  w i t h  

s t a t u t o r y  r e q u i r e m e n t s  o f  c o l l a b o r e t i c ~  a k i n  t o  t h o s e  p r o v i s i o n s  t h a t  a r e  i n  

o p e r a t i o n  I n  C a l i f o r n i a ,  W i s c o n s 2 n ,  N e b r a s k a ,  e n d  s l e e p e r s .  A m e r i c a n  c~ lme  

v i c t i m s  h a v e  m y r i a d s  c o m p l e x  p r o b l e m s ,  e n d  • c o o r d i n a t e d  e f f o r t  ~mong v a r i o u s  

s e r v i c e  p r o v i d e r s  I s  n e e d e d  t o  a d d r e s s  t h e  f u l l  r a n g e  o f  e c o n o m i c ,  p s y c h o l o g i -  

c a l ,  e n d  r e l a t e d  p r o b l e m s  e ~ p e r i e n c e d  b y  v i c t  4 - ~ .  

P r o g r a m  I m p a c t s  Upon V i c t  4~a 

V e r y  l i t t l e  I n f o r n a t i c n  i s  a v a i l a b l e  r e g a r d i n g  t h e  i m p a c t  o f  v i c ~ t m  

c ~ p e n s a t i o n  p r o g r a m s  u p o n  v i c t L e ~ ,  R e c e n t  l £ n L t t e d  r e s e a r c h  s t u d i e s  s u g g e s t  

t h a t  c o n t a c t  w i t h  v i c t i m  c c B p e n a a t i o n  p r o q r a m s  d o e s  n o t  c l e a r l y  Lmprove  v i c -  

t i n s '  a t t i t u d e s  t o w a r d  t h e  c r i m i n a l  J u s ~ L c a  s y s t e m .  S ~ h  a n  o u t c a m e  i s  h o p e d  

f o r  by  some p r o g r a m  p r o p o n e n t s ,  s i n c e  p r o g r a m s  w i s h  t o  e n ~ u r a g e  i m p r o v e d  

¢ o o p e r a t I c ~  w i t h  ~ u ~ i o e  s ~ t e w  a g e n c i e s .  

D e ,  a i l e d  t n f o r ~ t i c ~  I s  n o t  a v a i l a b l e  r e g a r d i n g  t h e  i n p a c t  o f  p r o -  

g r a m s  o n  v l c t  4 - ~ '  e c o n o m i c  o r  p s y c h o l o g i c a l  v e i l - b e i n g .  I n f o r m a t i o n  IS  

n e e d e d  r e g a r d i n g  t h e  J ~ p a o t  o f  m p e c i f i c  p r o g r a m  e l i g i b i l i t y  p o l i c i e s  a n d  

p r o c e d u r e s  on  v i c t i n s .  V i c t i m  c o m p e n s a t i o n  a p p l i c a n t s  r e ~ e o t e d  ~ae  t o  a 

t e c h n i c a l i t y  c e r t a i n l y  f e e l  v i c t i m i z e d  o n c e  a g a £ n t  e n d  t h e  f o r c e  o f  a n  o f f i -  

c i a l  a g e n c y  8 ~ t l n g  t h a t  t h e y  a r e  n o t  w o r t h y  o f  u m £ J t a n c e  ( e . g . ,  b e c a u s e  

t h e y  a r e  r e l a t e d  t o  t h e  o f f e n d e r )  c o u l d  b e  v e r y  d i s t r e s s i n g ,  e v e n  p e r s o n s  

r e c e i v i n g  c o m p e n s a t i o n  c a n  l e g i t i m a t e l y  f e e l  a n g e r e d  o r  d l m I n i o h e d  I f  t h e y  

w e r e  t r e a t e d  h r u ~ i o a l y ,  h a d  t h e i r  f i n a n c e s  a n d  r e l a t e d  ¢ 2 r c u m l t a n c e s  I n v e s -  

t i g a t e d  l r ~ e n s i t i v e l y ,  e x p e r i e n c e d  e x t e n s i v e  d e l a y s  i n  c a a e  p r o c e s s i n g #  o r  

24-906 0 - 84 - 6 
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z ~ c a i v e d  o n l y  a f r a c t i o n  o f  t h e i r  r e q u e s t e d  c l a l ~  d u e  t o  r e • s o n s  t h e y  f e e l  

m u n j u s t .  A p r o g r a m  o f f e n d i n g  o r  d i s t r e s s i n g  • l a r g e  a m b e r  o f  i n n o c e n t  

v £ c t k n a  t h r o u g h  o v e r l y  c o m p l e x  p r o c e d u r e s ,  r e j e c t i o n s  d u e  t o  f a c t o r s  c o n -  

e £ d e r e d  t o  be  ' m e r e  t e c h n i c a l i t i e s '  b y  t h e  a v e r a g e  r . t t l ~ e n ,  a n d  e l ~ t l a r  

p r a c t i c e s  c o u l d  r e s u l t  i n  t n e t  h a ~  t o  v i c t i m  e s e n s e  o f  w e l l - k i  N i n  t h e i r  

c o m m u n i t y  r a s h e s t  t h a n  a n  J = p r o v p m e n t .  The  v i x ~ u a l l y  t o t a l  l a c k  o f  i n f o x m a -  

t i o n  on  t h i s  t o p i c  £ s  s t r i k i n g ,  p a r t i c u l a r l y  i n  l i g h t  o f  t h e  ~ l a t £ v e l y  l a r g e  

a m o u n t  o f  m o n e y  s p e n t  y e a r l y  o n  v i c t i m  c o m p e n s a t i o n  a d ~ n £ s t ~ r a ~ l o n  a n d  a w a r d s .  

~ e a r c h  m~ s u c h  ~ s u e s  ~s  b a d l y  n e e d e d  I f  p r o g r a m  p o l i c i e s  &re t o  b e  r e f i n e d  

b y  l e g i s l a t u r e s  w i t h  t h e  c o n c r e t e  n e e d s  o f  v i c t i m s  I n  m i n d  r a t h e r  t h a n  s i m p l y  

t h r o u g h  h u n c h e s •  a n e c d o t e s ,  a n d  w h e n .  

A t  p r e s e n t  m a n y  s t a t e  l e g i s l a t u r e s  a r e  l i k e l y  t o  r e s i s t  ~ c h  r e s e a r c h  

• x p e n ~ L t u r e s t  ~ , e  t o  a n  u n d e r t a n d a b l e  c ~ e r n  w i t h  t h e  v a l ~  o f  " J u s t  a n o t h e r  

s t u d y ,  e B u t  t h e  v a c u u m  o f  i n f o r m a t i o n  on t h ~  :Lesue m a k e s  r e s e a r c h  on  v i c t ~  

L e ~ a c t  n o t  J u s t  " a n o t h e r "  s t u d y ,  b u t  v i r t u a l l y  t h e  " f i r s t "  s u c h  s t u d y .  O p p o -  

s i t i o n  t o  r e s e a r c h  t h a t  I s  r e d , d a n t e  a r c • n e t  o r  o t h e r w i s e  s e r i o u s l y  f l a y e d  

i s  l a u d a b l e ;  I t  I s  m o r e  d i f f i c u l t  t o  l:n'a£.se t h e  c h a m p i o n i n g  o f  w h a t  ~ - o u n t s  

t o  i g n o r a n c e .  ~n • c r i t i c a l  a r e a  o f  p u b l i c  p o l i c y ,  i g n o r a n c e  c a n  p o t e n t i a l l y  

b e  f a r  m o r e  e x p e n s i v e  t h a n  r e s e a r c h . ~ .  P e r h a p s  w ~ e  • t a r e s  c a n  c o e - - £ e s i o n  

r e l a t i v e l y  m o d e s t  s t u d i e s  and e n c o ~ a g e  s o c i a l  e c i e n c e  g r a d u a t e  s t , d e n t s  t o  

c o n d u c t  t h e m  a~ p o r t  o f  t h e i r  d o c t o r a l  d i s s e r t a t i o n  r e s e a r c h .  S u c h  a n  .ap- 

p r o a c h  n, 'Lght  succees~.'ully d r i v e  down b o t h  t h e  c o s t a  o f  r e s e a r c h  a n d  t h e  c o s t s  

o f  i g n o r a n c e .  
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V i c t i m  c c a p e n a a t i c ~  p r o g r a m s  h a v e  • p r e a d  r a p i d l y  • c r o s s  t h e  U n i t e d  

S t a t e s  a n d  h a v e  ~ o o  b e e n  d e v e l o p e d  £n  many  n a t 4 o n s  a r o u n d  ~ w o r l d .  S u c h  

p r o g r a m n  h a v e  g a i n e d  b r o a d  8 u p p o z ~ ,  • n d  f u r t h e r  g r o ~ . h  i n  t h •  n u m b e r  o f  

programs and t h e  J £ z e  of ~t*t.tr~ programs •ppea~a likely. ~ograms have 

guwa4- ted  a l a r g e  n u m b e r  of i n n o c e n t  v i c t i m l  a n d  a r e  L i k e l y  t o  o c n t i n u e  t h i s  

v a l u a b l e  s e r v i c e .  

~ e  l i k e l y  l ~ r og ram t r e n d s  i n c l u d e  i n c r e a s e d  f l e x i b i l i t y  £ n  e l i g i b i l -  

i t y  ~ l t e r i a  ( i n c l u d i n g  t h o s e  d e a l i n g  w i t h  r e l a t i v e  a n d  h o u s e h o l d  e x c l u s i o n s ,  " 

tinancial means tests, a n d  m/nlmum l o s s e s )  e n d  i n = t e a s e d  u s e  o f  fines a n d  

penalties mechanisms for funding rather than general revenues. Major problems 

faced by programs include improving public awareness, broadening eligibility 

requ/rements, expedltlng claims processing and improving emergency award pro- 

ce dittos • 

Moat  o f  t h e  p r o b l e m s  e x p e r i e n c e d  b y  v i c t i m  c c m p e n a a t l c e  p r o d • m s  h a v e  

t h e i r  r o o t s  i n  a l a c k  o f  f u n d i n g ,  a n d  s t e p s  s h o u l d  be  t a k e n  t o  p r o v i d e  ~ u f f i -  

c l e n t  f u n d s  t o  p r o g r a m s  8o t h a t  t h e y  c a n  b e g i n  t o  f u l f i l l  t h e i r  p r o m i s e  o f  

o o m p e n s s t i o n  t o  a l l  e l i g i b l e  l n n o c e n ~  r i f l e s .  F e d e r a l  l e g i s l a t . t o n  t o  a s s i s t  

p r o g r a m s  h a s  b e e n  p r o p o s e d  r e p e a t e d l y  d u r i n g  t h e  p a s t  two d e c a d e s  a n d  m e r i ~  

c a r e f u l  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  a s  o n e  p o s s i b l e  m e a n s  o f  h e l p i n g  p r o g r a m s  m e e t  t h e i r  

obllgatlun8 to victims. Given the very tight llm/tatlcn8 on the federal bud- 

get, sources of victim compensation funding other than general revenues (e.g., 

federal fines and penalties and forfeiture revenues) warrant partlcular con- 

• Ideratlon. This Project's final report presents • detailed diacuaelun of 

the previous Congressional efforts to pass vlc~Im cc~pensatlon legislation 

e x d  n o t e s  t h e  m a j o r  b a r r i e r s  ~ c h  l e ~ i | l a t i e n  h a l  f a c e d .  

V i c t i m  c o m p e n s a t i o n  m e c h a n i s m s  h a v e  b e c c ~ e  w i d e l y  a c c e p t e d  i n  t h e  

p a s t  t w o  d e c a d e s .  P r o g r a m s  h a v e  b e e n  d e v e l o p e d  i n  a ~ a t u  • R o s a  t h e  n a t i o n  

due  t o  t h e  d e d i c a t i ~  o f  h u n d r e d s  o f  l e g i s l a t o r s  a n d  o t h e r  c i t i ~ e n m .  The  

major task in the coming decades viii be to expand the •cope of enleting 

p r o g r a m s ,  i n s u r e  their financial etabillty, a n d  s e e k  t o  p r o v i d e  c~sistently 

expedltloue and effective assistance to vlctlm~. A federal legislator noted 

y ~ a r a  89 ~ t h a t ,  ~ I t  111  becomes  t h i s  g r e a t  N a t i o n  to ~ n ~ r e  t h e  ~ n n o ~ e n t  v i c -  

t i m  of crime. = Concerted efforts in state houses, victim c~mpen~atlce pro- 

grams, and elsewhere ere helping to dispel the legacy of ne~Iect, and if 

recent history is • relloble Indicato~, such compassionate responses to the 

compelling claims of crime victims will continue to Increase. 
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ATTACHM~T A 

PROGRAM SPONSORSHIP AND AFFILIATION 

(TOTAL 
CATEGORY OF N - 33) PER- 

SPONSORING AGENCY STATES N CENT 

Department of Publlc Alaska 5 15 
S a f e t y  o r  P r o t e c t i o n  Xentucky 

• MarTland a 
Minnesota a a 
New Jersey 

Workmen ' S Compensation F l o r i d a  Oregon 8 24 
o r  Industrial Safety lndiama Texas c : 
Board ~ntarsa Virginia 

North Dakota Washington 

Courts/Judiclary Delaware. a Rhode Isl~nd 7 21 
lllln°isD b Tennessee 
MaS s~chu set ts West V i r g i n i a  d 
Ohio- 

S o c i a l  S e r v i c e s  o r  R a v a l i  2 6 
Welfare Agency Virgin Islands 

Criminal Justice Kansas a 4 12 
A~ninistratlon/ Nebraska 
Department of Justice Oklahoma s 

Wisconsin 

Department of Manage- Connecticut 2 6 
e ment or  Budget Michigan 

G o v e r n o r ' s  Executive New York a 2 6 
Offices Pen~ylvanla 

Other Nevada (State Bd. of Examiners) 2 6 
California e (State Bd. of Control) ._ 

No Affiliation New Mexico e I 3 

a F u n c t l o n a l l y  Independen t  (N - 8; 2 4 q ) .  

b N u l t l p l e  a f f i l i a t i o n s  - -  Cour ts  (N - 4 ;  12q) .  

CMult ip le  a f f i l i a t i o n s  - -  Courts  ~ d  A d m i n i s t r a t i v e  agency; At torney  General  
p rov ides  ~ n v e s t i g a t l o n  ( N -  1; 3 t ) .  

d M u l t t p l e  a f f i l i a t i o n s  - - A t t o r n e y  General  p r o v i d e s  i n v e e t t g a t l c ~  and 
Court o f  Claims makes d e c i s i o n s ;  bu t  l e g i s l a t u r e  
must approve all claims before payment (N - I; 3t). 

eSome investigative component provided by vlctim/wltness assistance programs 
(N - 2~ 6 t ) .  

b'c'd'eTotal number of programs wlth multiple agency affiliations is 6, or 
18q of  t o t a l  p rogram- .  
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Senator  GaASSLZY. You have been right in the middle of it, have 
you not? Mr. McGillis through your study, and you, Mr. Phillips as 
a member  of the Committee on Victims of the ABA. 

I have questions for both of you but I do want  to compliment 
you, Mr. McGillis, on your very exhaustive study, and star t  out by 
asking if you found more often than  not, State programs are not 
widely advertised due to the concern tha t  sufficient funds are not 
available to pay all the eligible victims within their  State? 

Mr. McGIL~S. Yes; That  was my sense in most States tha t  we 
went  to. In fact, a few of the State legislatures have actually pro- 
hibited advert ising in the program legislation. Those programs still 
distr ibute brochures and other material ,  you know, items tha t  are 
not considered advertising. There is a gray area as to what  an ad is 
or is not. 

Yes, programs are very nervous about that.  Understandably so 
because I guess they  are afraid of a run on the t reasury or the in- 
abil i ty to serve a high percentage of the victims tha t  would come if 
it  was highly advertised. 

Senator  GRASSLZY. Would it not be almost a na tura l  action on 
the  par t  of a law enforcement officer who is investigating to some- 
how want  to comfort a victim to remind him of a program like 
this? 

Mr. McGIH.~s. I think tha t  happens in quite a few States tha t  
law enforcement  officers provide information. 

Senator  GRASSLEY. I mean even if it were not part  of their job. 
Mr. McGILuS. I think a lot of them natura l ly  would do that  if 

they  are aware of the program and its services. The same thing 
occurs with medical providers at  hospitals; a lot of them are keenly 
aware of these programs simply because they are fearful that  they 
might  not be able to collect, you know, money on the account with- 
out  the use of the programs. 

Senator  GRASSLE£. From your standpoint,  do a majority of the 
States have mult iple providers of victim assistance compensation, 
and wha t  are the possible drawbacks of multiple providers? 

Mr. McGI~JS. By multiple providers, do you mean separate agen- 
cies? I am not quite clear. 

Senator  GRASSLEY. Yes. 
Mr. M c G I ~ s .  Colorado is considering having multiple providers 

by establishing decentralized system whereby each county would 
provide victim compensation. All of the States but Colorado, to my 
knowledge, have a centralized operation. They operate out of the 
State  capital and centralization helps insure consistency in deci- 
s ionmaking and many other benefits. Centralization can result in 
some inequities where certain counties might  disproportionately 
provide funds to the pool of money and yet not receive back ade- 
quate resources. In Florida, there has been some talk about t rying 
to move toward a decentralized approach because some counties 
feel tha t  they  do not receive their  proportional share of funds. 

Senator  GRASSLEY. I missed your point on whether  or not tha t  
could be a drawback. 

Mr. McGILLm. To do it in a decentralized fashion? 
Senator  GRASSLEY. Yes. 
Mr. MCGILLm. I think there probably could be a serious draw- 

back because of the  uneven decisionmaking tha t  would go on across 
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counties. There would not be much equity, I suspect, if you had dif- 
ferent administrators in different counties making these decisions 
and, ult imately,  since everyone is a member of the same State, it 
seems it would not be fair for an equivalent victim in two adjacent 
counties to have very different outcomes on their  claim. 

Senator GRASSLEY. What  about the paperwork, is it an obstacle 
or is it a fairly straightforward process tha t  is easily understood 
and easy to accomplish? 

Mr. MCGILLm. No. The paperwork in some of these programs is 
enormous. They seek documentat ion from six, seven, eight different 
sources. The prosecutor's office, the police, the person's employer, 
if they have lost wages, medical providers of all sorts, the persons 
themselves in terms of their  fiscal status, if they have a means 
test, so the paperwork can be enormous. I know California has 
been trying to experiment with reduced paperwork in certain small 
claims in order to try to see if they can expedite processing, and 
they are testing to see how much cheating goes on in those cases. 
They are taking a sample of these expedited claims and they are 
doing the full process to see if there is any fraud. 

Senator GRASSLEY. IS it easier for victims to receive psychological 
and social assistance in monetary  compensation? 

Mr. MCGILLm. To receive financial support for tha t  type of assist- 
ance? 

Senator GRASSLEY. Yes. 
Mr. McGmLm. Many of the programs will provide funds for psy- 

chological and counseling assistance. Oftentimes it will come under  
some sort of medical benefits or some other clause in the legisla- 
tion. I am not aware of whether  it is more difficult to get tha t  than  
to get, let us say, s traight  recompense for lost wages. I t  seems as 
though you can get both, depending on the na ture  of the claim. 

Senator GRASSLEY. By the way, Mr. Phillips, if you had any  com- 
ment  you want  to make on any of these questions I asked him, you 
can do that.  And vice versa. I have got some points I would like to 
make with you though. 

Do you have anyth ing  you want  to comment on? 
Mr. PHILLIPS. No, sir. 
Senator GRASSLEY. You made some very good suggestions in ref- 

erence to our bill and I want to thank you for that very much be- 
cause I know that the ABA is very good in many areas but particu- 
larly in an area like this, where we are striking out new laws or 
with very little precedent, and we appreciate it. We are trying to 
build on a good piece of legislation that just recently passed. 

One of the issues brought up was your proposal requiring cover- 
age of those who are injured trying to prevent a crime or appre- 
hend a perpetrator, and I found that to be a good one. Are you 
aware of whether  any States have a provision like that?  Or I could 
ask Mr. McGillis too. 

Mr. McGrLLm. I am not aware offhand. 
Senator GRASSLZY. And obviously you are not then, Mr. Phillips? 
Mr. PHILLIPS. No. 
Senator GRASSLEY. A number of policymakers have strongly op- 

posed the use of financial means tests by victims compensation pro- 
grams. One-third of the programs current ly in operation require 
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tha t  vict ims suffer  substantial  irmancial hardship before they are 
eligible for compensation. 

Is there  an ABA opinion on applying a means  test  to victims? 
Mr. PHILLIPS. I am not aware of a specific ABA position on that  

question. We can submit  f u r t h e r c o m m e n t s  later. 
I th ink  tha t  our  position, as I indicated, is tha t  victim compensa- 

tion is not  a ma t t e r  of race. It is not specifically--i t  should not be 
l imited to those suffering financial hardship because it is designed 
to t ry  a t  least  to offset the  injustice of the crime. 

Senator  GRASSLEY. Well, if you have any fur ther  thought  on that,  
we would apprecia te  them in writing. I do not know how much 
work tha t  is for you to get  an  opinion from your  colleagues or com- 
mittees.  But  we would appreciate it. 

A similar  quest ion is what  you might  th ink  of the minimal loss 
policies. It  is m y  understanding about  half  of the Sta tes- -or  about  
ha l f  the  programs have such policies where  you have to have them, 
we will say, a minimum of 2 weeks of continued loss of income 
from your  work  or maybe a min imum of $100 of loss. Does the 
ABA suppor t  that?  

Mr. PmLLIPS. Again I th ink  I would like to submit  some wri t ten 
comments  on tha t  point. 

Senator  GRASSLEY. Well, tha t  is perfectly appropriate,  and that  is 
all the  quest ions I have for ei ther  one of you. 

Do ei ther  one of you have any closing comments  tha t  you want  
to make  or additions? OK. Well, you have been very  good. Thank 
you very  much. 

Our  next  panel  consists of two State  officials in charge of victims 
compensat ion programs, Ronald Zweibel is chief administrator  of 
New York's  vict ims assistance program. That  is one of the largest 
in the  Nation.  And he is president of the  National  Association of 
S ta te  Crime Victims Compensation Boards. I have a friend testify- 
ing this morning, John Shaffner,  who wrote  the legislation for the 
vict ims compensat ion program in my own State of Iowa, and we 
are jus t  now get t ing that  off the ground. I should say you are now 
jus t  get t ing tha t  off the ground. 

We look forward to hearing your  State 's  perspective of these 
issues we are  ta lking about and I th ink I will begin the  same way I 
introduced you and ask you to proceed, and remind you I have 
some quest ions tha t  I want  to ask as well. 

STATEMENTS OF RONALD ZWEIBEL, CHAIRMAN, NEW YORK 
STATE CRIME VICTIMS BOARD, AND PRESIDENT, NATIONAL AS- 
SOCIATION OF CRIME VICTIM COMPENSATION BOARDS, AND 
JOHN T. SCHAFFNER, LEGISLATIVE LIAISON, IOWA DEPART- 
MENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY, A PANEL 

Mr. ZVgEIBEL. Thank you, and good morning, Senator Grassley, 
ladies and gentlemen. My name is Ronald Zweibel. 

As cha i rman  of the New York State  Crime Victims Board and 
pres ident  of the National Association of Crime Victim Compensa- 
tion Boards, I am pleased to have this opportuni ty to present writ- 
ten tes t imony for the hearing entit led "Crime and the Elderly: 
Does Vict im Compensation Work?" 
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In New York State, the Crime Victims Board receives over 8,000 
claims annual ly  of which 14 percent  are from elderly persons. On a 
national level, crime victim compensation programs have received 
well over 36,000 claims of which approximately 11 percent  are el- 
derly claims. Since the elderly comprise a significant proportion of 
the crime victim claims received, I would like to take this opportu- 
nity to share my perspective on the elderly as crime victims. 

Since you have my wri t ten test imony before you, I would like to 
spend the .next few minutes  summarizing and highlighting my tes- 
timony. 

Mr. Chairman, on the basic question you have posed for this 
hearing, does crime victims' compensation work for the elderly, my 
answer is a qualified yes. Qualified because inadequate funding and 
legal restrictions can and do act to severely limit the number  of 
awards as well as the amount  and type of financial assistance tha t  
can be provided to elderly victims by State crime victim compensa- 
tion programs. The program administrators  have little control over 
these restrictions and limitations. Moreover, it is difficult to under- 
stand how most State governments  can be expected, at least in 
these times of fiscal austerity,  to great ly increase Financial support  
for crime victims' programs, part icularly if the Federal Govern- 
ment  does not carry its share of the funding burden. Of all major 
social insurance programs presently operating in the Nation, crime 
victims' compensation appears to s tand alone as having no Federal  
involvement or assistance. Crime is, of course, a national as well as 
a State problem. There are many  program improvements  which 
could be made in existing State programs that  will be helpful to 
elderly victims of crime. Senior citizen organizations have long ad- 
vocated in New York the elimination of the f'mancial means test, 
awards for essential proper ty- - I  might add that  tha t  was added to 
the New York s ta tute  this yea r - - and  special outreach and claim 
processing efforts to reach isolated elderly victims. New York and a 
minority of other  States have responded to these requests of senior 
citizens for special provisions. However,  in all candor, I must  
advise the committee that  al though crime victim compensation is 
inexpensive compared to most law enforcement programs, many  
State programs lack adequate funding to effectively deliver existing 
program benefits, much less provide for program enhancement .  

The New York State Crime Victims Board exhausted its pay- 
ments to victims funds 8 months into the 1982-83 fiscal year  and 
was required to interrupt  payments  to crime victims for up to 5 
months. Washington State el iminated its program in 1981 for budg- 
e tary  reasons and just  recently reinstated the program. In some 
States, the victims must  wait  a substantial  period of time to receive 
payment  of their  awards due to shortages of funds. This si tuation is 
expected to continue and perhaps grow worse in 1984. 

The cost of medical services to victims is continuing to soar. The 
crime rate remains at historical high levels. Applications for assist- 
ance are ever increasing. Federal  assistance for some State pro- 
grams may be a necessity jus t  to maintain the existing level of 
services. In light of this situation, I would like to commend both 
Senator Grassley and Senator  Heinz for their  support  of Federal  
assistance to State compensation programs and for their 1983 legis- 
lative initiative, Senate bill 704. 
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In reviewing this legislation, our major concerns are that, one, 
adequate funding be available to accomplish funding levels set 
forth in the bill and, two, that such funds actually find their way 
to support the compensation and assistance programs, particularly 
at the State and local level. 

My written testimony at pages 10 and 11 provides a detailed 
analysis of this particular bill. 

In a recently concluded study by APT Associates for the National 
Institute of Justice, it is stated that the President's task force--I 
might add this is on the last page of the report--it  is stated that 
the President's Task Force on Crime Victims recommends that a 
fund be created to assist compensation programs. However, no 
State program under the plan could receive more than 10 percent 
of its awards for the previous year. Any money not disposed of 
would shift to the Federal victim witness assistance fund. 

We oppose this particular formula as being insufficient to assist 
the State compensation programs. We feel that under your propos- 
al in S. 704, as well as the House version in Congressman Rodino's 
bill, there would be adequate funding for the programs but not, as I 
understand the task force recommendation, which would provide 
inadequate funding to State compensation programs. 

I would like to close by urging the subcommittee and its mem- 
bers to push forward with urgency the legislative proposals for Fed- 
eral assistance to State crime victim compensation programs. Since 
1965, nearly every congressional session has considered but failed 
to enact legislation for Federal aid to State crime victim prcgrams. 
Since 1980, this issue has been studied and reported on by the U.S. 
Attorney General's Task Force on Violent Crime, the Department 
of Justice, the President's Task Force on Victims of Crime, as well 
as several congressional committees. In 1983, the administration 
has indicated its support as has Congressman Rodino, Chairman 
Fish, and ranking minority members respectively of the House Ju- 
diciary Committee. I believe that  1983 should be the year for the 
Congress to enact this much needed legislation. 

Thank you. 
[The prepared statement of Mr. Zweibel follows:] 
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INTRODUCTION 

AS Chairman of the New York State Crime Victims Board and President 

of the National Association of Crime Victims Compensation Boards, I 

am pleased to have this opportunity to present written testimony for 

the hearing entitled, "Crime and the Elderly: Does Crime Victim 

Compensation Work?" 

In New York State, the Crime Victims Board receives over 8,000 

claims annually of which 14% are from elderly persnns. On a 

national level crime victim compensation programs have received well 

oJer 36,000 claims of which approximately 11% are elderly claims. 

Since the elderly comprise a significant proportion of the crime 

victim claims received, I would like to take this opportunity to 

share my perspective on the elderly as crime victims. 
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According to the most recent figures generated by the United 

States Census Bureau in 1980, the numbcr of elderly, 65 and older, 

is well over 26 million, approximately 11% of the total population. 

With continued advances in medical technology the average American 

can well be assured of living longer. Estimates have been given that 

by the turn of the century approximately 17% of the total popula- 

tion will be near or over age 65. I 

During the past years increasing attention has been placed 

on gaining, a better understanding of the problems and needs exper- 

ienced by this growing segment of the population. Since more than 

60% of the nation's elderly are located in metropolitan areas with 

a large majority living in inner cities where victimization is 

high, crime is consistently targeted as a problem faced by the 

elderly. If the U.S. Bureau of Justice Statistics victimization 

rates for elderly crime victims are accurate, out of the 26 plus 

million elderly, approximately 182,000 will be victims of violent 

crime in 1983. Although seemingly shocking, when we compare the 

number of incidencus of violent crime to theft crime, the real 

tragedy of elderly victimization unfolds. According to the Bureau 

of Justice Statistics: 

642,000 elderly will be victims of personal thefts; 

1.3 million elderly households will be victimized by 

burglary; and, 

1.5 million elderly households will be victimized by 

larceny. 

These statistics only paint a partial picture of the crime 

problem'faced by our nation's elderly. To gain a fuller per- 

spective, conditions inherent in the aging process that increase 

24-906 O - 84 - 7 
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the elderly's vulnerability to criminal victimization need to 

be identified. Only in this manner can we hope to better under- 

stand the relationship between crime and the elderly, such that 

needed interventions can be created for this specific victim 

population. The conditions identified b~ many professionals 

in the field of gerontology include: economic, physical, en- 

vironmental, social and psychological aspects. 

Economic Conditions: 

Almost half of the population, 65 or older, are retired and 

live on fixed or low incomes at or below the poverty line. To 

have money stolen or needed repairs done on damaged property can 

have more far reaching implications than a purely economic evalua- 

tion would reveal. 

Physical Conditions: 

Diminished physical strength and stamina are experienced by 

all persons going through the aging process. Also, with advanced 

age comes a greater possibility of physical frailty and disability 

which makes the elderly, as a group, more vulnerable to attack. 

Environmental Conditions: 

Since the majority of the elderly population live in 

metropolitan areas in neighborhoods considered high crime areas, 

their susceptibility to attack is heightened. Thus, many urban 

elderly find themselves in situations where the next door neighbor 

could be the next elderly victimizer. Also, many elderly in urban 

areas find walking or mass transit as their only means of trans- 

portation which puts them on the street as easy prey. The issue 

dates of benefit checks are widely known in urban areas; thus, 

the elderly are more likely to be victimized repeatedly and fre- 

quently by the same offender. 
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Social Conditions: 

More often than not the elderly live lives that are socially 

'isolated. Whether this isolation is self-imposed or not the fact 

remains that this very condition makes the elderly highly vulnerable 

targets for victimization. 

Psychological Factors: 

The fear of crime in-and-of-itself keeps many elderly residing 

in urban areas virtual prisoners in their own homes. This fear of 

violence can lead the elderly to accept unwarranted limits on 

their freedom to the extent that their lives are continually im- 

poverished and their freedom becomes non-existent. 

It appears that the crime problem experienced by the elderly 

has two distinct aspects: 

i) the actual incidence of being victimized; and, 

2) the dysfunctioanl fear of being victimized. 

The questions that must be raised at this juncture are: 

are existing victim service providers assisting the 

elderly in overcoming the actual consequences of 

victimization? 

are existing victim service providers assisting the 

elderly in coping with and overcoming the fear of 

victimization? 

What types of victim service programmatic changes 

or modifications are needed on a State level to 

ensure that currently unmetneeds experienced by the 

elderly victim are fulfilled? 
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What can the Federal Government do to assist the states 

in achieving their victim service goals to better serve 

the elderly victim? 

The short answer to these important questions is that 

crime victim service programs are providing valuable assistance 

to thousands of elderly crime victims, but due to legal restric- 

tions, inadequate funding, and general lack of public awareness, 

are reaching only a small fraction of the nation's elderly victims 

of crime. While it is often stated that crime is primarily a local 

and state problem, it is also true that crime is a national problem. 

The Federal Government must do its share. Unfortunately, legis- 

lation that provides even a modest level of federal funding assis- 

tance for state victim compensation programs has in the past 

repeatedly failed to be enacted by Congress. 

However, in light of the 1982 President's Task Force on 

Victims of Crime Report supporting Federal financial assistance 

to State crime victim compensation programs, the support of the 

Federal Administration and legislative interest shown in both the 

Senate and the House, we look forward to posi£ive legislative 

action by the Congress in 1983 to assist elderly and non-elderly 

victims of crime. 
above 

In order to answer the / questions in detail, it is necessary 

to examine the two distinct types of victim service programs 

currently operating in the nation: 

monetary compensation programs: and, 

victim/witness assistance programs. 
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Compensation Programs 

Eligibility: To date, there are 39 crime victim compensation 

programs in the United States including the District of Colum- 

2 
bia and the Virgin Islands. There are some basic similarities 

in determining a victim's eligibility, compensable crimes, and 

compensable losses in all programs. In general, a victim is 

determined eligible if: 

a physical injury is'sustained; 

cooperation with the police is evidenced; 

he/she is a dependent of a deceased victim; and 

the claim form is filed within appropriate time 

frame. 

In addition to these rather general provisions, approxi- 

mately one-third of the compensation programs require some 

type of "financial means test" to further determine eligibility. 

A majority of state compensation programs also require that the 

victim be a resident of that state. 
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Compensable Crimes: Most generally, compensable crimes include 

all violent crime; murder, rape, robbery, and assault, where the 

victim was the innocent victim of a crime. A little over one-half 

3 
(54%) of all the programs require that the crime not be perpetrated 

by another family member. Also, at this time, the majority of com- 

pensation programs do not recognize motor vehicle crimes giving rise 

to injuries of innocent parties unless such vehicle is used with An- 

tent to inflict bodily harm. 

Compensable Losses: The majority of the compensation programs 

will make awards for: medical expenses, the loss of earnings or sup- 

port, psychological counseling, occupational rehabilitation, and 

funeral expenses. 4 These awards are made by reducing the amount of 

any applicable collateral benefits including life, health and dental 

insurance, disability benefits, social security benefits, etc. Some 

programs require that a victim sustain a minimum loss. In very few 

programs can the loss of property or pain and suffering be considered 

as a compensable loss. 

In 1983, out of the Ia0,000 elderly, violent crime victims, 
avelage 

98,280 or 54% 8 will sustain a physical injury. Looking at the/award 

rate of 61% 6 for all compensation programs and applying that figure to 

the 98,280 physically injured elderly crime victims, approximately 

60,000 could'receive an award for compensable losses. When this figure 

is compared to the nearly 4,000 elderly victims expected to receive com- 

pensation, the realization must be made that a large elderly crime vic- 

tim population is not receiving needed assistance from the present 
scope of compensation available. 

Special Provisions: While crime victim compensation programs 

do not, as a rule delineate between elderly and non-elderly victims, 

there are programs that have taken steps to institute a few special 
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provisions which are of benefit to the elderly. These provisions 

include: 

"elimination of the minimum loss requirement as done by the 

States of New Jersey, Pennsylvania; 

"awards for home care and other replacement services as done 

by Connecticut, Florida, Kansas, Minnesota, North Dakota, 

Ohio, Oklahoma, Virginia, Wisconsin; 

"awards for the repair or replacement of essential personal 

property as done by Connecticut, Delaware, Maryland, New 

York, Ohio; 

"utilizing claims investigators or implementing special senior 

victim units who are more sensitive to the problems experienced 

by the elderly crime victim as done in the states of Illinois, 

New Jersey, New York;and, 

"referral and linkage to other victim assistance services as 

done by the great majority of Compensation Programs. 5'6 

Needed Improvements: In light of the special conditions of the 

elderly which aggravate the consequences of the victimizations, compen- 

sation programs need to take a variety of measures to better serve 

this victim population. Ideally, compensation programs need to 

consider doing the following: 

"eliminate the financial means test and/or minimum loss require- 

ment; 

"establish~information aid referrel to other aging services 

provided by other programs 

• implement and/or expand awards for essential personal property; 

"heighten outreach efforts to the isolated elderly victims; 

• create or establish special claims investigation units to 

deal specifically with elderly crime victim claims~ 
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"establish or heighten links with other victim assistance 

service programs. 

Victim Assistance Programs: Tn an effort to serve the needs 

of the whole victim, elderly or not, victim assistance programs 

evolved to fill the gap left by compensation programs. While the 

39 compensation programs provide assistance for the victim's 

economic hardships on a state level, over 400 local victim assistance 7 

programs throughout the country have the ability to meet the other 

complex problems experienced by crime victims. Many programs do 

not distinguish between the elderly and non-elderly while others 

are specifically geared toward assisting the elderly victim. 

Whatever the case may be a wide array of services are offered to 

serve the needs of the elderly. These services may include the 

provlsion of: 

emergency shelter, food, money and/or security repair; 

24 hour hotline; 

crisis intervention; 

outreach; 

advocacy and referral; 

follow-up counseling; 

transportation and escort services; 

assistance with insurance claims, restitution Payments ' 

and victim compensation; 

assistance with the legal process including a procedural 

orientation, notification of case schedule and disposition, 

preparation for testimony, the securing of legal counsel; 

victim/witness waiting areas; and, 

victim/witness protection, as needed. 
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These services in conjunction with crime victim compensation 

seek to make the victim whole once aqain. Thus, the relationshi~ 

between victim assistance programs and compensation programs can 

be crucial. 

Out of all the victims served by victim assistance programs 

24% 7 are elderly. When this figure is compared to the 11% elderly 

victim population served by compensation programs, one can safely assume 

that victim assistance programs certainly complement the limited assist- 

ance available from compensation programs. The fact still remains 

that aside from the services being provided to some 

victims, a large majority are not being served due to many program- 

matic constraints. 
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The Federal Government's Role: 

Analysis of S.704, Crime Victims Assistance Fund, introduced 

by Senators Heinz and Grassley. I would like to commend both 

Senators Grassley and Heinz, for their support of Federal assistance 

to state compensation programs and their 1983 leqislative initiative. 

In reviewing this legislation, our major concerns are that 

(i) adequ@te funding be available to actually accomplish funding 

levels set forth in the legislation, and (2) that funds actually 

be used to support victim compensation and assistanoe programs, 

particularly at the state and local level. 

Various revenue estimates have been given for this legislation, 

but the total annual revenue for the Fund will need tO be at 

least $30 million in order to meet the legislation's stated goal 

of providing 25% funding assistance to state crime victim compen- 

sation programs. Should actual revenues collected prove to be 

less than $30 million per year, we believe the legislation should 

give priorit~ to state victim compensation programs. Compensation 

programs are not only the oldest victim service programs in the 

nation, but are the"front line"programs that provide direct, tan- 

gible relief for the hardships suffered by the nation's elderly 

crime victims. 

Should revenues be-inadequate to fund existing victim com- 

pensation and assistance programs at the 25% level, the distribu- 

tion of these very limited funds to train law enforcement officials, 

provide technical assistance to the states, or establish new 

Federal witness programs or a victim's advocate in the Department 

of Justice should, in onr view, be given secondary priority. 

"Moreover, the bill as presently drafted does not 
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authorize or require the distribution of any funding assistance 

to local" or state victim assistance'programs, eveh if adequa£e 

revenues are received by the fund. At the very least, any 

legislation enacted by Congress should guarantee that a major 

portion of funds collected for the purpose of aiding victim and 

witness assistance programs, should be di-stributed to the state 

,and local programs through the appropriate state agencies. It is 

these programs that bear the burden of assisting 

the vast majority of the nation's crime victims. 
one of 

AS chief administrator of/the nation's largest crime victims 

program and President of the National Association of State Crime 

victim• Compensation Boards, I can testify that the basic 
to 

need for federal legislation/provide funding assistance to elderly 
victim 

and non-elderly/programs has never been greater. 

In late 1982 and early 1983, the New York program, which has 

traditionally received adequate state funding, ran out of funds 

for compensation awards eight months into the 1982-83 fiscal year. 

Payments to victims were therefore delayed up to five months. 

This inadequate funding situation for New York and most other state 

programs is expected to continue and perhaps grow worse in 1984. 

The cost of medical services to victims is continuing to soar, the 

crime rate remains at historic high levels, and applications for 

assistance are ever-increasing. Federal assistance, for some state 

programs, may be necessary just to maintain the existing level of 

services. 
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Senator  GgAsst~y. Thank you very  much. 
John,  will you proceed? Mr. Schaffner. 
Mr. SCHAFFNER. Mr. Chairman, my name is John Schaffner. For 

the  last  11 years,  I have served as the legislative liaison officer for 
the  Iowa Depar tment  of Public Safety, which is a statewide law en- 
forcement  agency. I am also the administrator  of Iowa's new crime 
victim repara t ion  program, which became operational on Janua ry  
1 of 1983. 

As a resul t  of these dual roles, I have had the unique opportuni- 
ty of shepherding our  victim reparat ion bill through the Iowa legis- 
lative process, a process which I am sure the  chairman is very fa- 
mil iar  with. I also had the opportuni ty to implement  the new legis- 
lation once it was enacted. I am pleased to be here today to share a 
few remarks  and concerns with you. 

I might  begin by saying tha t  crime victims have repeatedly 
voiced concern over minimum law requirements  enacted by legisla- 
tures  to contain costs. In practice, this exclusion places the elderly 
and low income victims in a distinct disadvantage. A threshold of 
$100 or $250 represents to them substant ial  losses that  they cannot 
absorb. 

Vict im compensation programs differ generally in residence re- 
quirements .  Some States will only compensate residents tha t  are 
victimized within their borders. Others will compensate their resi- 
dents  regardless of where they are victimized, but  will not compen- 
sate nonresidents  who are  victimized within the State. States that  
a t t rac t  large numbers  of tourists have been hesitant  about  offering 
coverage to nonresidents for fear of depleting their compensation 
funds. 

At least  15 States have entered into reciprocal agreements.  Al- 
though this policy is a first step toward a more equitable approach, 
it is limited. To address this problem fully, States should agree 
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~either to compensate all eligible individuals victimized within the 
State regardless of their residency or to compensate their own resi- 
dents wherever  they are victimized. I recommend that  no Federal  
assistance be given to those State compensation programs that  
have restrictions limiting payments  to only residents of their  re- 
spective States. 

An example is found in our own Iowa experience. Our law pro- 
vides tha t  a person who is victimized in Iowa, regardless of the 
residency, can be compensated. We had an Iowa resident tha t  jour- 
neyed to Florida and was victimized in Florida. Florida will not pay 
because they were not a resident of tha t  jurisdiction. We believe 
that  that  is an inappropriate bar by certain States. So I would ad- 
.vocate tha t  Federal funding be made available to those States who 
m fact do not consider residency as a test. 

Our Iowa law does not have a minimum threshold payment  to 
receive a claim payment.  We process all claims but  do not have the 
minimum threshold. I think that  was a question that  was raised 
earlier. 

Senator GRASSLEY. Backing up one step, you just  made the point 
that  we ought to have a requirement  in the Federal  law that  resi- 
dency could not be a requirement  by the individual States. 

Mr. SCHAFFNER. If they in fact are receiving Federal  funding for 
the program..The Iowa law is also based upon the same concept 
that  your  proposal deals with. Ours is based upon a surtax on all 
criminal files, whether  that  be a traffic fine, or a fine for a major 
.felony offense. We implemented the compensation program without  
Increasing any type of taxes; merely a surtax on criminal fines. 
The Iowa fund has generated about $1.2 million annually.  About  
200,000 of that  money was appropriated by the general assembly 
specifically for crime reparation. There are  also other  programs 
funded by the surtax fines. We are one of the recipients. It is not a 
t rust  fund operation. 

The propriety Federal funding revolves around two issues. First, 
the propriety of the Federal involvement, and of course second, the 
cost to the Federal  Government. I believe there are at  least two 
sound reasons for Federal participation in State victim compensa- 
tion programs. First, most State programs current ly compensate 
Federal victims of crime. However, because of financial problems, 
many States may  be unwilling or unable to continue to do so in the 
future. If  State programs stop helping victims of Federal crime and 
no Federal efforts are made, then either there  would be no help 
available for such victims or victims of crime over which the Feder- 
al and State  governments share jurisdictions, would find their  eligi- 
bility, dependent  upon some bureaucrat ic  decision as to which ju- 
risdiction will, in fact, provide compensation. These decisions are 
based on considerations that  oftentimes have nothing whatsoever  
to do with the immediate needs of the victim. But the Federal  Gov- 
ernment  could, of course, commit itself to aiding victims of Federal  
crimes. If  this course is chosen, probably a new bureaucracy cover- 
ing 50 States would have to be created. The s tar tup and continued 
administrat ive costs of such a program would be substantial.  A du- 
plication of S ta te  and Federal effort would not only be inefficient 
but  would be confusing to victims that  we all seek to serve. The 
most unfor tunate  result of this would be large sums of money 
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which could be expended would be expended on unnecessary ad- 
ministrative costs rather than made available to those victims who 
are in need of assistance. 

The point I am making is that I think the States have programs 
in place today and could administer to the Federal victims through 
the existing State programs with 100 percent reimbursement for 
those Federal crimes which the States are asked to provide com- 
pensation for. 

I would hate to see another layer of bureaucracy created simply 
to administer Federal funds to Federal crime victims. I think we 
could piggyback on existing State programs that are now in place. 

Second, the Federal Government has a history of making sums of 
money available to State programs for criminal justice purposes, 
such as funding for the law enforcement agencms through the 
former Law Enforcement Assistance Administration, and the Fed- 
eral Government has also made money available to the States for 
education and rehabilitation of State prisoners who have commit- 
ted State crimes. If the Federal Government will step in to assist 
State prisoners, it seems only just that  the same Federal Govern- 
ment might also step in to help citizens that were victimized by 
those Federal crimes. 

I recommend that the Federal victim compensation funding 
moneys be distributed to the States according to the following 
guidelines. I believe that the 25 percent proposal that was advocat- 
ed by the ABA is probably a little bit more generous than the cur- 
rent language of the bill, and I hope that there is some considera- 
tion by the subcommittee of increasing it perhaps from 10 percent 
to 25 percent as has been advocated by the ABA. 

Money from the Federal crime compensation fund could be ad- 
ministered to the States as follows. The States would in fact report 
the total amount of compensation awarded the previous year, and 
these figures would be totaled to get the total compensation to be 
awarded nationally. Each State's award would be figured in terms 
of its percentage on a national total. Each State would be awarded 
that  percentage on the compensation fund for the ensuing year 
with limitations that  it could not receive more than 25 percent of 
its total award for the previous year. 

Speaking now about the elderly specifically. In the past two dec- 
ades, a great deal of concern has been focused on the needs of the 
elderly. Many people believe that elderly Americans are especially 
vulnerable to crime. They are preferred targets of crime, yet data 
gathered by the National Crime Survey over the past 8 years show 
that younger persons under the age of 65 make up a disproportion- 
ately large share of the Nation's victims. The rates of crime 
against the elderly are comparatively low statistically speaking. 
However, I would like to share with you a few thoughts that the 
statistics did not put in real human terms. 

One of the great fears of an older person is a fall. Older bones 
are brittle and break more easily than younger bones. A leg or hip 
that  is broken during a mugging or a purse snatching can result in 
immobility and dependency for long and prolonged periods of time. 
Such injuries can even result in the permanent confinement to a 
wheelchair or nursing home. Thus relatively minor physical inju- 



107 

ries weigh oftentimes much more heavily on our older victims of 
crime. 

On the whole, our older persons also have a diminished income 
or are oftentimes on fixed incomes and have fewer economic re- 
sources than  our younger Americans. Dependents on pensions or 
.social security payments  commonly make old age a t ime of econom- 
ic insecurity. The limited resources of the elderly are used for ne- 
cessities. This factor explains how even a small loss would often 
result very heavily on a senior citizen. Criminals also, as we know, 
attack the weak. The reduced physical capabilities of older persons 
often act as incentives for victimization. In addition, due to the eco- 
nomic factors and patterns of neighborhood transitions, the elderly 
are likely to live in close proximity to high crime areas. The elder- 
ly are also more dependent on walking and public t ransportat ion 
which oftentimes increases their  exposure to criminal activity. 

We talked earlier today about the fear of crime which is particu- 
larly pervasive amongst our senior citizens. 

I would like to close my remarks today by talking a bit more in 
detail with regard to the Iowa statute. The question was raised ear- 
lier are there States tha t  do have a good samari tan provision. I am 
pleased to report the Iowa statute  does have a good samar i tan  pro- 
vision. The Iowa s ta tute  also requires tha t  we publicize the exist- 
ence of our victim reparation program. There is a legislative man- 
date tha t  we publicize its existence. We also have s ta tu tory  lan- 
guage tha t  law enforcement officers, social workers, and victim as- 
sistance programs shall publicize the existence of the program, and 
I think you are part icularly on point, Senator, when you said tha t  
law enforcement is the first line of contact with crime victims. We 
have prepared for our Iowa law enforcement officers a little card 
that  they carry in their  briefcases. They tear tha t  card off and give 
it to the crime victim and the information is there for the victim to 
begin pursuing compensation. So I th ink tha t  is part icular ly impor- 
tant. 

The bill tha t  you have worked on with Senator Heinz talk in 
terms of making training available for law enforcement officers. I 
think there is a language in the bill tha t  states tha t  some funding 
will be available for t raining of law enforcement officers. I would 
suggest tha t  maybe tha t  language should be more specific and say 
that  the t raining should focus upon sensitivity t raining of those of- 
ricers toward the needs of crime victims. The language may be a 
little bit too broad the way it is drafted today. Training of law en- 
forcement officers could be interrupted to mean tha t  we would 
train them for accident investigations or we could t rain them in 
firearms usage. That  type of t raining might be a little bit afield 
from perhaps what  we are trying to focus on in crime victim assist- 
ance. 

Our program in Iowa is a bit more conservative than  some 
States. Our maximum payment  is $2,000 per victim. Some States, it 
is $15,000 or $20,000. But we think this is a foot in the door. We are 
concerned about future funding of our program. We have a sunset 
clause in our legislation tha t  sunsets this law next July. I am sure 
our appropriations people will be looking very carefully at  tha t  and 
if there is some possibility of getting some supplementary Federal 
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funds, that  would certainly enhance the continuation of our pro- 
gram. 

So, with that, Senator, I would defer to any questions that you 
might have at this point in time. 

[The prepared statement of Mr. Schaffner follows:] 
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Mr. Chairman and members of the Senate Subcon~nittee on Aging, 

my name is John T. Schaffner. For the last eleven years, I have 

served as the Legislative Liaison Officer for the Iowa Department 

of Public Safety (a statewide law enforcement agency). I am also 

the administrator of Iowa's new Crime Victim Reparation Program, 

which became operational on January I, 1983. 

As the result of these dual roles, I have had the unique oppor- 

tunity of shepherding our Victim Reparation Bill through the Iowa 

Legislative process and following the enactment of this new legisla- 

tion, I was assigned the responsibilities to administer the imple- 

mentation of our new reparation statute. 

I am extremely pleased to have the opportunity to testify before 

your subcommittee today. 

Daily, we are exposed to a plethora of media reports about cases 

of violent crime such as murder, rape, robbery or aggrevated assault. 

These news accounts reflect the fact that nationally, during the last 

fifteen years, we have experienced a rapidly accelerating upsurge in 

violent crimes. As is so often the case, attention is directed to 

the perpetrator of the crime and to the criminal justice system. But 

what about the victim? What of his or her injury, suffering, humili- 

ation and financial losses? It has been said that the victim is twice 

victimized: once by the criminal and once by the crimiaal justice 

system. The victim is generally left helpless, often destitute and 

almost always unattended. 

24-906 O - 84 - 8 
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I believe there is a growing awareness among many today, that 

the victims Of violent crime have too~long been the "forgotten per- 

sons" within our society and within our criminal justice system. 

There is much justification for this concern. Not only do the vic- 

tims of crime suffer directly from the criminal act with all its 

psychological, physical and economical ramifications, but victims 

are also often subject to the additional trama during the criminal 

justice process. 

Traditionally, our people look to our criminal Justice system 

to provide a sense of security from those who break the law. It was 

a belief in this fundamental rule of law, upon which our country was 

founded. The court is our sanctuary. 

Victims control their impulse to seek revenge against offenders 

in return for the government's promise to protect them. Moreover, 

victims pay taxes to the government for this protection. Since the 

government forbids victims to take the law into their own hands, it 

seems fair that when government fails to protect them, the victims 

should receive at least the same attention government now grants to 

criminals. 

I believe, however, there is cause for optimism. Since 1965, 

thirty-eight states and the District of Columbia have enacted crime 

victim compensation legislation. Victim compensation is an unusual 

program in terms of its ability to generate political support. In 

a sense, it is difficult to find opponents of victim compensation. 

The major focus of opposition to compensation programs generally does 

not rest with the program philosophy, provisions or target clients, 

but. in concerns over its potential costs. Payments are made from 

state administered funds upon application by eliglble claimants. 
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P a y m e n t  d o e s  n o t  d e p e n d  upon t h e  a r r e s t  a n d  c o n v i c t i o n  o f  t h e  o f f e n -  

d e r  and  t h e r e  i s  no  n e e d  f o r  t h e  c l a i m a n t  t o  s e c u r e  a c i v i l  J u d g m e n t .  

S u p p o r t  f o r  t h e  i d e a  o f  v i c t i m  c o m p e n s a t i o n  ma~ h a v e  b e e n  g e n e r -  

a t e d  by  t h e  g e n e r a l  p u b l i c ' s  i n c r e a s i n g  a w a r e n e s s  o f  t h e  g r o w i n g  c r i m e  

r a t e  and  t h e  c h a n g i n g  p e r c e p t i o n  o f  t h e  l i k e l i h o o d  o f  b e c o m i n g  a c r i m e  

v i c t i m .  As t h e  p u b l i c  p e r c e i v e d  t h e  c h a n c e  o f  v i c t i m i z a t i o n  t o  b e  ' 

h i g h e r ,  s u p p o r t  f o r  a p r b g r a m  w h i c h  w o u l d  o f f s e t  some o f  t h e  n e g a t i v e  

c o n s e q u e n c e s  o f  v i c t i m i z a t i o n  w o u l d  b e  m o r e  l i k e l y  t o  g r o w .  

One aspect of victim compensation, which brings both public and 

law enforcement support for the concept, is the almost universal pro- 

vision that victims must cooperate with law enforcement officials to 

be able to be ellgible for victim compensation. In this resepct, 

victim compensation has the potential"to assist not only the innocent 

victim, but the system designed to bring the offender to Justice by 

encouraging reporting of the criminal incident and willlng participa- 

tion in the criminal justice process. 

Coverage generally extends to both victims and dependents of 

victims and the laws generally define both terms broadly. Most of 

the statutes condition eligibility on the victims having reported 

the crime to the police and cooperating with the.police during the 

investigation and prosecution of the criminal act which precipitated 

the clalm. 

Compensation generally is provided for unreimhursed medical ex- 

penses, funeral expenses and loss of earnings. Property losses gener- 

ally are not reimbursed. Several states provide compensation for such 

additional expenses as psychiatrlc services or psychologlcal counseling. 

Most of the laws set a ceiling on the amount of recovery by individual 
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c l a i m a n t s .  I n  a f e w  s t a t e s ,  up t o  $ 5 0 , 0 0 0 ,  b u t  m o r e  con~nonly i n  t h e  

r a n g e  o f  $ 1 0 , 0 0 0  t o  $ 1 5 , 0 0 0 .  

M o s t  o f  t h e  v i c t i m  c o m p e n s a t i o n  p r o g r a m s  a r e  f i n a n c e d  f r o m  

g e n e r a l  r e v e n u e  f u n d s ,  a l t h o u g h  s o m e  a r e  f i n a n c e d  a n d  h o l d  i n  p a r t  

f r o m  o f f e n d e r  a s s e s s m e n t s ,  s u c h  a s  a s u r t a x  on c r i m i n a l  f i n e s .  

T h e  p h i l o s o p h i c a l  b a s i s  f o r  c o m p e n s a t i o n  p r o g r a m s  v a r i e s  f r o m  

a l e g a l  " t o r t "  t h e o r y  w h e r e b y  t h e  s t a t e  i s  s e e n  t o  h a v e  f a i l e d  t o  

p r o t e c t  i t s  c i t i z e n s  a d e q u a t e l y ,  t o  an h u m a n i t a r i a n  r a t i o n a l e  f o r  

w h i c h  a l l  c i t i z e n s  s h o u l d  r e c e i v e  a s s i s t a n c e  f o r  t h e  c o m p e l l i n g  

needs, to yet another, theory that recognizes victim satisfaction as 

a benefit to the criminal justice system. In reality, most programs 

r e p r e s e n t  a m i x t u r e  o f  t h e s e  r a t i o n a l e s .  

I believe that financial compensation for losses that victims 

sustain as a result of a violent crime, must be an integral part of 

both federal and state governments response to assisting those inno- 

cent citizens. No amount of money can erase the tragedy and trama 

imposed upon them, however, some financial assistance can be impor- 

tant first steps in helping crime victims begin the often lengthy 

process of recovery. 

The financial impact of crime can be severe. There is a tendency 

to believe that insurance will cover most costs and losses. While 

some victims have adequate coverage, many others do not. The poor and 

the elderly often have no insurance. Even those victims who have cov- 

erage discover that recovery is made difficult or impossible by high 

deductible clauses, or that their policy is limited or has precluded 

payments for such expenses as loss wages and psychological counseling. 

Several state compensation programs now share a common concern, 
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the maintenance of adequate funding. Victim claims may have to wait 

months until sufficient fines have been collected or until a new fis- 

cal year begins and the budgetary fund is replenished. Creditors are 

seldom patient. While waiting for funding that will eventually come, 

victims can be sued civilly, harassed continually or forced to watch 

their credit rating vanish. Not only is compensation important, its 

payment must also be timely to save victims further inconvenience, 

embarrassment and substantial long term financial hardships. The 

funding constraints also discourage programs from eliminating or rais- 

ing the maximal allowable award. 

Crime victims have repeatedly voiced concern over minimum laws 
i 

requirements enacted by legislators to contain costs. In practice, 

this exclusion places the elderly and low income victims in a distinct 

disadvantage; a threshold of $i00 or $250 represents to them a sub- 

stantial loss they cannot absorb. Victim compensation programs differ 

generally in their residency requirements. Some states will only com- 

pensate residents that are victimized within their boundaries. Others 

will compensate their residents regardless of where they are victim- 

ized, but will not compensate non-residents who are victimized within 

t h e  s t a t e .  S t a t e s  t h a t  a t t r a c t  l a r g e  n u m b e r s  o f  t o u r i s t s  h a v e  b e e n  

h e s i t a n t  a b o u t  o f f e r i n g  c o v e r a g e  t o  m o n - r e s i d e n t s  f o r  f e a r  o f  d e p l e t i n g  

t h e  c o m p e n s a t i o n  f u n d .  

At l e a s t  f i f t e e n  s t a t e s  h a v e  e n t e r e d  i n t o  t h e  r e c i p r o c a l  a g r e e -  

m e n t s .  A l t h o u g h  t h i s  p o l i c y  i s  a f i r s t  s t e p  t o w a r d  a n  i n e q u i t a b l e  

a p p r o a c h ,  i t  i s  l i m i t e d .  To a d d r e s s  t h e  p r o b l e m  f u l l y ,  s t a t e s  s h o u l d  

agree either to compensate all eligible individuals victimized within 

the state, regardless of the residency or to compensate their own 
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residents wherever they are victimized. I recommend that no federal 

assistance be given to state compensation programs that have a re- 

striction limitln~ ~ayment to only residents of their respective 

states. 

The propriety of federal funding for victim compensation pro- 

grams, revolves around two issues: i) The propriety of the federal 

involvement and, 2) costs. There are at least two sound reasons 

for federal participation in victim compensation. First, most state 

programs currently compensate federal crime victims. However, because 

of financial problems, many states may be unwilling or unable to con- 

tinue to do so in the future. If state programs stop helping victims 

of federal crime and no federal efforts are made, then either there 

would be no help available for such victims or victims of crime over 

which federal and state governments share jurisdiction would find that 

their eligibility for assistance depends upon a bureaucratic decision as 

to which jurisdiction will provide compensation. These decisions are 

based on considerations that have nothing whatsoever to do with the 

immediate needs of the victim. 

The federal government could, of course, conunit itself to aiding 

victims of federal crimes. If this course is chosen, the new bureau- 

cracy covering fifty states would have to be created. The start-up 

and continued administrative costs would be substantial. A duplica- 

tion of state and federal effort would not only be inefficient hut 

would be confusing to victims we seek to serve. The most unfortunate 

result of this would be large sums of money would be expended unneces- 

sarily on administrative costs rather than made available to those 

victims who need assistance. Secondly, the federal government has a 
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history of making substantial sums of money available to the states 

for criminal Justice purposes, such as f~ding for law enforcement 

agencies through the former Law Enforcement Assistance Administration 

and the federal government has also' made money available to the states 

for the education and rehabilitation of state prisoners who have com- 

mitted state crimes. If the federal government will step in to assist 

state prisoners, it seems only just that the same federal government 

not shrink from aiding the innocent citizens victimized by those, very 

prisoners the government is now assisting. 

I recommend that federal victim compensation fund monies which 

may be disbursed to existing state compensation programs meet the 

following guidelines. The declslon should be made to give money to 

only existing programs, rather than to provide seed money for new 

programs. (Programs already in existence are currently giving ser- 

vice and needed flnancial'help, they are currently meeting the needs 

of victims and should not be disadvantaged. Further, requiring that 

state government assume the initial costs of starting the program and 

the primary responsibility for continued funding, assures the exis- 

tence of a genuine State commitment rather than the initiation of a 

proposal simply to put a claim in for the available federal funds.) 

No state program should be eligible for a portion .of the compensation 

fund, unless it provides compensation for anyone victimized in its 

borders, regardless of the victim's state of residency, provides com- 

pensation regardless of whether the crime violates state or federal 

law and provides compensation for psychological counselin~ required as 

a result of victimization. 

Money from the federal compensation fund could be awarded among 
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t h e  s t a t e s  a s  f o l l o w s :  A l l  s t a t e s  would r e p o r t  t h e  t o t a l  a m o u n t  

o f  c o m p e n s a t i o n  a w a r d e d  t h e  p r e v i o u s  y e a r  a n d  t h o s e  f i g u r e s  w o u l d  

be totalled to give the total compensation awarded nationally. 

Each state's award would be figured in terms of its percentage on 

a national total. Each state would be awarded that percentage of 

compensation fund for the ensuing year with limitations that it 

could not receive more than twenty-five percent of its total award 

for the previous year. The twenty-five percent limitation will 

guard against depletion of the compensation fund and against larger 

states drawing off too large of segment of the fund. I further recom- 

mend that states be reimbursed one hundred percent for payments made 

for federal crimes. I believe that either direct federal funding or 

earmarking a portion of the federal block grant is an appropriate 

vehicle for transmitting the federaldollars to the state treasuries. 

The elderly, as you know, are a sizable segment of our population. 

the 1980 census data indicate that 11.3 percent or more than 25 million 

Americans are sixty-five years of age or older. Eleven percent may not 

seem like a very large segment until put in its historical perspective. 

In 1900, only four percent of the nation's people were sixty-five or 

older; in 1950, the figure was eight percent. In short, the elderly 

proportion of our population has been and is increasing rapidly. One 

estimate projects that by the year 2000, the elderly will constitute 

twenty percent of the population in certain areas of this country. 

In the past two decades, -polltlcal attention and public concern 

have been focused as never before on problems of the elderly. 

Many people believe that elderly Americans are especially vul- 
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n e r a b l e  t o  c r i m e .  T h a t  t h e y  a r e  p r e f e r r e d  t a r g e t s  o f  c r i m i n a l s .  Y e t ,  

data gathered by the National Crime Survey over the past eight years, 

shows that younger persons under the age of sixty-five make up a dis- 

proportionally large share of the nation's victims. The rates of crime 

against the elderly are comparatively low statistically speaking. 

However, I would like to share with you a few thoughts that "the 

statistics" do not put in human terms. 

I would like to share with you the following observations. One 

of the great fears of older persons is a fall." Older bones are more 

brittle and break more easily than younger bones. A leg or hip that 

is broken during a mugging or purse snatching can result in i~o- 

bility and dependency for prolonged periods of time. Such injuries 

can even result in permanent confinement to a wheel chair and nursing 

home. Thus, relatively minor physical injuries weigh more heavily on 

the older victim of crime. 

On the whole, older persons have diminished and fixed incomes 

and fewer economic resources than younger persons. Dependence on pen- 

sions or social security payments commonly make old age a time of 

economic insecurity. The limited resources of the elderly are used 

for necessities. This factor explains how even a small loss will 

often result in a very real financial burden. 

Criminals are attracted to the weak. The reduced physical capa- 

bilities of older persons can act as incentives for victimization. 

In addition, due to the economic factors and patterns of neighborhood 

transitions, the elderly are likely to live or in close proximity to 

high crime areas. The elderly are also more dependent on walking and 

on public transportation, which also increases the exposure to poten- 

tial criminals. 
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F e a r  o f  c r i m e  i s  p a r t i c u l a r l y  p e r v a s i v e  among o l d e r  p e r s o n s .  

F e a r  i s  p r o d u c e d  n o t  o n l y  f r o m  t h e  a c t u a l  t h r e a t  o f  c r i m e  b u t  a l s o  

f r o m  t h e  p e r c e i v e d  t h r e a t .  Too o f t e n  t h e  ~ e s p o n s e  o f  o l d e r  p e r s o n s  

t o  f e a r  i s  w i t h d r a w a l  f r o m  c o m m u n i t y  l i f e  i n  o r d e r l t o  r e m a i n  s e c u r e l y  

b e h i n d  l o c k e d  d o o r s .  The  r e s u l t  i s  l o s s  o f  p e r s o n a l  f r e e d o m  an d  a s -  

s a u l t  on  t h e  q u a l i t y  o f  l i f e  o f  t h e  o l d e r  p e r s o n .  

A l s o ,  o l d e r  p e r s o n s  o f t e n  t i m e s  f a i l  t o  r e p o r t  b e i n g  a v i c t i m  

o f  c r i m e  b e c a u s e  t h e y  a r e  f e a r f u l  o f  r e p r i s a l s  t h a t  m i g h t  o c c u r  i f  

t h e y  a r e  c a l l e d  t o  t e s t i f y  a g a i n s t  an o f f e n d e r .  

F i n a l l y ,  c r i m e  i s  a p r o b l e m  t h a t  t o u c h e s  a l l  A m e r i c a .  T h e r e  i s  

s c a r s e l y  a c i t i z e n  who d o e s  n o t  f i n d  h i s  o r  h e r  l i f e  t o u c h e d  by  c r i m e  

o r  t h e  f e a r  o f  c r i m e .  E s p e c i a l l y  v u l n e r a b l e  a r e  t h e  e l d e r l y ,  who a l l  

t o o  f r e q u e n t l y  r e p r e s e n t  an e a s y  m a r k  f o r  t h e  c r i m i n a l .  Many s e n i o r  

c i t i z e n s  a r e  p r i s o n e r s  in  t h e i r  own home s  b e c a u s e  t h e y  a r e  a f r a i d  t o  

v e n t u r e  o u t d o o r s .  E x p e r t s  i n  t h e  f i e l d  o f  c r i m e  and  e l d e r l y  h a v e  made  

a strong case for signaling out this type of crime'for special atten- 

tion. They point out that I) older persons are not'as strong and 

generally are less able to'reslst the attackers and defend themselves. 

2) Older people are more likely to live alone and are generally more 

isolated. 3) There is a greater likelihood that the older person will 

live in a hlgh crime neighborhood, which increases the chance of their 

bei&j repeatedly victimized. The days when pension checks, social 

security payments and other income a~e received are generally well 

known by the criminal element. The criminal readily recognizes that 

circumstances minimize the risks normally associated with crime. It 

is time that our criminal justice system also recognizes this. I be- 

lieve that crimes against the elderly warrant special consideration. 
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Every twenty-three minutes, one of us Is murdered. Every six 

minutes, a woman is raped. Millions of dollars have been spent 

trying to understand and reform the criminal. Yet, often little or 

nothing has been done to assist an innocent victim. When an elderly 

person is robbed or knocked tO the ground, breaking a hlp, their 

lives can be changed forever. In a moment of terror, our citizens 

suffer injuries, which may last a lifetime, sustained physical scars 

that may mar them forever, become incapacitated and unable to work 

or in most tragic oases, leave behind a family to mourn, pay funeral 

expenses and wait years to see the killer tried and brought to Justice. 

I thank you for allowing me to share my views with you today. 
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CHAPTER 912 

CRIME VICTIM REPARATION PROGRAM 
R~parafion cady tO victims o~' ~ acts committed on at anti 

Jtnuary I. 1983; 82 &ctt. ch 1258. t25 

.912.1 Definitions. 
912.2 Award of reparation. 
912.3 Duties of commissioner. 
912.4 Application for reparation. 
912.5 Reparations payable. 
912.6 Computation of reparation. 
912.7 Reductions and disqualifications. 

9t2"8 Reparation when money insufficient. 
912.9 Erroneous or fraudulent I~e~'ment---panalty. 
912.10 Reles.~ of information. 
912.11 Emergency payment reparation. 
912.12 Right of action against perpetrator-- 

subrogation. 
9t2.13 Sunset clause. 

912.1 Definitions. As used in this chapter, unless 
the context otherwise requires: 

1. "Department" means the department of public 
safety. 

2. "Commissioner" means the commissioner of the 
department or the commissioner's designee. 

3. "Victim" means a person who suffers personal 
injury or death as a result Of any of the following: 

o. A crime. 
b. The good faith effort of a person attempting to 

prevent a crime. 
c. The good faith effort of a person to apprehend 

• a person suspected of committing a crime. 
4. "Cr/me" means conduct that occurs or is at- 

tempted in this state, poses a substantial threat of 
personal injury or death, and is punishable as a felony, 
an aggravated misdemeanor, or a serious misdemean- 
or, or would be so punishable but for the fact that the 
person engaging in the  conduct lacked the capacity to 
commit the crime under the laws of this state. "Crime" 
does not include conduct arising out of the o~rnership, 
maintenance, or use of o motor vehicle, motorcycle, 
motorized bicycle, train, boat, or aircraft except when 
the intention is to cause persoOal injury or death. 

5. "Dependent" means a person wholly or partially 
dependant upon a victim for care or support and in- 
ch/des a child oz" the victim ham after the victim's 
death. 

6. "Reparation" means compensation awarded by 
the commissioner as authorized by this chapter. [82 
Acts, ch 1258, §5, 17] 

912-2-Award of reparatioa. The commissioner 
shall award reparations authorized by this chapter if 
the commissioner is satisfied that the requirements 
for reparation have been met. [82 Acts, ch 1258, §6, 
tT] 

912.3 Duties of commissioner. The commissioner 
shall: 

I. Adopt rules pursuant to chapter 17A relating to 
the administration of the crime victim reparation pro- 
gram, including the filing of claims pursuant to the 
program, and the hearing and disposition of the 
claim& 

2. Hear "claims, determine the results relating to 
claims, and reinvestigate and reopen cases as neces- 
sary. 

3. Publicize through the department, county sher- 
iff departments, municipal police department, 
county attorney offices, and other public or privets 
agencies, the existence of the crime victim reparation 
program, including the procedures for obtaining repa- 
ration under the program. 

4. Request from the department of social services, 
the Iowa department of job service, the industrial 
commissioner, the attorney general, the county sheriff 
departments, the municipal •police departments, the 
county attorneys, or other public:authorities or agen- 
cies reasonable assistance or date necessary to admin- 
ister the crime victim reparation program. 

5. Require medical examinations of victims as 
needed. The victim shall be responsible for the cost of 
the medical examination if reparation is made. The 
department shall be responsible for the cost of the 
medical examination from funds appropriated to the 
department for the crime victim reparation program 
if reparation is not made to the victim unless the cost 
of the examination is payable as a benefit under an 
insurance policy or subscriber contract covering the 
victim or the cost is payable by a health maintenance 
organization. 

6. Render to the governor and the general assem- 
bly by January 1, 1984, a written report of act/rifles 
undertaken for the crime, victim reparation program- 
[82 Acts, ch 1258, §7, 17] 

912.4 App!ieatioo for reparation. 
1. To claim a reparation under the crime victim 

reparation program, a person shall apply in writing on 
a form prescribed by the commissioner and file the 
application with the commissioner within one hun. 
dred eighty days after the date of the crime or within 
one hundred twenty days after the date of death of the 
victim. 

2. A person is not eligible for reparation unless the 
crime was reported to the local police department or 
county sheriff department within twenty-four hours 
of its occurrence. However, if the crime cannot reason. 
ably be reported within that time period, the crime 
shall have been reported within twenty-four hours of 
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the time a report can reasonably be made.  [82 Acts, ch 
t 2 ~ ,  §8, 17] 

912.5 Reparations payable. The commissioner 
may order the payment  of reparation: ' 

L To or for the benefit of the person filing.the 
claim. 

2. To a person rasponalble for the malntemmco of 
the victim who has suffered pecuniary l e~  or incurred 
expenses as a result of ~er~nul  injury to the victim. 

3. To or for the benefit of one or more dependents 
of tha  victim, in the case of  death of the victim. I.f two 
or more dependents aro entitled to a reparation, the 
reparation m y  be apportioned by the commimionar 
as the coz~miesioner determines to be fair end eqmte- 
hie among the depandent& [82 Acts, ch 1258, §9, 17] 

912.6 Computation of reparation. "['be c e a ~  
sionm' shall make reparation as appropriate, for any 
of the following economic lo~as incurred as a direct 
meult of an injury to or death of the victim, not t o  
exceed two t honund  dol la~ per.victim unlese other- 

1. Reasnaable chorges interred for medlcal car~ 
2. Loss of income from work the victim would 

have performed and received compensation for ff the 
victim had not been injured. 

3. Reasonable replacement value of clothing that  
is held for evidantiary purposes, but  not to exceed one 
hundred do l l a~  

4. Reasonable funerul and.burial expenses nut to 
exceed one thousand dollare. [82 Acts, ch 12,58, §I0, 
17] 

912.7 Redectionl end diequalifleatioes, Repara- 
tions are subject to reduction end disqun/ification as 
follow~ 

L A reparation ahall be reduced by the amount  of 
any payment received, or to be received, as a result of 
the injury or death: 

n. From or on behalf of. the person who commit- 
ted the crime. 

b." Frnm an insttrence payment  or program, in- 
cluding but not limited to workers'  Compensation or 
umemployment compensation. 

e. From public funds, 
d. As an emergency award under section 912.11. 
2. A reparation shall net  be made when the bodily 

injury or death for which a benefit k sought Wee 
extmed by any Of the following: 

n. Consent, provocation or incitement by the vic- 

b. An act committed by a person living in the same 
beeashotd with the victim, unle~ a criminal convic- 
lien for the act is obtained. 

e. An act committed by a pereon who is, at  the 
I~me of the criminal act. the spouse, child, stepchild, 
perenL stepparent, brother, stepbrother, sister, or 
~cep~ister of the victim, or the parent or stepparent of 
the victim's spot~e, or h brother, stepbrother, sister, 
ar stepaister of the victim'a spouse, unless a criminal 
conviction for the act is obtained. 

d. The victim assisting, attempting, or commit- 
ring a criminal act. 

3. A person is disqualified from receiving a repara- 
tion f f  the victim has not cooperated with an 

|. 
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appropriate law euforcoment agency in the investiga- 
~on or prosecution of the crime relating to the c aim, 
or has not cooperated with the department  in the 
administration of the crime victim reparation pro- 
gram. [82 Acts, ch 12,58, § t l ,  17] 
Riffm~ tO m |el~.12 

912.8 Reparation when money insufficient. Not- 
withstanding this chapter a victim otherwise qualified 
for a reparation under the crime victim reparation 
program, is not entitled to the reparation when there 
is insufficieat money from t h e  appropriation for the 
program to pay.the reparation. [82 Acte, ch 1258, §12. 
17] . 

912.9 Erroneous or fraudulent payment--penalty. 
1. I f  a payment or overpayment of a reparation is 

made because of clerical error, mistaken identity, in. 
noreut misrepresentation by or on behalf of the recip- 
ient, or other circumstances of a ahnilar nature, not 
induced by fraud by ot ~ on behaff of the recipient, the 
r~cipient is liable for repayment of the reparatidn. 
The commksionar may waive, decrease, or adjust the 
amount  of the repayment of the reparation. However, 
i f  the commiasinnar does not notify the recipient of 
the erroneous i=ayment or overpayment within one 
year of the date the reparation was made, the recipi- 
ea t  is not liable for the repayment of the reparation. 

2. I f  a payment  or overpayment has been induced 
by fraud by or on behalf of a recipient, the recipient 
is liable for repayment of the reparation. [82 Act& ch 
1258, §13, 171 

912.10 ~ leaseo f im 'o rma t inn .A  person in posses- 
slon or control of investigative or other information 
partaining to an alleged crime or a victim filing for a 
reparation ahall allow the inspection end reproduc- 
tion of  the information by the commissioner upon the 
request of the commisaloner, to be used only in the 
administration and enforcement of the crime victim 
reparation program. Information and records which 

• are confidential under section 68A.7 and information 
or records received from the confidential information 
or records remain confidential under this section. 

A parson does not incur legal liability by reason of 
releasing information to the Commissioner as required 
under this section. [82 Acts, ch 1258, §14, 17] 

912.11 Emergency payment reparation. I f  the 
commissioner determines that reparation may be 
made and that  undue hardship may result to the per- 
son if.p.artial immediate payment is not made, the 
c o ~ m n e r  may order an emergency reparation to 
be made to the person, not to exceed five hundred 
dollars. [82 Acts, ch 1258, §I5, 17] 

a~fferrud to hi J91~.7 

912.12 Right of action against perpetrator--  
subrogation. A right of legal action by the victim 
against a person who has committed a crime is not lost 
as a consequence of a parson receiving reparation 
under the crime victim reparation program. If  a per- 
sen receiving reparation under the program seeks in- 
demnification which would reduce the reparation 
.under section 919_7. subsection 1, the commissioner is 
subrogated to the recovery to the extent of payments 
by the commissioner to or on behalf of the person. The 
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commissioner has a right of.legal action against a per- 
sonwho has committed a crime resulting in payment 
of reparation by the department  to the extent of the 
reparation payment. 'However, legal action by the 
commissioner does not affect the right of a person to 

seek further relief in other legal actions: [82 Ac~, ¢h 
1258. §16, 17] 

912.13 Sunset clanse. This chap~r  is repealed d. 
fective July 1, 1984. [82 Acts, ch 1258, §17] 
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Sena to r  GRASSLEY. I ough t  to b r e a k  f rom the  n o r m a l  process and  
recognize m y  colleague, Sena to r  Hawk ins  f rom the  g r e a t  S ta te  of  
Florida, second to Iowa. But  we have  probably  more  Iowans  there ,  I 
believe, outs ide of  Iowa t h a n  a n y w h e r e  else in the  Un i t ed  States.  
Pa r t i cu l a r ly  in the  winter .  

I would like to ask  you  for y o u r  par t i c ipa t ion  now. We still have  
one more  panel  a f te r  this. Would  you  proceed? 

Sena to r  HAWKINS. Yes. I apologize for being late. I a m  very  in- 
terested in the  subject  and  I compl imen t  the  c h a i r m a n  for his con- 
t inued  interest ,  and  know of y o u r  successful  efforts  last  session to 
enac t  the  Omnibus  Vict ims '  P ro tec t ion  Act  of  1982, and  rea l ly  en- 
courage you  to con t inue  in this  direction.  

Flor ida  does have  a h igh propor t ion  of  our  cit izens who a re  elder- 
ly and  a g rea t  n u m b e r  come f rom Iowa. I t h i n k  the  ve ry  select  
people do select  Florida.  The  subject  of  today ' s  hea r ing  is o f  deep 
concern  to us in Florida.  We had  g rea t  ass is tance  f rom the  Presi-  
dent  and  the  Task  Force on Cr ime and  Drugs  in south  Florida,  and  
it has  focused the  a t t en t ion  of  the  Uni ted  Sta tes  on the  e n t r y  point  
a t  least  of  a lot of  ou r  troubles,  and  vic t ims '  compensa t ion  is ve ry  
i m p o r t a n t  to everyone.  Too long we have  considered the  r igh ts  of  
the c r imina ls  and  no t  the  r ights  of the  victims, and  it is t ime  t h a t  
we t u rned  t h a t  a round.  

I have  a s t a t e m e n t  t h a t  I will en t e r  into the  record,  bu t  com- 
mend  you  for hold ing  this  hear ing.  

Sena to r  GRASSLZy. Well, your  s t a t e m e n t  will be as a m a t t e r  of  
no rma l  p rocedure  included in the  record,  and  t h a n k  you  for y o u r  
a t tent ion.  

[The p repa red  s t a t e m e n t  of  Sena to r  H a w k i n s  follows:] 

PREPARED STATEMENT OF SENATOR HAWKINS 

Senator HAWKINS. Mr. Chairman, it is a pleasure to join you here today to consid- 
er an tssue that is vital to the elderly citizens of my State and the entire nation. I 
know of your successful efforts last session to enact the Omnibus Victim's Protec- 
tion Act of 1982 and of your continuing interest in this issue to insure that the vic- 
tims of crime are not forgotten in the legal process. 

As you know, I represent a State with the largest proportion of elderly than any 
other State in the Nation. Therefore, I am very concerned that the victim's compen- 
sation programs are both effective and adequate, not only to compensate victims for 
their loss, but to combat the elderly victim's sense of alienation and anger at society 
and to encourage citizen participation with law enforcement agencies. 

Studies have shown that the elderly have one of the highest rates of cooperation 
with law enforcement agencies, they, more than any other group have limited their 
activit!es and taken precautionary measures to avoid being victimized. Yet this 
group is still the most adversely affected by crime and the fear of crime. While their 
rate of victimization may not be greater than other groups, it is clear that the 
trauma and economic impact of crime weighs far more heavily upon the elderly in- 
dividual. Indeed, the precautionary measures that they are forced to take to avoid 
victimization limits their activities and thus diminishes the quality of their lives. 

Over 30 States have passed State legislation providing for victims compensation 
and enactment of last year's Omnibus Victims Protection Act as a positive step, but 
I believe that it is only a fvrst step and much more needs to be done to address this 
problem. I feel that society has a duty to assist elderly victims of crime. I hope that 
today's hearings will reveal some answers to our questions regarding victims com- 
pensation. 

I look forward to today's testimony as a source of information as a new insight 
into the risks and ramifications of a Federal compensation program. 

Sena to r  GRASSLEY. I will s t a r t  out  the  ques t ioning  and  then  Sena- 
tor  Hawkins ,  I will t u rn  to you. 
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I would ask both of you to feel free to comment, al though I do 
have some questions directed specifically at  one or the other. 

Mr. Zweibel, is there a s tatute  of limitations tha t  is widely uti- 
lized by States tha t  governs when a claim must be brought by the 
victim? 

Mr. ZW~.IBEL. I believe most States do have some form of s tatute  
of l imitations.  In New York, we have expanded tha t  s tatute of limi- 
tat ions and now a claim may be filed within 1 year. It used to be 90 
days when the board was first formed under legislation in 1966, 
and I th ink  a good many States have adopted the role model of 
New York a t  tha t  time, al though many States have whittled away 
or expanded tha t  s tatute of limitations. I cannot give you specifics 
at  this  time. But  in New York the s ta tute  of limitations is 1 year 
for filing with the board. However, for good cause, we can extend 
tha t  to 2 years but  not more than  2 years from the time of the 
crime. 

Senator  GRASSLEY. New York has about 8,000 applicants or 
claims filed a year  of which 14-percent are from the elderly. How 
m a n y  actual ly  receive assistance, and is tha t  ratio of those who ac- 
tual ly  receive assistance about the same, as tha t  14-percent figure 
is of elderly represented? 

Mr. ZWEIBEL. It  is approximately the same. The figure is also 
about one-third t ha t  receive compensation in New York State. It 
might  be a couple of percentage points higher because of the great- 
er effort tha t  we do put in to the elderly cases. We were given an 
extended manda te  to have investigators work solely on the elderly 
cases about 2 years ago. However, since the proportion of elderly 
cases is approximately 14 percent and it works out at this point 
tha t  there  are approximately 14 percent of our investigators are 
designated to elderly cases, they have approximately the same 
caseload, and we do not have the same capacity as we did to help 
the elderly in a greater way than  in the past. 

Senator  GRASSLEY. I do not know exactly] how that  works out but 
we have statistics showing tha t  of the victims served by victims' 
compensation programs, about 24 percent are elderly, al though the 
elderly make up only about 11 percent of the population. We have 
heard  tes t imony from the Department  of Justice to the effect that  
the actual  incidence of crime may be less with respect to the elder- 
ly. Would you have any judgment  of what  accounts for this propor- 
t ionate  funding for the elderly victims? 

Mr. ZWEmEL. Well, I th ink tha t  the. 
Senator  GRASSLEY. Unless maybe you would want  to dispute it 

though tha t  is what  the statistics indicate. 
Mr. ZWEmEL. The elderly are not qualified for compensation as 

m a n y  others are because of the fact tha t  they are elderly. Very 
often, because they are elderly, they are often retired and therefore 
do not  suffer loss of earnings, which is one of the two basic areas 
t ha t  we provide compensation and likewise with medical expenses 
they  very often have coverage such as medicare or other forms of 
hea l th  insurance that  may very well cover all or most of their 
medical needs and, therefore, there are not as many benefits tha t  
are provided for the elderly as other segments of the population. 

Senator GRASSLEY. I wonder if you have any track record on that  
point from your State? John, why don't  you give us a short sum- 
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mary  of some of the services that  fall under the heading of victims' 
assistance in Iowa? 

Mr. SCHAFFNER. The areas that  we provide victims' assistance 
under the crime reparation program, basically includes provision 
for medical expenses for those people that  are injured as the direct 
result  of criminal attack, and medical expenses also go to psycho- 
logical counseling for those people that  need that  as a result  of 
being victimized, not only physically but  also mentally. We also 
will provide income for loss of wages, for a person that  is actually 
out of work as a result  of criminal injury, pay possible wages. We 
will pay up to $100 for clothing, personal clothing, tha t  is held by 
the police as evidence. This is part icularly common, Senator, in 
sexual assault  cases where the law enforcement  agency will retain 
the clothing for an extended period of time. We will pay the victim 
right up front up to $100 for that  clothing that  he or she indicates 
the value of that.  We also will pay $1,000 for funeral  and burial  
expenses if in fact the victim succumbs from the criminal attack. 
Once again, it is not a large amount  of money but  at least during 
the 1982 session when bucks were tough to find, we were pleased 
that  the legislature enacted a beginning program. 

Senator Gm~.SSLEY. I do not know how the Iowa program would 
fit into this question, but  regardless of the Iowa program, I am in- 
terested in your  views. For instance, you know, the elderly have 
probably greater  need for eyeglasses, hearing aids, prosthetic de- 
vices, and many  times these are not covered by victims' compensa- 
tion statutes. 

Mr. SCHArrNER. In the Iowa program, those provisions are cov- 
ered. We have language in the law tha t - -we  have a number  of 
claims, for example, of false teeth; as a good other example, a brace 
off of a bad leg; eyeglasses are oftentimes smashed, and hearing 
aids are destroyed. And we will pay up to the full amount  for those 
medically prescribed devices under the Iowa program. It is the only 
kind of property we cover. 

Mr. ZW~mZL. I might add, Senator, tha t  New York passed a bill 
this year  tha t  will allow us to compensate for essential property up 
to $250, and in the case of the elderly, the requirement  of physical 
injury ,s waived. It does apply to all other complaints but  is not 
required for the elderly. We, of course, have means tests and there 
are other obstructions to possibly receiving benefits, but  we did 
pass an essential property bill that  will be helpful primarily to the 
elderly. 

Senator GRASSLEY. Senator Hawkins. 
Senator HAWK*NS. Could I ask you both does the compensation 

require successful resolution of the crime, prosecution of the crime? 
Mr. ZWEIBEL. I do not think that  there are any statistics nor has 

there been any kind of a serious study on this point. I think it is 
something tha t  should be done. Clearly I do feel, however, that  by 
providing compensation as well as other assistance to crime vic- 
tims, it does help the criminal justice process and certainly does 
not encourage victims of crime to cooperate with the criminal jus- 
tice system. 

Senator HAWKINS. Do I see you reading from a brochure? Is tha t  
a brochure that  is circulated in Iowa? 
Mr. SCHAFFNER. Yes. 

24-906 0 - 84 - 9 
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Senator  HAWKINS. Could we see a copy? 
Mr. SCHAFFNER. I would be pleased to share this with members 

of the committee.  I would piggyback on what  Mr. Zweibel just  men- 
tioned, one of the  requirements for our compensation is tha t  the 
victim mus t  report  the crime to a law enforcement agency within 
24 hours  of its occurrence, and we put tha t  in there as an incentive 
because, as we know, the quicker the police can get on the trail  
while the  trai l  is hot, the more likely tha t  the crime is in fact 
going to be resolved. So we have put tha t  in there as an incentive 
for quick reporting. 

We also know tha t  many  crimes, part icularly sexual assault  
crimes, for example, oftentimes go unreported and we are noticing 
now t h a t  the victim advocacy agencies, sexual assault centers, are 
encouraging victims to report so tha t  they can become eligible for 
our compensat ion program. It is kind of an incentive, we hope. 

[The brochure referred to follows:] 
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The State of Iowa has a new program to 
help reimburse you if you are an innocent 
victim of a violent crime. The maximum 
amount of finandal compensation awarded 
is $2000.00 per victim. Compensation 
may be awarded to you as follows: 

For reasonable expenses for medical 
care needed as a direct result of injuries 
suffered in a criminal attack. 

• For loss of income from your job be- 
cause of bodily injuries suffered as the 
result of a crime. 

For reasonable replacement value of 
your clothing that is held by the police 
for evidence (up to $100.00). 

• For reasonable funeral and burial ex- 
penses (up to $1000.00). 

Compensation will be reduced' by the 
amounls received or available from collat- 
eral sources, such as insurance. 

H O W  DO I APPLY? 

To apply for compensation you must file a 
claim application with the Deparlment of 
Public Safely. 
For assistance contact: 

IOWA DEPT. OF PUBLIC SAFELY 
Crime Victim's Reparation 
Wallace Slate Office Bldg, 
Des Moines. lA 50319 
Phone: (515) 281-5044 
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• An innocent victim who suffers bodily 
injury from a violent crime committed 
after December 31, 1982. 

• A dependent(s) of an innocent victim who 
has died as a result of a violent crime 
which was committed after December 
31, 1982. 

• A parent or legal guardian of a victim who 
is under 18 years and has assumed 
responsibility for expenses incurred by the 
victim's injury. 

• A person responsible for the maintenance 
of the victim who has suffered a loss or 
incurred expenses as a result of personal 
injury to the victim. 

• You must' report the crime to the local 
police department or county sheriff's de- 
partment within 24 hours of the occur- 
rence of the crime. (If the crime cannot 
reasonably be reported within that time 
period, the crime shall be reported with- 
in 24 hours of the time a report can 
reasonably be made.) 

• You must file the claim application with 
the Department of Public Safety within 
180 days after the date of the crime; or 
within 120 days after the date of death 
of the victim. 

• You must cooperate with the appropriate 
law enforcement agency in the investiga- 
tion and prosecution of the crime relat- 
ing to the claim. 

• You must cooperate with the Depart- 
ment of Public Safety in the claims 
process. 
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~/HO IS N O T  ELIGIBLE? 

• A victim living in the same household with 
the criminal offender, unless a criminal 
conviction for the crime is obtained. 

• A relative of the criminal offender, unless 
a criminal conviction for the crime is 
obtained. 

• Anyone injured or killed in a motor 
vehicle, train or aircraft crash, unless the 

• injury or death was intentionally inflicted. 

• Anyone conlxibuting to the infliction of 
his or her own bodily injury or death. 

• A" victim who was assisting, attempting or 
committing a criminal act. 

[KO]~ I U 10~"T-~I I [O]dlLV, Vj I l I ~ / O J l l  :t ~B ,,;~.11 p ~ 
• For stolen, damaged or lost property. I 
• For pain and suffering. I 
• For losses paid or payable by other or ] 

collateral sources (health insurance, sick 
leave pay, disability insurance, social secu- 
rity, workmen's compensation, unemploy- 
ment compensation, funds from other 
governmental agencies) or the offender. 

Upon receipt of the claim form, an investiga- 
tion is conducted. Witnesses, law enforce- 
ment officers, physicians and hospitals are 
contacted for reports. 

After all the facts and information contained 
in your claim are verified, you will be 
notified, in writing, of the amount of your 
award payment If your claim is denied or 
payment reduced, the reason will be pro- 
vided to you in writing. If you are dissatisfied 
with the payment decision, you may write to 
the Department of Public Safety to request a 
hearing on the matte~ 

The time that it takes to process the claim 
depends on the complexity of the claim. It is 
possible for a claimant who urgently requires 
funds to request that an emergency award 
be made. 
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Senator HAWKINS. In States tha t  do not have victims' compensa- 
tion program, do either of you have any knowledge as to who gets 
the profits from royalties on books writ ten by prisoners or movies 
made from prison stories? 

Mr. ZW~.IBEL. I believe in States tha t  have not taken the initia- 
tive to have a compensation program, there would be no law tha t  
would protect the victims in this area either. New York State was 
the first State to pass what  has been called the Son of Sam law, 
from the David Berkwitz case, and I do not recall the exact 
number. I believe it may be in the area of 15 States tha t  current ly  
have similar laws added to the books, but all those States have 
compensation programs. 

Once again, I do not th ink there are any States tha t  have similar 
laws tha t  do not have compensation. 

Senator HAW~NS. IS New York the only one? 
Mr. ZWEIBEL. New York has a compensation program. There are 

15 other States tha t  have similar type of law on the books. 
Senator GRASSLEY. Did you want  to comment on that? 
Mr. SCHAFFNER. Yes; the Iowa Legislature also enacted a Son of 

Sam provision tha t  criminals could not receive profits for their  
books tha t  they might write after  some type of a serious crime, and 
tha t  money in Iowa is tied up by the courts basically, and then it 
would be awarded back to the victim if tha t  would be appropriate. 
The courts would then take royalties. The criminal would not  pros- 
per from his writings or her writings. 

Senator HAWKINS. You stated tha t  one of the requirements for 
getting compensation would be the reporting of the crime within 24 
hours. 

Mr. SCHAFFNER. Yes, correct. 
Senator HAWKINS. IS there any program you have for notifying 

the victims of their  rights under the victims' compensation pro, 
gram? 

Mr. SCHAFFNER. Yes; the Iowa statute specifically, prescribes tha t  
law enforcement officers, hospitals, social agencms make every 
effort to notify victims of the availability of the program. On our 
application form for victim reparation in Iowa, we have a box at  
the top asking the victim how did you first learn of the availability 
of a crime victim reparation program? Sixty percent of our claims 
are coming back saying they learned of it through the media. The 
media seems to be talking to lots of people. We had some video- 
tapes made, public service announcements  for TV and for radio, 
and tha t  seems to be the single largest source of referrals to our 
program. So I need to emphasize how important  publicity is in get- 
ting the message to potential victims. 

Senator HAWKINS. Are those PSA's made by the station or by 
your department? 

Mr. SCHAFFNER. They were made by our depar tment  in coopera- 
tion with our local educational TV network tha t  actually did the 
productions for us at a very reasonable cost, and then they were 
distributed to the 13 or 14 TV stations tha t  service our jurisdiction. 
So they were produced by our educational program, TV station, for 
use by all media in the State. 

Senator HAWKINS. Well, we all remember the rights of the ones 
tha t  are accused, or as they are arrested, the police officer has to 
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tell the  criminal,  of the alleged criminal of his rights. It seems to 
me tha t  is a good opportunity to tell the alleged victim of his or 
her  rights a t  the  same time. 

Is there  any effort  to having law enforcement  people give that  
brochure  to the  people? 

Mr. SCHAFFNER. Yes. 
Senator  HAWKINS. During the process of the arrest? 
Mr. SCHAFFNER. We have suggested to our officers, and we, as I 

ment ioned earlier,  we have a little card that  we give to each officer 
to d is t r ibute  to crime victims and they affectionately refer to that  
as the  "vict im's Miranda warnings." 

Senator  HAWKINS. How small is this little bit ty card? 
Mr. SCHAFFNER. About  like that  [indicating]. 
Senator  HAWKINS. And they are distr ibuted at the time of the 

arrest?  
Mr. SCHArFNER. Yes. 
Senator  HAWKINS. Thank you. 
Senator  GRASSLEY. I have no fur ther  questions, but  your  work 

with the  s ta tu te  in your  respective States on a day-to-day basis is 
very  valuable  information and experience for us to consider as we 
go about  building upon the act passed last year. Thank you very 
much to both  of you. 
Mr. SCHAFFNER. Thank you for the invitation. 
Senator GRASSLEY. Our ffmal panel consists of John Stein, who is 

director of public affairs of the National Organization for Victims 
Assistance; and Mr. George Sunderland, senior program coordina- 
tor for Criminal Justice of the AARP. 

Before you testify, let me personally thank each of you for your 
advocacy on behalf of some of the most vulnerable members of our 
society, the crime victim, and particularly as that is an inordinate- 
ly difficult situation for elderly people to be in. 

Mr. Stein, I would like to have you proceed and then to be fol- 
lowed by Mr. Sunderland. 

STATEMENTS OF JOHN STEIN, DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC AFFAIRS, 
NATIONAL ORGANIZATION FOR VICTIMS ASSISTANCE, AND 
GEORGE SUNDERLAND, SENIOR PROGRAM COORDINATOR FOR 
CRIMINAL JUSTICE, AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF RETIRED 
PERSONS, A PANEL 

Mr. STEIN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am delighted and hon- 
ored to be here today, and I want to extend to you our heartfelt 
thanks for convening this meeting. 

If I might digress, these have been disorienting times for me, and 
today is no exception. I have just come from a series of workshops 
dealing with youth victimization and here we are concerned with 
the victimization of the elderly. I can overcome that, I hope, in my 
comments. 

I may add that both you, Senator Grassley, and you, Senator 
Hawkins, were mentioned with some warmth in our deliberations 
this morning. 

Senator GRASSLEY. GO into some detail about that then, please. 
[Laughter.] 
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Mr. STEIN. Your introduction of S. 704 was warmly commented 
on, but  as we got into the problems with missing children, Senator  
Hawkins '  championship of tha t  extraordinari ly helpful legislation 
last year  was warmly  remarked on. 

Senator GRASSLEY. Did they remark  that  I cosponsored her  bill? 
[Laughter.] 

Mr. STEIN. I am sure they did. 
Par t  of my disorientation results in having been on the road for 

the last 2 weeks. But  I have with me, for the record, a cleaned up 
version of my testimony, and if I may, I will summarize briefly 
from that. 

Senator GRASSLEY. Please do. And it will be included in the 
record. 

Mr. STEIN. Thank you. 
It is a privilege for me to testify in NOVA's behal f  on the prob- 

lems of crime victims and the assistance which is their  due. 
I appreciate tha t  your concern is over the elderly victims' of 

crime, a subpopulation of victims well deserving of tha t  concern. 
But as Dr. Marlene Young, NOVA's executive director, and I, and 
others who have specialized in aiding elderly victims have learned, 
help for them is most likely, to be offered when communit ies  decide 
to aid all the victims of crime in their  midst. What  is instructive 
about focusing on the elderly vict ims--as  Chairman Heinz and 
others have learned, to their great  credi t-- is  that  the plight of the  
elderly helps us to comprehend the violence, tragedy, and injustice 
that  afflict not  only these innocent citizens, bu t  most other victims 
of crime. 

It is in tha t  context tha t  I will review the impact of crime victim- 
ization generally, emphasizing how that  impact is exacerbated in 
cases involving elderly victims, and then propose a range of serv- 
ices which we feel is essential to meeting the needs of all victims, 
the elderly included. My test imony then is directed at the broad 
sweep of public-policy changes sought by the victims' movement  we 
represent, not at  any one legislative proposal which you, Chai rman 
Grassley, and others have laudably introduced in this session of 
Congress. 

Let me turn  then first to the victim needs. There are three  obvi- 
ous  injuries tha t  afflict victims, and one injury that  is not so obvi- 
ous. But it has been our experience that  even the obvious injuries 
are not so obvious. And the plight of the elderly helps to i l lustrate 
that  in tragic ways time and again. The physical injuries tha t  
crime victims endure, for example, are easily appreciated when the 
crime is extremely brutal  and the injuries are obvious. But  Dr. 
Young, in her  work with the elderly in Portland, Oreg., came 
across, for example, one woman who had been the victim of vandal- 
ism, that  is to say her  windows had been broken out. The trouble is 
that  it happened in the dead of winter, and when the police and 
Marlene Young came upon this woman, she had been trying to sur- 
vive for 2 weeks huddled up in a couple of mattresses in her  apart- 
ment. Two weeks later, she was dead in the hospital of pneumonia.  
We do not th ink of vandalism as an injurious crime, but  obviously 
it can be terribly much so in the case of the elderly.. 

Similarly, as was mentioned before, a less injurious crime like a 
broken hip resulting from a purse snatch is not thought to be terri- 
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bly devastat ing,  bu t  in the case of the  elderly, the research, again, 
tha t  Dr. Young did back in the  seventies in Port land suggests that  
perhaps  as m a n y  as one-quarter of elderly people suffering a minor 
injury like a broken hip will be dead within a year. The evidence 
seemed to suggest  it was not the injury directly, but  it was the relo- 
cation of tha t  victim to a nursing home, the total disruption in 
thei r  lives, thei r  reduction to a s ta te  of dependency, that  brought 
on an ear ly  death. But  obviously there  are some terrible injuries, 
and the focus on victim compensation, of course, deals with that. 

Let me jus t  at  least make mention of one injury which we think 
of  as the  most  tragic and yet too is overlooked--I  am talking about  
murder .  Too often, the  popular belief is tha t  there  is no greater  
t ragedy tha t  could happen, bu t  at  least the victim is at  peace. The 
evidence is tha t  the  victim has left behind many  other  victims who 
are  suffer ing through what  is often a lifetime of grief and emotion- 
al turmoil ,  and it is tragic the way we often overlook the surviving 
family and friends of homocide victims. 

As to the  most  common sort of injury tha t  is afflicted on crime 
victims, t ha t  is to say, ffmancial injury, the common thought is, 
well, we can protect  ourselves with insurance, and many of us do. 
But  we find tha t  insurance has its deductibles, $100, $500, and that  
often, af ter  a burglary,  for example,  the insurance policy will pay 
maybe  a dime on the dollar for the replacement  costs. And so in- 
surance is a small benefi t  where  it is available. The sad thing is 
tha t  the elderly, can no longer afford it. They are probably the 
most in teres ted in obtaining insurance. They are perhaps the most 
prudent  sector of society in tha t  sense. But  they  are often the least 
able to purchase  it. And for the elderly, the  cases are jus t  too fre- 
quent  to show tha t  the loss of $50 can mean the difference between 
decent  meals  over the  next week or two and surviving on ketchup 
and crackers,  as we have found with some elderly people who are 
the  victims of a "smal l"  larceny. 

Similarly, we f'md in that kind of financial loss that  something 
terr ibly painful  is lost in the process. I r emember  a victim-assist- 
ance worker  in Florida, a retired Navy NCO, who had gotten into 
the  field because  he had been burglarized three  times, and the 
third t ime they  stole the  ring that  he had given his wife some 3 
years  before she died. The loss of the  sent imental  object to him was 
much more  devas ta t ing than all the other  losses. That  was obvious- 
ly a priceless loss. That  brings up the third and ominous injury 
tha t  victims endure,  and that is the psychological cost of crime. A 
crime is a shocking and stunning event  for vir tual ly all of us. It is 
unhinging, it is unsettl ing, and for too many  people it precipitates 
wha t  can be a long-term crisis, resulting in an inability to work 
well, a falling apar t  of family relationships, and the like. Many of 
these problems are exacerbated in the case of elderly victims. It 
has been said, for example, by some eminent  gerontologist, that  
jolts of adrenol ine and other ' . . . .  stress hormones are more wearlng 
on us as we grow older. The import  of that  biological finding is that  
all stresses,  euphoric or distressing, are rougher on their bodies 
and on the i r  psyches, and so crime exacts a higher psychological 
price for the  same event  when we are older than when we are 
younger.  
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Moreover, elderly people, we appreciate, are living in what  is 
called the "season of loss." The older person has lost his job, he has 
lost much of his income, he has lost his status tha t  is given to him, 
he has lost many family members and friends through death, he 
has lost his mobility, he has lost his health, he has often lost his 
home. This bat tery of chronic losses among older people makes 
them evermore susceptible to sort of a final crushing blow, and 
crime often produces that.  For all these reasons, the special sense 
of unhappiness tha t  we experience with victims is part icularly ex- 
acerbated in older people. 

The thing tha t  seems to trigger our greatest  unhappiness, after 
having been held up, or mugged, or burglarized, is a sense of help- 
lessness tha t  someone took away our autonomy, our independence, 
if even for a moment. For the older person who is often suffering a 
depression from those depersonalizing feelings, tha t  wresting away 
his final sense of worth in society by the criminal can be extremely 
devastating. 

The final need tha t  crime victims seem to have has often been 
called the "second injury." I th ink it has been alluded to earlier 
today. It comes from all of us, society at  large, as well as in partic- 
ular from the agents of criminal justice. I know in my work with 
the elderly, I have heard examples of it t ime and again. I remem- 
ber in Flatbush, in Brooklyn the typical older woman who was bur- 
glarized will get a call from the kids who now live fur ther  out in 
Queens, in a better neighborhood, and they  say, "Ma, why are you 
still living there in Flatbush? I told you to move out." The message 
is, Ma, it was your fault  tha t  you were a burglary victim, tha t  your 
sentimental  a t tachment  to tha t  crumbling neighborhood does not 
make any sense. Ma, you are stupid. 

Sadly enough, crime victims themselves tend to say, "I w a s  
stupid, it was my fault ." And for the elderly, to have tha t  rein- 
forced by family and friends makes their  miserms all the worse. 

We hear  the same kind of comment from the friendly police offi- 
cer. Following up on an apar tment  burglary, the officer's wisecrack 
is, "hey, lady, you call tha t  a lock?" Sometimes the comments are 
made in a friendly way, but they all seem to reinforce some crazy 
notion tha t  the crime was the victim's fault. It just  is not true, and 
we should stop trying to indicate to victims tha t  it is tha t  they who 
were at  fault. They are not only blamed but they are stigmatized. 
For the elderly, they are part icular  stigmatized. It is as if, after 
having become victims tha t  they are carrying around a dread dis- 
ease and no one wants to talk to them. Appalling, most surviving 
families, in homocide cases lose most of their  friends. The stigmatiz- 
ing process, in short, has tragic consequences. 

And now added to these are the ordinary bureaucratic workings 
of the justice system, and these seem to add to this second injury. 
These are public bureaucracies, after all. They may mean well by 
the people they are supposed to serve, but they operate in routine 
ways tha t  seems to be insensitive. If  there is an arrest, and pros- 
ecution, what  is going on during those processes? Those processes 
are often baffling, particularly for the elderly. The natura l  desire 
to understand what  is going on in an alien environment,  to under- 
stand what  is going to happen next and what  is expected of them, 
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all of these things become a source of acute anxiety, and the 
sys tem rare ly  answers  the  victims' desire just  to understand. 

Fur ther ,  their  desire to have their  voices heard, the facts that  
they  have to offer, their  opinions, their feelings, no one wants to 
hear  that .  Instead, they  are t reated to a kind of bureaucrat ic  indif- 
ference, they  are subjected to endless continuances, they are told 
about  plea bargains  tha t  they had no voice in, or understanding of. 
All of  these fur ther  erode every sense of self-respect and dignity 
tha t  older people are  fearing are under  erosion anyway. 

That  outl ines the  kinds of needs that  all crime victims, particu- 
larly the  elderly, bring to society. How can society respond more 
effectively and meet  those needs and adjust  in a compassionate 
way? Well, our organization over the last 9 years  has been trying 
to catalog in a comprehensible way the kinds of services that  
should be available to the elderly and all others. We have devel- 
oped this into a char t  which is i l lustrated in this booklet in front of 
you. 

Let me, if  I may, go through quite briefly the eight stages of serv- 
ice tha t  we would like to see in place for all victims of crime. In 
each instance we obviously would like to see tha t - - the  services and 
the  procedural  changes are tailored to the special victims being 
dealt  with, such as the elderly. 

The first three  stages are what  we would like to see in place, and 
in fact we can find examples of them being in place, for all victims 
of  crime, independent  of whether  there  is an arrest  or prosecution. 
The first two are closely linked. The "emergency response" and the 
"victim stabilization" speak to what  a police dispatcher can do to 
help stabilize someone in extremely tense emotional period of their 
lives. It is important ,  as a professional mat te r  to t ry to get a coher- 
en t  s tory from the distressed caller so tha t  they can get an officer 
to them quickly. But  it is also, we find, very helpful in the victim's 
recovery if the response at tha t  stage is sensitive, if someone can 
s tay on the telephone with them for a longer period than just  a 
couple of minutes.  

The same concept is what  we are  seeing now put  in place by the 
patrol  officers who come immediately to an emergency call from a 
victim. They, too, are  learning both psychological and physical first 
aid techniques. They are  borrowing from the crisis intervention 
people to learn how to interview victims in a way that  helps bring 
them down off their  adrenalin high, to help them stop shaking, to 
help them reflect back, to get a sense that  they are safe now, and 
to reflect back about  the  crime in ways they can communicate this 
to an officer in an accurate,  comprehensible way. 

With  both of these two service stages, we speak a lot of the police 
officers' responsibility, but  we mean not to limit it to them. In 
many  jurisdictions, I th ink Florida is the leading one, the arriving 
patrol  officer has available to him a crisis ir~tervention worker who 
is there, who can come almost immediately to carry on with the 
victim, at  tha t  crisis stage. 

The third stage of this service continuum is what  we call "re- 
source mobilization." That  is the whole bat tery  of social services of 
counseling and the like that  we would like to see in place in many 
places. It is in place to help victims recover, to be made whole 
again. Obviously, this is the place where  victim compensation plays 
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a crucial role for at  least that  small segment of the victimized 
public who have suffered serious injury or death in the family. 

The five stages after an arrest  is made, I think, can be covered 
quite briefly. A few jurisdictions, such as Cook County in Chicago, 
are beginning services to crime victims immediately after  the 
arrest. As soon as the case goes to the district a t torney's  office they 
are trying to find out some things from the victim right away and 
to meet his or her  needs, part icularly getting information from the 
victim that  the bail-setting magistrate can have. If  the victim has 
any grounds for a fear of retaliation, intimidation by the person 
just  arrested, the magistrate will know that,  and he make it a bail 
condition that  the defendant stay away from the victim. And that  
can be a very effective way of giving some sense of safety to the 
victim. 

The next three stages all focus on the court  appearance--Inform- 
ing him, making sure that  the victim is notified of when the hear- 
ing date is, the trial date, giving him information about  the court  
process, t rying to get rid of tha t  alien sense of it all, t rying to put  
him on telephone alert, and the like. And one crucial thing that  
many district at torney's  offices are now doing is, getting the victim 
involved in plea bargaining negotiations tha t  are taking place, 
which obviously usually take place before any trial  date. Many dis- 
trict at torney's  are finding that  in consulting with a victim over 
their ideas of what  a fair plea bargain is that  the victim is persuad- 
able tha t  the prosecutor is recommending a fair and jus t  result, 
that  it is worthwhile not having to come to court  and testify. And 
they are extremely grateful for having been asked their  opinions. 

The prosecutor is not bound by the victim's opinions, the  victim 
has no veto. But  to ask of the person who is hur t  how he would like 
to see the case disposed of, is a worthwhile courtesy at this stage. 

At the court appearance itself, prosecutors and court  officials are 
simply trying to make a day in the courthouse more pleasant. It is 
that  simple. Help with transportat ion when needed, (often it is 
needed with t h e  elderly), a separate waiting room away from the 
defense witnesses the defendant  while witnesses are waiting for 
trial, decent witness fees, coffee, pleasant surroundings, or, in gen- 
eral, same basic civilities. 

And then the third one, after  the guilty plea or a finding of guilt, 
we call for a consultation with victims over the sentence before the 
sentencing judge makes his decision. Here the critical device is the 
so-called victim impact statement.  What  happened to the victim? 
What  was the emotional, the physical, the financial impact of the 
crime on the victim? We want  to make sure that  the judge weighs 
that  in determining what  a fair sentence is on the now, confessed 
or, convicted offender. After all, what  he owes his victim should 
surely have priority over, or equal status with, figuring out his 
debt is to society. The victim impact s ta tement  is the device for 
doing that. 

And finally, after the sentencing is over, we believe that  provi- 
sion should be made for the victim so that  he is informed of other 
decisions affecting his offender. His offender--notice of whether  or 
not he is going to be released on bail or parole, or has escaped from 
prison, or has a probation revocation hearing. These are mat ters  of 
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some considerable concern to victims, and they have a right to 
know about  them. 

Tha t  covers the  broad social policy changes that  we have been 
pressing for both in t he  Federal  Government  and in the States and 
localities a round  the country. 

Wi th  that ,  I would like to draw my thoughts to a conclusion. 
Obviously, these rights and services tha t  we are speaking of cost 

money. The experience around the country is that,  as public serv- 
ices go, these are  among the cheapest  to provide. But  they are not 
free. Even a good volunteer  program needs a paid coordinator and 
trainer.  The kind of legislation that  Senator  Grassley has intro- 
duced, and others  we hope will be considering in Congress this 
year,  will help address, I think, the important  need of funding for 
these kinds of rights and services for victims of all crime. 

In our  view, this hearing marks  a sincere effort of our Govern- 
men t  representa t ives  to look fur ther  than they have in the past, to 
look hard  a t  the  crisis of crime as it affects those least able to over- 
come its effect, our  victimized elderly: 

We, at  NOVA, are  heartened by your  legislative initiatives and 
interests,  Senator  Grassley, and we applaud you for convening this 
factfinding hearing. We look forward to offering you what  knowl- 
edge and suggestions we can as you seek to t ransform public 
misery into remedial  public legislation. We are of the belief tha t  
the  U.S. Congress now has the will and the wisdom to provide jus- 
tice for all, even the victims of crime. 

Thank  you. 
[The prepared  s ta tement  of Mr. Stein follows:] 

\ 
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'%/ICTIM ~STANCE AND/THE E~DE~I ~' 

Test imc~y ~f---- 
John H. Stein, 

Director of Public Affairs 
Nati(m%al Organization for Victim Assistance 

Washington, D.C. 

a%airman Grassley and members of the Aging Subcommittee, I am John 

Stein, the Director of Public Affairs of the National Organization for 

Victim Assistance. It is a privilege for me to testify in NOVA's 

behalf on the probleam of crime victims and the assistance which is 

due them. 

I appreciate that your concern is over the elderly victims of 

crime, a subpopulatic~ of victims well deserving of that concern. But 

as Dr. Marlene Young, N~4A's Executi~ Director, and I, and others who 

have specialized in aiding elderly victims have learned, help for them 

is most likely to be offered when communities decide to aid al__~l the 

victims of crime in their midst./What is instructive about focusing 

on the elderly victims -- as Chairman Heinz and others have learned, 

to their great credit -- is that the plight of the elderly helps us to 

ccu~rehend the violence, tragedy, and injustice that afflict not only 

• these innocent citizens but most other victims of crime. 

It is in that context that I will review the impact of crime 

victimization generally, emphasizing how that impact is exacerbated in 

cases involving elderly victims, and then propose a range of services 

which we feel is essential to meeting the needs of all victims, the 

elderly included. My testimony, then, is directed at the broad sweep 

of public policy chaises sought by the victims' movement we represent, 

not at any one legislative proposal which you, (~irman Gressley, and 

others have laudably introduced. 

Victim Needs 

NOrA's nine years of analysis of victim needs has taught us that 

there are three primary injuries which victims may suffer: physical 

injury, financial injury, and p~.hological injury. In addition, 

victims are often subject to a secondary type of injury -- that 

inflicted by the criminal justice system or the society around them. 

Each of these tends to parallel urdque wulnerabilities amcng the aged 

which make them important teachers of our own vulnerability to crime. 
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i. Physical Injury 

Physical injury is the most obvious burden a crime victim can 

suffer. The i~ioact of hospitalization, the pain of broken bones, the 

permanence of paralysis, the grief of ~Ltrder, all ~re stark and 

clear. But perhaps our understanding is not all that clear. Do we 

truly consider the impact on the victim, or do we avoid that 

oonfrontation by labeling the injuries "minor" by reference to some 

"objective" standards? 

Far too often, "minor" ~ysical injuries can have devastating 

oonsequences to the frail and the aging. The injury zay result in 

long-term hospitalization or even death due to the elderly patient's 

decreased healing capabilities. A u-injurious crime -- vandadis~ -- 

caused the death of one older worn,an. Her windows were broken in the 

dead of winter. Having no ~ne who was regularly in touch with her, 

she went for two weeks before she was found huddled under a mattress, 

trying to stay warm in freezing weather. ~o weeks later, she died in 

the hospital of pneumonia. 

The impact of more obviously-injurious crimes may also be 

overlooked. The change frc~ an active, self-sufficient individual to 

one crippled by a fall or a blow can undermine the foundations of a 

person's life. Often there is not only the pain to er~ure but also 

the stigma borne by the handicapped. 

w 

~ne elderly victims of assaultive crimes illustrate the bleak 

repercussions of even "minor" injurie~ -- like a broken hip sustained 

in a purse-er~tch. 8eviewing the records of" such victims in Portland, 

Oregon, my colleague Marlene Young fo~d that at least cr~-fourth of 

the victims had died within a year of the crime. The evider~e 

indicated to Dr. Young and her colleagues that the distress of being 

relocated to a nursing h~me, far more than the injury itself or "old 

age", was the probable cause of most of those deaths. 

Indirect assaults, less-injurious assaults, and, finally, murder 

-- the ulti-~te violation. A~ least the -,,rder victim cannot suffer 
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anymore -- an obvious truism sUstained by popular mythology. ~/t what" 

the Im/lic overlooks is that n~trder makes victims of more than just the 

dead. left behind are loved ones consigned to a life of grief, anger, 

and heartache. And who speaks for them? Who helps them survive in 

the void created by death? 

2. Financial Injury 

Financial loss is the most coEmon result of crime. Burglary costs 

Americans some $3 billion a year, larceny around ~2 billion, and arson 

at least ~I billic~. 

~hat those figures signify in terms of the average victim is often 

a debilitating blow. While the impact can be ameliorated by private 

insurance for thc~e who have the foresight and the wherewithal to 

purchace it -- the elderly tend to have the foresight but not the 

wherewithal -- in fact such coverage is rarely adequate. Not only do 

most insurance policies have deductibles which require the insured to 

pay the first $i00 to $500, but actual reimbursement rates may be as 

little as 10% of the replacement value of the damage or loss. 

Recently, our office receive a call from a ~ whose home at be 

virtually destroyed in a shoot-out between law enforcement officers 

and a visiting brother-in-law who ~as mentally ill. The police agency 

indicated that the property damage would not be paid from public 

coffers since it ~as caused by the woman's deranged brother-in-law. 

Her insurance company refused to pay because it was "an act of ~ar." 

After we 1oool together the uninsured, the "de-insured", and the 

under-insured -- that is, ~st of us -- we must consider the effect of 

financial harm of crime on persons, like the aged, who are living on 

low, fixed incomes. The impact can be devastating. A larceny of $50 

may mean that the victim goes without food, or medication, or even 

loses his or her apartment. The loss of a television set may be the 

severence of an Older person's only l~nk with the world. 

3. Ps~6:l~logic~ Injury 



142 

Crime produces extraordinary stresses. Victims of even the 

smallest kind of crime suffer sc~e discomfort and stress. Estimates 

are that as many as 20% of all victims have severe stress reactions 

and that one-fourth or more of these go into emotional crisis. 

For several reasons, elderly victims are among those vulnerable to 

emotional crisis. 

Physical, age-related changes have ~ch to do with the elderly's 

vulnerability to psychological injury. Some have suggested that the 

single most critical age-related difference in physiology is a 

diminishing ability to respond to stress (physical and emotional) and 

to return to a pre-stress level. ~nis can be termed a decrease in 

hcm~K~static capacity. 

"With stress -- whether l=hysical, as in exercise, or emotional, as 

in excitement or fear --the magnitude of displacement is greater, and 

the rate of recovery is slower with increasing age." (Ruth B. Weg, 

"(3%anging Physiology of Aging: Normal and Pathological", in ~3i~: 

Scientific Perspectives and Social Issues, Diana S. W~=druff and James 

E. Birren, eds.) 

In addition to this physiological change, the older person 

normally lives in a "season of loss". He suffers loss of job, loss of 

inccme, loss of status, loss of family members and friends through 

death, loss of mobility, loss of health, and sometimes loss of home. 

This battery of chronic losses results in chronic stress and terE]s to 

increase the crisis risk of any extraordinary stress-precipitators. 

As a result, the stages of the crime/stress reaction may be more 

exaggerated in the elderly. The i~mediate reaction to crime is shock 

and disbelief. This reaction may be increased in the elderly because 

they may have been brought up in a society or neighborhood that had 

little crime, and this is the first time they have ever dealt with 

such a violation. 
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In the aftermath of shock, normal reactions include fear, anger, 

depression, frustration, etc. These reactions reflect the sense of 

helplessness felt by crime victims, a ic6s of autonomy and, in its 

place, a sense of dependence and helplessness. If the aftermath of 

the criminal event can impose this kind of distress on even IKx~ger 

victims, imagine its cruel toll on the older victim already depressed 

by the loss of true independent status in cur society. 

4. The "Second Injuries" 

Though the injuries inflicted on victims by the criminal are often 

severe, the injustices and indignities of the criminal justice system 

and the society around them are even more trat~natizing to many victims. 

Most victims suffer the second shock of realizing that being a 

victim is frowned c~ by society. Common questicms put to the victim 

ere: '~y didn't you lock the door?", '~y were yDu on the street 

after dark?", and, '~Nhy havn't you moved frc~ that lousy 

neighborhood?". All such questions indicate that the victim could 

have avoided becoming victimized and that therefore he is at least in 

part to blame. 

Victims are further surprised to find themselves stigmatized. No 

one wants to hear about crime's horrors. MDst of us are boo 

frightened ourselves to want to know that we, too, could become a 

victim. We tend to avoid anguish, pain, mutilation, the reality of 

sudden death -- and we shun those wbQ carry these unwanted messages. 

~hese sources of distress are again exaggerated by the problems of 

aging. The aged already suffer stigma. Pppular mythology -- to which 

police officers and prosecutors are prey -- depicts the older person 

as being decrepit, senile, and incompetent. Older people are often 

afraid to admit to families and friends that they have be(x:m~ victims 

for fear that their loved crees will urge them to move out of their 

home, perhaps into a nursing home, or will use the situation to prove 

that they are incompetent. Older people also worry inwardly about 

their own competence. They ~rry that perhaps it was their fault and 
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they wonder if it would have happened if they had just been younger. 

If the criminal is arrested, the victim may suffer even more than 

simple blame and stigma. He may be subject to countless interviews, 

investigations, hearings, and other court procedures. ~hroughout this 

process, his own needs may be completely ignored. Most jurisdictcns 

do not provide transportation to and from the police station or the 

court house for witnesses. It is rare to see the victim or witness 

fully briefed on court procedures or to let them know what will be 

expected in their direct or cross-examination. ~e courthouse itself 

may be completely unccafortable, with no suitable seating, no 

a~tion for meals, and no way of a~iding the ccmpany of the 

offender and his family. 

The court proceedings and the lack of services may be particularly 

onerous for the elderly. Often they do not have their own cars and 

don't have the stamina to walk to the bus-stop -- if there is one. 

For health reasons, they should eat regularly and take medication 

which may not be feasible in many oour~e settings. They may a/so 

need a place to rest and relax in order to sustain strength for a Icr~j 

day. 

And for the elderly, the natural desire to comprehend what is 

going on in an alien environment, what is likely to happen next and 

what is expected of them, often becomes an acute source of anxiety. 

$~len one appreciates that even neophyte police officers, presecutors, 

and defense lawyers are disoriented by the criminal court prccess, c~e 

can begin to grasp what t_he typical elderly victim or witness goes 

thrct~jh in order to meet his civic duty. For him, the endless 

continuances, the signs of bttreaucratic indifference, the 

seemingly-inexplicable plea-bargains, the reluctance of all the 

decision-makers to hear the victim's facts, beliefs, and opinions, all 

of these axe assaults on his dignity and confirmations that he no 

ic~ger counts for much of anything in our society. 

In light of the several kinds of injuries suffered by victims of 
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crime -- the elderly most painfully -- it is important to see what 

types of programs have begun to emerge in response to these needs. 

Victim Services 

The National Organization for Victim Assistance suggests that 

there are eight important stages of service which need to be 

implemented to help victims and witnesses frc~ the time of the crime 

itself all the way through the post-sentencing period. Three of the 

service stages apply generically to all victims of crime; the other 

five apply to victims and witnesses in~ived in the prosecution of the 

accused or convicted offender. 

I encourage the members of the s~ttee to consider these 

eight stages as you investigate victim assistance. In our view, the 

services associated with each chronological step are essential for 

appropriate treatment of victims. ~ney could be as ccmm~n a form of 

public service as libraries, sanitation,i and law enforcement if a 

modest level of funding and a decen~ level of legislative and 

executive support were available to sastain them. 

The following is a brief enumeration of the servioes: 

i. Emergency Response. 

At this stage, services are rendered by the first person whom a 

victim contacts after the crime. Tne response at that stage is 

considered critical to the victim's emotional well-being, since a 

thoughtless or unsympathetic response can increase the level of stress 

and possibly precipitate crisis. 

The person who is r ~ n g  to the victim can be a police 

dispatcher, a neighbor or friend, or even a passer-by. The fact that 

many of the first respondents do not work in a public service program 

suggests the importance of public education on how best to handle a 

traumatic situation -- to learn both physical and psychological 

first-aid, and to know how to contact professional emergency services. 
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In some jurisdictions police operators are trained to identify 

priority calls for help on the basis of the described crime and of the 

seeming distress of the victim. Other jurisdictions attempt to 

achieve this kind of responsiveness by patching emergency calls to the - 

respcr~ing police officers or to individuals trained in crisis 

intervention techniques so that they can begin to administer crisis 

intervention over the telephone as needed. 

2. Victim Stabilization. 

This stage is often difficult to distinguish from the first stage 

of the victim service system, for "victim stabilization" is still one 

involving emergency circumstances. It begins after the most elemental 

emergency needs are met -- like getting the victim away from danger, 

or to a hospital, or into some dry clothing. 

The response needed at this stage should emphasize the need to 

reduce fear, assure the victim of his eventual ability to adapt to the 

situation, provide him with necessary help and referrals, and prepare 

him for what is likely to happen next in the justice system. 

q~ne most ooum~3n service providers at this stage axe the police and 

other emergency service workers. A number of American police 

departments work with crisis teams who are on call to respond to 

criminal victimizations either at the same time as a police unit or 

shortly thereafter. Typical of such jurisdictions axe Des M~ines, 

Iowa (the expected host site of N~/A's 1984 annual conference), Pima 

County, Arizona, Evanston, Illinois, Indianapolis, Indiana, Glendale, 

Arizona, Chester County, Pennsylvania, and Ft. Lauderdale, Florida. 

It is exactly at this stage that the police can perform their job 

more effectively after receiving appropriate train/ng in victim 

stabilization, using skills perfected by the crisis interventic~ 

specialists in programs like the ones just mentioned, but wi~ucut 

regard as to the availability of these civilian auxiliaries. An 

experiment in Omzard, California, is examining the effects of such 

victim stabilization or "crisis management" training on police 
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effectiveness. It is hypothesized that stabilizing the victim prior 

to conducting a police interview can increase the amct~t of useful 

information ~ined in the interview itself. 

9a%atever the results of that "outcome" study, it is evident in the 

C~nard train/ng program and others like it that ordinary patrol 

officers are enthusiastic to learn how to deal kindly and masterfully 

with the turbulent and painful experiences they ocnfront daily -- both 

on and off the job. 

3. Resource Mcbilizetion. 

The third stage of victim services is called resource 

mobilization. 1"nis involves the most ccmmlmzly-provided cluster of 

services in the United States. It is offered by almost all kinds of 

victim assistance programs, from crisis response groups to 

prosecutors' victim/witness units. 

~%is stage starts with the need to assess the general ic6ses that 

have occurred to the victim and to help him mobilize his personal and 

social resources to deal with those iceses. It may involve 

identifying friends or local agencies with emergency funds or repair 

services, or help in filling out forms for victim compensation, or 

arranging long-term counseling or physical therapy services, and so c~. 

One part of resource mobilization which is being increasingly 

recognized as a vital part of the service structure are crime 

prevention materials and services. Crime prevention has been 

developed in many victim assistance programs both as a way of reducing 

opporttmity for repeat victimizations ar~ as an adjunct to counseling 

services, 

4. Post Arrest. 

The fourth and subsequent stages of service take place if and only 

if there has been an arrest and prosectltion: the first three stages 

of service are provided whether or not the offender is apprehended. 

The fourth stage could begin concurrently with any of the first three 
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stages, since the arrest may take place at any time. 

While many service programs provide assistance to victims and 

witnesses in preparing for trial, few programs provide services to 

victims and witnesses immediately after the arrest. N~A's service 

system, developed out of the experience of the mo6t thoughtful and 

adventurous programs, suggests that this is but the first stage in 

which the victim's natural desire to have a voice in the system's 

handling of his wrongdoer -- or accused wrongdoer -- should be 

acccmodated. 

Victims and witnesses should be informed and consulted on the the 

prosecutor's charging decision and on the magistrate's selection of 

bail oonditicns. Since in most jurisdictic~s, the bail decision is 

made within twenty-f~ur hours, victims should have a right to have 

their views and concerns represented -- such as attaching a 

"stay-away" condition to a personal release order. An example of that 

kind of involvement exists in Oook County, Illinois. 

Similar services which should be immediately available take on the 

problems of intimidation and harassment. Many victims fear 

retaliation, and in cases where the offender is known to the victim 

and is quickly released c~ bail, their fear increases. Strict 

enforcement of existing statutes dealing with protection of witnesses 

is needed. NOVA has proposed that in all bail hearings a "victim 

intim/dation statement" be mandatory, and when the victim is fearful, 

that bail be conditioned upon the offender staying a~y from the 

victim. Such bail conditions are used in a number of jurisdictions 

now in cases of domestic violence, but rarely are they considered on a 

routine basis for all crimes. 

5. Pre-Court Appearance. 

Services prior to the victim's court appearance constitute stage 

fi~ in the service system. These services are most often performed 

by the prosecutor's office and have been refined as an tool of good 

witness management practices, long promoted by the U.S. Justice 
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Department's criminal-justice improvement efforts over the past decade. 

Services at this stage include: orientation and preparation for 

the criminal justice process; information cn case status and 

scheduling; advance notificaticn of hearings; witness preparation of 

testimony; employer intervention; consultation on plea-bargaining; and 

emotional counseling. 

A number of programs have developed outstanding service schemes 

for this stage. A few examples are in Ventura (~x/nty, California, 

Peoria, Illinois, M/ddlesex County, Massachusetts, St. Louis, 

Missouri, and Mil~ukee, Wiso0nsin. 

6. Court Appearance. 

Stage six involves support services for victims and witnesses if 

they must make a court appearance. ~'nese services are oriented toward 

relieving practical concerns and reducing the financial cost of 

participating in the criminal justice system. 

Services at this stage involve providing transportation to victims 

and witnesses; establishing a separate ~aiting roan for prosecution 

witnesses; escort services; counseling; childcare facilities; 

preparation for case outcome; and provision of meals or parking costs. 

Most programs which provide effective pre-oourt appearance 

services also provide good in-oc~rt services. However, there are a 

few such services wh/ch depend on more than the goodwill of/the 

service provider. A key example is the provision of a separate 

~iting room: while most courthouses have the space to provide such a 

service, unless court adm/nistrators are persuaded of the need for 

such a service, the waiting room will not be provided. 

7. Pre-Sente/~ce. 

Pre-sentencing services, stage seven, are not provided in many 

Jursidicticns. Such services involve notification of the victims and 

witnesses of the verdict or plea; development and use of a Victim 
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Impact Statement at sentencing; the develclm~ent of restitution plans; 

and counseling. 

The Victim ~ct Statement, by which the physical, financial, ~- 

emotional consequences of the crime are spelled out to the sentencing 

judge, has become a hallmark of the victim rights movement, reflecting 

the empassioned concern of many victims. There are now fourteen 

states, along with the federal government, ~hich mandate the use of 

Victim Impact Statements and a number of others which have such 

legislation pending. This kind of involvement of the victim at the 

sentencing stage -- presenting the facts of what the offender did to 

the victim, if not necessarily the victim's desires about sentencing 

-- has had an impact both c~ the kind of sentence received ~ c~e that 

is not necessarily more Im/nitive, incidentally -- and c~ the victim's 

own state of mind. 

8. Post-Sentence. 

The final stage of service, post-sentencing, has not been dealt 

with much until very recently, qhe most important part of this 

service stage is the notification and involvement of the victim in 

parole hearings and in parole and probation revocation procedings. A 

number of highly-publicized cases has brought this subject to the fore 

OVer the last year, but few jurisdictions have acted upon the needs 

presented. However, Oklahoma and M~ssachusetts both have statutes 

requiring such notification, and the Massachusetts victim/witness 

programs, which exist in all of the larger prosecutorial districts in 

the state, have developed procedures for effecting such notification 

well. 

Conclusion 

This review of the eight service stages both itemizes services 

which ~ exist in various jurisdictions and outlines a ccrLs~sus 

reached amcr~ service providers an what is needed by my of service at 

each stage. While no service program in the United States seems yet 

to provide a response to al/ of the needs uncovered, many attempt to 

provide core services to especially-vulnerable victim groups -- such 
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as the elderly. 

The single largest obstacle for the development and maintenance of 

i~rcgrams for the elderly and other victims is the lack of funds. 

While some progress has been made in developing state-level aid to 

local programs -- such subsidies have been established in fourteen 

states -- wherever services do exist, most continue to struggle for 

survival. And most jurisdictions have virtually no services to begin 

with. 

Last year, under the leadership of Sectors Heinz and Laxalt in 

th/s body, and Representatives Rodino and Fish in the House, the 

Victim and Witness Protection Act was enacted and the federal 

government took a major step in setting standards for providing 

assistance and protection for victims. 

I am sure that today's hearings reflect a continued interest in 

the need for a balanced justice system and a continued coumdtment by 

the Senate to provide answers to the countless victims who innocently 

suffer at the hands of criminals. 

To you, as the lawmakers of the land and the repres?entatives of 

lamer victimized ocmstitutencies, we direct this request -- that you 

bring a new measure of compassion and fairness to the hidden tragedies 

that crime leaves behind -- the victims. 

Our cotultry's extraordinary stature in human history has been 

built on our people's trust in popular gov~t, and on our 

government's capacity to r ~  effectively to global crisis. Let us 

not be slow in responding to our crises within. This hearing marks 

one sir~cere effort of our government representatives to better 

understand the crisis of crime as it affects those least able to 

overcome its effects, our victimized elderly. 

We at the National Crgardzation for Victim Assistance are 

heartened by your legislative initiatives and interest, Chairman 

Grassley. We applaud you for. cc~vening this fact-finding hearing, and 

look foreward to offering you our knowledge and suggestions as you 

seek to transform public misery into remedial public law. We are 

emboldened to believe that the United States Congress has now the will-- 

and the wit to provide justice for all -- even the victims. 
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Senator  GRASSLEY. Mr. Sunderland. 
Mr. SUNDERLAND. Mr. Chairman, AARP is deeply appreciative of 

the opportuni ty  to support the work of this committee and, of 
course, it is an extremely important  issue with us. 

We now have passed our 14th million mark  in members, and are 
closing very rapidly on 15 million. 

In the  interest  of time, with your permission, Mr. Chairman, I 
would like to summarize,  make a few comments, and present a pre- 
pared s ta tement  for the consideration of the members of this com- 
mit tee and the staff. 

It  was refreshing to hear your opening remarks even though 
they were very brief. I think they clearly indicate the compassion, 
the interest ,  and the direction tha t  you intend, and members of 
this commit tee intend, for these hearings to take and in subsequent 
legislation to lead the way. 

For too long the victim has been overlooked in our criminal jus- 
tice system and I th ink  it is time, al though late in coming, tha t  the 
victim be made a par t  of this judicial process. 

There  are a few points tha t  I would like to emphasize if I may. 
In the  last  12 years during which I have been director of Criminal 
Justice Services of the  American Association of Retired Persons, 
the criminal  victimization of the elderly has been a very important,  
almost a central  par t  of our work and I t ry  to review or have staff 
review the principal research products tha t  are being produced, or 
have been produced during this period. 

Despite all the inquiries tha t  have been made into this subject, I 
believe there  is a greater  controversy today than  when it first came 
up in the nat ional  polls of 1968 and 1969. 

At this  point I would like to state tha t  our internal  surveys, 
AARP's surveys, over the past decade have consistently placed 
crime as the No. 2 concern of older persons, coming only after 
income maintenance.  

Now, there  are other  issues in some localities that  place second 
or third,  such as health, as you would expect; and for those who 
live in country areas, very often t ransportat ion is very high on the 
list. 

But  the subject t h a t  this committee is addressing we know, and 
the  Harr i s  and Gallup polls have also corroborated this, tha t  crime 
is a very serious concern and in urban areas and some localities 
crime against  the elderly is the No. 1 concern even surmounting 
the  problems of mainta ining life, limb, and shelter and food. 

Now, one of the  controversies tha t  I would like to deal with very 
briefly is f requent ly raised by the media and researchers; namely, 
are older persons the most frequently or the least frequently vic- 
timized by crime? We can answer tha t  by saying both. We are the 
most f requent ly  victimized by some crime types and the least fre- 
quent ly  victimized by other crime types. So you cannot say tha t  
any  age group is the most or least. It must  be crime specific. 

In some of the outstanding works done in some of the States, par- 
t icular ly  in the State of Florida where we have over 1 million 
members  and have an office to mainta in  service to those members, 
about  the same conclusions tha t  we have come to are supported by 
the  Crime Commission hearings in Florida a few years back. 
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I th ink what  our researchers overlook is tha t  so much of the re- 
search being conducted these days-is done by people in air-condi- 
tioned offices who are only reviewing statistics. I would like to im- 
press upon the members of this committee tha t  tha t  is no way to 
look at victimization. You must get to the victims and experience 
and feel those torments,  the torment  and the harm tha t  follows 
some victimizations. And part icularly with the elderly, if it is a 
fear-provoking confrontation or merely a vicarious victimization, 
which is greater  in the elderly than in other age groups. What  we 
mean by tha t  in our business, is when an older person hears of a 
crime being inflicted upon a friend or acquaintance, the impact of 
that  vicarious victimization, al though nonexistent to the individu- 
al, may as seriously deprive tha t  individual of freedom of move- 
ment  as an actual victimization. 

So--and I have talked with the Director of the Bureau of Justice 
Statistics about this--we too often do not consider the impact, the 
intangibles of victimization. And if we were to carry this to the 
absurd, if an older person is so fearful as to never leave the home 
and never be victimized, and never show up on the statistics, then 
many would say tha t  there exists no problem because there  has 
been no victimization. 

So I must  stress, if I may, the seriousness of these intangibles 
and the impact of victimization to the elderly. 

As has been mentioned here earlier, there are multiple victimiza- 
tions, not only by the criminal but by the system. I th ink no one is 
more eloquent on this subject than  Hon. Lois Herrington, the As- 
sistant Attorney General, in her  writings and statements  pertain- 
ing to this subject. But even beyond that,  we victimize the individu- 
al again through the tax collector. And I do commend the members 
of this committee for the provisions in this bill which would place 
some of the responsibility where it belongs, on the criminal, and 
not impose the responsibility for resti tution and rehabili tation 
upon the noncriminal public, the taxpayer. 

We have an offender-oriented criminal justice system. Crime sta- 
tistics are offender-oriented. The trial  or plea bargaining or the 
endless continuances are at  the offender's convenience. The State 
provides legal counsel for the offender. There seems to be no short- 
age of public service organizations to serve the offender. 

Then finally, after all the costs tha t  have ensued, the taxpayer  
again must  pay for the offender. 

I would like to especially commend the committee for certain 
provisions of this bill, particularly those pertaining to restitution, 
whether it be by money or service. I would like to see more of tha t  
for those serious habitual offenders who place themselves in a posi- 
tion of being judgment-proof and who hide under tha t  cloak to 
escape the responsibility for their  crimes. 

I would like to say in closing tha t  we are dealing with a very sick 
system and there are few people who scrutinize the entire criminal 
justice system. For instance, Chief Ray Davis of Santa Ana, Calif., 
tracked 3,800 felony filings; only 37 went to trial. You might  say 
tha t  was a peculiarity of Los Angeles. Not so. INSLAW--Inst i tue  
for Social and Law Research--studied 21 cities including Washing- 
ton, D.C., and that  is about the percentage in Washington, D.C. 

24-906 0 - 84 - Ii 
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Specifically, as an example, INSLAW tracked 8,600-plus commer- 
cial burglar ies  in Washington D.C., 87 offenders were convicted. 
Tha t  does not  mean  that 87 people went  to prison. As a mat te r  of 
fact in this count ry  today, only 40 percent of our murderers  go to 
prison. And if  you want  to review statistics on rape, it is incr.edibly 
poor. In a review of a study done by  Dr. Donna Schromm, I selected 
two cities and carefully analyzed the data  and we got in those two 
major  cities, Seat t le  and Kansas City, one felony or misdemeanor 
conviction, for every  318 actual  rapes. Conviction does not mean 
prison. And it goes on and on and on.  For instance, and I do not 
wan t  to quote too many statistics but  I am trying to emphasize 
here  tha t  we are  dealing with a very difficult problem in a system 
tha t  I th ink  is not functioning very well in the  metropoli tan areas. 
It functions very  well in the country. In the  large cities it is in a 
v i r tual  s ta te  of collapse. In most States we get barely one felony 
conviction per  police officer per  year. 

With  that ,  Mr. Chairman and Senator  Hawkins,  I again express 
the  appreciat ion of my association for the  invitation to come here. 
We do have wha t  I consider to be a capable and ra ther  large staff. 
I f  we can help you, the members  of your  staff, we wish you would 
call upon us and let  us know what  we can do to advance these ex- 
t r emely  wor thwhi le  efforts. Thank  you very  much. 

[The prepared s ta tement  of Mr. Sunder land follows:] 
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MR. CHAIRMAN, and Members of the Committee: 

We appreciate the opportunity to speak in support of S.704, 

and to discuss briefly some of the findings of the American 

Association of Retired Persons with respecttothevictimization 

of older Americans. Beginning as early as the 1970's the 

Association has been examining these issues and we have developed 

and implemented a number of programs and activities directed toward 

educating our members and other older persons about way~ in which 

they can initiate action to reduce criminal opportunity, and their 

risks of being victimized. 

Victimization of the elderly came into prominence in the 

last past of the decade of the 1960's, when AARP surveys and other 

national studies began to reveal crime as the second greatest 

concern of older persons, second only to income maintenance~ ~ 

Some surveys in major urban areas reported crime as the number one 

concern of the urban poor and elderly. 

In the ensuing years, there has been considerable additional 

research, and as a result of this there has developed a great deal 

"of controversy as to whether or not'the elderly are the most or the 

least victimized. And the answer to this question is that they 

are the most victimized by certain crime types in specific localities, 

and the least victimized by other crime types, again depending upon 

where they are. Generally speaking, older people have lower rates 

of victimization by the very serious crimes of murder, rape and 

aggravated assault, but they suffer higher rates than younger age 

groups in the crimes of purse snatch, swindling, pickpocket, theft 
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of checks from maiiboxes', and in some locations, burglary. 

The "older age group have specific concerns and vulnerabilities 

just asdo other age groups. For example, older people are 

targets of swindlers because very often they have "nest eggs" 

or proceeds from life'insurance or lump sums from sales of their 

residences. Such is not'often the case for the Very young group. 

Since there are substantially more older women than older men, 

and since some of them do have readily available cash, they become 

the targets of con men. Concerning theft of checks from the mailbcx, 

the elderly tend to be victimized because they are the most frequent 

recipients of pension, annuity or other kinds of checks that are 

mailed. This creates even more opportunity and results in their 

higher victimization. Older women are more frequently the victims 

of purse snatch because the offender is most often a young male 

who can outrun or out-maneuver an older person. 

There are perhaps seventeen factors contributing to ~he level 

of victimization of older persons; but there are £wo that are 

worthy of comment here. These have to do with the older persons' life- 

style--natural and/or imposed. The natural lifestyle of older persons 

tends to reduce their vulnerability. Some examples of this are 

that they are less likely to hitchhike than are younger age groups, 

less likely to pick up strangers in a tavern, less likely, to be 

alone on the streets during the late night hours. The imposed 

lifestyle has far more insidious implications in that criminal 

victimization whether actual or vicarious, raises justified levels 

of fear, leading to greatly reduced activit Z making the elderly 

less "at risk" than younger age groups. The elderly change their 
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habits or routines so as to avoid dangerous situations or 

potential victimization. This, in turn, leads to increased 

isolation and the deprivations flowing therefrgm. Many 

researchers, perhaps most of them, deal only with frequency 

of victimization and not with its impact. The economic, 

psychological and sociological impacts must be considered. 

Sometimes, the intangible impact, such as the psychological. 

trauma, may be greater than the tangible impacts, that is, 

economic and physiological. Nonetheless, the minimum that 

can be done is compensation for older victims' losses resulting 

from crime. 

In recent decades, the victim has become the forgotten 

element in the Criminal Justice System. Our crime statistics 

are offender oriented. The taxpayer's money is poured into 

programs for the offender. Publie service organizations come 

forth to plead the case of the offender. And the victim is 

forg~'/and ~rice victimized -- initially by the criminal, next 

by the-~avalier treatment received within the system, and lastly 

by the tax collector so as to provide more funds for offender 

programs. Only very recently have books been written on victims 

as principal subjects, and the science of victimology has jus.t barely 

reached ~ts adolescence. 

For too long the victim of crime has been neglected in our 

judicial process. Anyone who follows the victim's path through 

this tortu~us'a~d directionless maze is stricken by the fact that 

the victim is almost an unwanted actor, a bit player in the plot 

being developed in the drama. In fact, in the vast majority of 

cases the victim is unessential and goes unnoticed and unnotified. 
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Most crime does not come to the attention of the police. 

Of the crime that does, only a minute portion ever goes to 

trial. The victim does not become a part of the process in the 

overwhelming majority of cases. Most of the criminals who are 

apprehended enter into an agreement to avoid the uncertainties 

of the criminal trial and to.receive a favorable bargain. The 

v~ctim is not anessential element, not needed, not considered, 

not consulted and rarely even notified. This was succinctly 

summed up by Assistant U.S. Attorney General, Lois Herringto~ 

after chairing the President's Task Force on Victims. Her 

statement was "Every one of the victims who testified at our 

six field hearings said they would never again get involved with 

the criminal justice system. It is clear that if we take the 

justice out of the system, we have ~ system that serves only the 

criminal." 

During the early years of the development of our Criminal 

Justice System, "making the victim whole," was paramount; that is, 

consideration for the victim over the offender, a general compassion 

for the victim and the relentless pursuit of the offender. I 

would not presume precisely to describe attitudes prevalent in the 

past century but, if daily journal reports of the period are 

indicative, the press sympathized with the victims, urged the 

sheriff on to full pursuit of the offenders and lauded the courts 

for swift and sure punishment. Why the victim has'fallen into 

obscurity today is subject to much conjecture but it is observable 

and now becoming the center of comment. The Report of the President's 
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Commission on Law Enforcement and Administration of Justice 

noted "One of the most neglected subjects in the study of crime 

is victims: the persons, households, and businesses that bear 

the brunt of crime in the United States." 

Let us hope we are seeing the dawn of a new era during which 

the victim will become the principal actor who will receive the 

attention rightly due, be made whole by money or service, become 

the focus of compassion and concern and be restored the rights 

so long deprived. 

In our early development restitution was fundamental to 

the settlement of a criminal complaint. Now it is almost totally 

forgotten. Volumes could be written on the reasons advanced 

as to why restitution is not possible in most cases. But fairness 

demands that offender restitution be restored as a social policy 

in the United States. It can be done, and must be done. After 

various objections are overcome, there are those who will seize 

upon a policy of offender restitution as an opportunity to create 

a vast new bureaucracy supervising an unprofitable business. Such 

a development is.not necessary. First, if the offender has assets, 

the restitution can be a money award. Today, most offenders get 

off free by pleading poverty and by becoming judgment-proof. In 

such cases, offenders should be made to make restitution by work 

and service. This can be done without the need of a burdensome 

aduninistration. A little ingenuity can devise the means. One 

example came to my attention while I was inspecting a sheriff's 

program on the West Coast. The sheriff, tiring of seeing nothing 

done to Juvenile Offenders until'they developed into very serious 

criminals, asked the judge to release delinquent juveniles to his 
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custody for work programs. The judge did so and the sheriff 

assigned the juveniles to worthwhile public service such 

as painting public beach property, cleaning up public parks, 

cutting timber pathways through forests, and other chores needed 

to entice resort vacationers. The sheriff told me he never had 

a juvenile so assigned return to the system and that many young 

people had thanked him for diverting them from minor crfminal 

activities. 

Too many so-called "professionals" cite too many objections 

to restitution programs. Perhaps we should replace such persons 

with managers who have the initiative to develop innovations that 

can overcome the obstacles without great investments of public 

funds. 

Given political and social constraints, our options for 

improying the Criminal Justice System are few. Despite the 

mountains of money heaped on rehabilitation programs, they have 

had dismal results. The Director of the Federal Bureau of 

Prisons has testified before the Congress that we do not know how 

to rehabilitate a prisoner against his will. Major studies have 

revealed little, if any, difference between those in and those no___tt 

in our rehabilitation programs. 

Searching for the "roots" of crime has been even more elusive. 

No crime causation theory yet advanced has withstood close scrutiny. 

It is past time to turn some of our attention to the innocent 

victim. The very minimum victims deserve is compensation for losses 

suffered. The compensation should go beyond repair of personal 

injuries and should include making the victim whole. There should 
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be no "means" test since criminals cross all economic levels 

and the affluent innocent victim should not be deprived of 

restitution nor the criminal allowed to benefit by preying on 

the rich. 

There are a number of professional criminals who make 

themselves "judgment proof" in order to avoid responsibility. 

These, often the worst of the criminal lot, should not be allowed 

to elude responsibility. The alternatives for the judgment 

proof or indigent should be either payment by service to the 

community or imprisonment. Ultimately, we should strive to make 

crime less profitable than the alternatives. ~n illiterate, 

untrained street "junkie" today takes in more money to support his 

drug habit than is earned by 99.9% of the female wage earners in 

this country. To turn that around, only one-tenth of one percent 

of our female workers make more money than an ordinary drug addict. 

The penalty for crime must be greater than the pleasure. Full 

restitution by the offender, not merely a fine, should be the 

responsibility demanded of those who choose to profit from crime. 

It is clear to most observers at the street level that crime is 

profitable and that the potential rewards outweigh the potential 

consequences. I am confounded as to why we must conduct a study 

to arrive at this conclusion, but a study was just recently 

released on prisoners in Sweden, the ultimate social welfare state, 

and most prisoners stated they preferred crime over other lines of 

work. 
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A noble first step, and a minimum, is compensation paid 

for through increased criminal fines. 

In March, 1982, the AARP Board of Directors discussed 

again the seriousness of crime in America and the members 

stated their views in a series of policy statements on significant 

issues bearing on the subject. Among these statements was the 

following: 

"Work or other forms of restitution by offenders, especially 

juveniles, Should be vigorously explored. 

~estitution by the offender is certainly not stigmatizing. 

Restitution has proved to be a deterrent to criminal cenduct in 

those instances in which it has been tried. With respect to 

juveniles, their criminal acts, from vandalism to burglary, 

seldom lead to the imposition of punishment. In many cases, 

"first offense" should more accurately be termed "first time 

apprehended". If a juvenile is apprehended in the act of vandalism, 

he should be required to make restitution by repairing or restoring 

the damaged property, or by performing a suitable service to the 

victim or to the community. 

"Unless the juvenile commits a very serious crime little other 

than superficial action is taken." If a juvenile is adult enough 

to use a gun, a knife, or other deadly weapon he should be considered 

and treated as an adult." 
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Historically, in developing their yearly legislative 

objectives for consideration of Federal or State legislative 

bodies, the Association has pressed for:. 

adequate indemnification to victims of crime; prosecution 
programs aimed at career criminals or repeat offenders; 

• compilation of de~ailed.and uniform crime statistics, 
including such items as victim age, so that those crimes 
to which the elderly fall disproportionally victim will 
be clearly and accurately identified. 

• educational programs based upon research data, to 
demonstrate ways in which the elderly are victimized 
by nonviolent economic crimes such as criminal fraud, 
and to suggest ways they might better protect themselves 
against fraudulent and deceptive practices; and 

• the development of more public information and media 
programs to educate persons, especially older persons, 
about simple crime prevention techniques. 

The American Association of Retired Persons endorses the 

legislative proposal before you, and commends the committee for 

this important effort. 

Senator  GRASSLEY. I understand your organization has been very 
helpful  to us, so at  this point let me thank  you for what  you have 
a l ready contributed in working with us. 

Does the AARP have any  survey information from among your 
members? I assume it would be from among your members who 
have been victimized and applied and received assistance? 
Mr. SUNDERLAND. Not to my knowledge. And these surveys, Mr. 

Chairman, are not limited to our members. They are national sur- 
veys conducted over the full spectrum of older persons in this coun- 
try. Understandably, a number of them are AARP members but we 
try to take a look into the concerns and needs of all older persons. 
I do not know of any of our surveys, we are just starting a new one 
and it will be launched 2 weeks from now, that deals with the ques- 
tion you asked. It could be that I could get such questions entered 
into this upcoming survey. 

Senator GRASSLEY. Would you elaborate on a statement that kind 
of intrigued me on page 6, where you state that "too many so- 
called professionals cite too many objections to restitution pro- 
grams." 

Mr. SUNDERLAND. Yes, I think that that is observable. Certainly 
you people who have devoted your life to public service understand 
that sometimes bureaucrats capture the bureaucracy and do not 
serve the persons intended to be served. 

There are some real problems with the execution of orders of res- 
titution and we recognize that. Many judges object to this because 
they feel that legislation should not force them to take these ac- 
tions, it should be a matter of judicial discretion. 

Those who are empowered with the responsibility to collect resti- 
tution very often find that they can lay that aside and take on the 
duties tha t  they consider in their  mind to be more pressing. We 
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have that  problem in criminal fines, an enormous amount  of crimi- 
nal fines are never collected. And the same problem is going to 
occur with restitution, once restitution is ordered. 

I do not intend this to be a flippant s ta tement  and I am not too 
sure tha t  it is practical, but I th ink if we got a few business manag- 
ers they would find ways to collect restitution. 

Senator Gahss~Y. I have just  one last question and tha t  is for 
Mr. Stein. Because we have very little information available re- 
garding the impact of victims compensation programs upon the vic- 
tims themselves. What  in your opinion, does contact with victims 
compensation programs improve victims' at t i tudes toward the 
criminal justice system? 

Mr. STEIN. As you indicated, there is not any research data  on 
that. The impressions tha t  we get are a ra ther  mixed picture, quite 
frankly. 

Senator GRASShEY. Mixed? 
Mr. STEIN. Yes; sad to say, many compensation programs are op- 

erated like other public bureaucracies and the experience is not a 
very pleasant one, as you have raised in earlier questions. There 
are often very long and tedious and confusing forms to fill out, and 
there are often overworked and not very sympathetic claims agents 
to deal with. It is no better and sometimes worse than  trying to file 
a private insurance claim. And as Mr. Zweibel indicated, with 
somewhere between 60 and 70 percent of all claims being denied by 
compensation boards across the country, there is a good deal of dis- 
appointment tha t  is built in to the process of being an applicant, 
not to mention the delays and other kinds of frustrations. 

I think tha t  there are a number of compensation programs tha t  ~ 
appreciate these, the sense of disservice tha t  they are conveying to 
many of the public, and are t rying to overcome that.  Indications 
about California trying to speed up its process and simplify its 
forms along with a number of the efforts tha t  Mr. Zweibel's pro- 
gram has done in New York, are examples. 

Nonetheless, I th ink most of us, most of the observers would be 
hard pressed to see how the claims process and tha t  experience per 
se adds much to the law enforcement or criminal justice effort. I 
th ink I have overstated that.  I guess there are obviously some cases 
where a sense of grati tude for help was transferred to all the help- 
ers around in the criminal justice system as well as the compensa- 
tion program. But I th ink tha t  is at  the margin. 

Senator GRASSLEY. Senator Hawkins. 
Senator HAWKXNS. I have no questions. I look forward to working 

with you in solving this problem. It is of gigantic proportions and it 
really is striking a low note in the history of this country. 

Senator GRASSLEY. Well, tha t  concludes this hearing. I thank  you 
specifically and also I th ink we have had a very good panel, several 
panels of witnesses. 

You ought to look forward to us moving along on this because I 
th ink it is something tha t  we will be doing. 

So thank  you all very much. 
This meeting is adjourned. 
[Whereupon, the committee recessed, to reconvene subject to the 

call of the Chair.] 
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